
 

City of Capitola Agenda 
   
  

 

Mayor: Sam Storey 
Vice Mayor: Dennis Norton 
Council Members: Ed Bottorff 
 Stephanie Harlan 
 Michael Termini 
Treasurer: Christine McBroom 
  

 

REVISED 
 

CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

THURSDAY, APRIL 10, 2014  
 

CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
420 CAPITOLA AVENUE, CAPITOLA, CA  95010 

 
CLOSED SESSION – 6:45 PM 

 
An announcement regarding the items to be discussed in Closed Session will be made in the 
City Hall Council Chambers prior to the Closed Session.  Members of the public may, at this 
time, address the City Council on closed session items only.  There will be a report of any final 
decisions in City Council Chambers during the City Council's Open Session Meeting. 

 
 LIABILITY CLAIMS (Govt. Code §54956.95) 
  Claimant:  Patricia Greenwood 

Agency claimed against:  City of Capitola 
 

1 ,----------1 



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING - Thursday, April 10, 2014 
 
 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL – 7:00 PM 
All matters listed on the Regular Meeting of the Capitola City Council Agenda shall be 
considered as Public Hearings. 

 
1. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Council Members Stephanie Harlan, Dennis Norton, Ed Bottorff, Michael Termini, and Mayor 
Sam Storey 

 
2. PRESENTATIONS 
 A. Certificate of Commendation to Detective Sarah Ryan, Detective Leo Moreno, and 

Sergeant Mark Gonzalez. 
 
 B. Presentation to Police Officer Pedro Zamora and retired Police Service Canine Katie. 
 
 C. Presentation by Michelle Williams, Arts Council Santa Cruz County Executive Director. 
 

3. REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION 
 

4. ADDITIONAL MATERIALS 
Additional information submitted to the City Council after distribution of the agenda packet. 

 
 A. 2.C. 

DETAILS: 
Arts & Economic Prosperity IV in Santa Cruz County. 

 
 B. 9.C. 

DETAILS: 
Revised Mutual Indemnity Agreement re: Junior Lifeguard Instructor Training Services. 

 
 C. 10.A. 

DETAILS: 
McGregor Park Detailed Cost Estimate. 

 
 D. 10.B. 

DETAILS: 
Email from Ording. 

 
 E. 10.C. 

DETAILS: 
Email from Martorella. 

 
5. ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS TO AGENDA 
 

6. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
Oral Communications allows time for members of the Public to address the City Council on any 
item not on the Agenda.  Presentations will be limited to three minutes per speaker.   Individuals 
may not speak more than once during Oral Communications.  All speakers must address the 
entire legislative body and will not be permitted to engage in dialogue. All speakers are 
requested to print their name on the sign-in sheet located at the podium so that their name may 
be accurately recorded in the minutes.  A MAXIMUM of 30 MINUTES is set aside for Oral 
Communications at this time. 



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING - Thursday, April 10, 2014 
 
 
 

7. CITY COUNCIL / CITY TREASURER / STAFF COMMENTS 
City Council Members/City Treasurer/Staff may comment on matters of a general nature or 
identify issues for staff response or future council consideration. 

 
8. BOARDS, COMMISSIONS AND COMMITTEES APPOINTMENTS 
 

9. CONSENT CALENDAR 
All items listed in the “Consent Calendar” will be enacted by one motion in the form listed below.  
There will be no separate discussion on these items prior to the time the Council votes on the 
action unless members of the public or the City Council request specific items to be discussed 
for separate review.  Items pulled for separate discussion will be considered following General 
Government. 
 
Note that all Ordinances which appear on the public agenda shall be determined to have been 
read by title and further reading waived. 

 
 A. Receive Planning Commission Action Minutes for the Regular Meeting of April 3, 2014. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Receive Minutes. 

 
 B. Consider denying liability claim of Patricia Greenwood in the amount of $9,500 and 

forward to the City’s liability insurance carrier. 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Deny Liability Claim. 

 
 C. Consider a contract with the City of Santa Cruz in an amount not to exceed $4,500 to 

provide Junior Lifeguard instructor training, and authorize a $15,000 increase in 
expenditures for wages paid to the Capitola Junior Lifeguard instructors during training. 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Authorize City Manager to execute contract and approve budget adjustment in the 
amount of $19,500. 

 
 D. Consider acceptance of Association of Monterey Bay Area Governments (AMBAG) 

Regional Public Safety Electric Motorcycle Upgrade Program Grant of $14,250 for the 
purchase of a Police Department electric motorcycle; and authorize budget adjustment 
increasing budget revenue and expenditures by $14,250 for Fiscal Year 2013-2014. 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Approve the acceptance of grant funds for the purchase of a Police Department electric 
motorcycle; and authorize budget adjustment. 

 
10. GENERAL GOVERNMENT / PUBLIC HEARINGS 

General Government items are intended to provide an opportunity for public discussion of each 
item listed.  The following procedure is followed for each General Government item:  1) Staff 
explanation; 2) Council questions; 3) Public comment; 4) Council deliberation; 5) Decision. 

 



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING - Thursday, April 10, 2014 
 
 
 A. Consider the approval of plans, specifications, and the engineer’s estimate for the 

construction of the McGregor Park; authorization to advertise for bids and a budget 
amendment allocating $130,000 within the Capital Improvement Program from 
Undetermined Park Improvements to the McGregor Park Project, and modifications to 
the McGregor Park Donation and Sponsorship Program. 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Approve plans, specification and estimate; authorize advertising for bids, a budget 
amendment, and modifications to the McGregor Park Donation and Sponsorship 
Program. 

 
 B. Consider the Lower Pacific Cove Parking Lot Operating Guidelines and the renaming of 

both the Upper and the Lower Pacific Cove Parking Lots. 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Approve Operating Guidelines and the renaming of both Pacific Cove Parking Lots. 

 
 C. Consider finalizing the design and funding for the Esplanade and Stockton Avenue 

Intersection Improvements; and authorize advertising the project for construction bids. 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Approve Esplanade and Stockton Avenue Intersection Improvements; and authorize 
advertising the project for construction bids. 

 
 D. Consider implementing a Village “Personalized Brick” Program. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Approve Program. 

 
 E. Consider a contract with Community Television of Santa Cruz County, Inc., to provide 

programming for the City’s Public, Education and Government Channels; and authorize 
the City Manager to execute the contract. 
RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
Approve contract. 

 
11. ADJOURNMENT 
 
 Adjourn to the next Regular Meeting of the City Council on Thursday, April 24, 2014, at 7:00 PM, in 

the City Hall Council Chambers, 420 Capitola Avenue, Capitola, California. 

 
Note:  Any person seeking to challenge a City Council decision made as a result of a proceeding in which, by law, 
a hearing is required to be given, evidence is required to be taken, and the discretion in the determination of facts is 
vested in the City Council, shall be required to commence that court action within ninety (90) days following the 
date on which the decision becomes final as provided in Code of Civil Procedure §1094.6.  Please refer to code of 
Civil Procedure §1094.6 to determine how to calculate when a decision becomes “final.”  Please be advised that in 
most instances the decision become “final” upon the City Council’s announcement of its decision at the completion 
of the public hearing.  Failure to comply with this 90-day rule will preclude any person from challenging the City 
Council decision in court. 
 
Notice regarding City Council:  The Capitola City Council meets on the 2nd and 4th Thursday of each month at 
7:00 p.m. (or in no event earlier than 6:00 p.m.), in the City Hall Council Chambers located at 420 Capitola Avenue, 
Capitola. 



CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING - Thursday, April 10, 2014 
 
 
 
Agenda and Agenda Packet Materials:  The City Council Agenda and the complete Agenda Packet are available 
for review on the City’s website:  www.cityofcapitola.org and at Capitola City Hall and at the Capitola Branch 
Library, 2005 Wharf Road, Capitola, on the Monday prior to the Thursday meeting.     Agendas are also available at 
the Capitola Post Office located at 826 Bay Avenue, Capitola.  Need more information?   Contact the City Clerk’s 
office at 831-475-7300. 
 
Agenda Materials Distributed after Distribution of the Agenda Packet:  Pursuant to Government Code 
§54957.5, materials related to an agenda item submitted after distribution of the agenda packet are available for 
public inspection at the Reception Office at City Hall, 420 Capitola Avenue, Capitola, California, during normal 
business hours. 
 
Americans with Disabilities Act:  Disability-related aids or services are available to enable persons with a 
disability to participate in this meeting consistent with the Federal Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.  Assisted 
listening devices are available for individuals with hearing impairments at the meeting in the City Council 
Chambers.  Should you require special accommodations to participate in the meeting due to a disability, please 
contact the City Clerk’s office at least 24-hours in advance of the meeting at 831-475-7300.  In an effort to 
accommodate individuals with environmental sensitivities, attendees are requested to refrain from wearing 
perfumes and other scented products. 
 
Televised Meetings:  City Council meetings are cablecast “Live” on Charter Communications Cable TV Channel 8 
and are recorded to be rebroadcasted at 8:00 a.m. on the Wednesday following the meetings and at 1:00 p.m. on 
Saturday following the first rebroadcast on Community Television of Santa Cruz County (Charter Channel 71 and 
Comcast Channel 25).  Meetings are streamed “Live” on the City’s website at www.cityofcapitola.org by clicking on 
the Home Page link “Meeting Video”.  Archived meetings can be viewed from the website at anytime. 
 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 



* AMERICANS 
fortheARTS 

ADDITIONAL MATERIAL -ITEM 2.C. 
4-10-14 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

-1-

Item #: 4.A. 2.C.pdf

* AMERICANS 
for~ARTS 

ADDITIONAL MATERIA" 
4-10-14 CITY COUNCIL 



Arts and Economic Prosperity IV was conducted by 

Americans for the Arts, the nation’s leading nonprofit 

organization for advancing the arts in America. Established 

in 1960, we are dedicated to representing and serving local 

communities and creating opportunities for every American 

to participate in and appreciate all forms of the arts. 

Copyright 2014 Americans for the Arts, 1000 Vermont Avenue NW, 6
th

 Floor, Washington, DC 20005. 

Arts & Economic Prosperity if a registered trademark of Americans for the Arts. 

Reprinted by permission. 

Printed in the United States. 

-2-

Item #: 4.A. 2.C.pdf



 

Table of Contents 

 

The Arts Mean Business ........................................................... 1 
By Robert L. Lynch, President and CEO, Americans for the Arts 
  

The Economic Impact of the Nonprofit Arts and 

Culture Industry in Santa Cruz County ..................................... 3 

Defining Economic Impact .....................................................................3 

Economic Impact of the ENTIRE Nonprofit Arts and 

Culture Industry ......................................................................................4 

Direct and Indirect Economic Impact: How a Dollar is Re-

Spent in the Economy .............................................................................4 

Economic Impact of Spending by Nonprofit Arts and 

Culture ORGANIZATIONS ..................................................................6 

An Economic Impact Beyond Dollars: Volunteerism ............................7 

The Value of In-Kind Contributions to Arts Organizations ...................7 

Economic Impact of Spending by Nonprofit Arts and 

Culture AUDIENCES ............................................................................8 

Cultural Tourists Spend More ................................................................9 

Cultural Events Attract New Dollars and Retain Local 

Dollars ....................................................................................................10 
 

Conclusion ................................................................................. 11 
 

Arts & Economic Prosperity IV Calculator ............................... 13 

Economic Impact per $100,000 of Spending by Nonprofit 

Arts and Culture ORGANIZATIONS ....................................................13 

Economic Impact per $100,000 of Spending by Nonprofit 

Arts and Culture AUDIENCES ..............................................................14 

Making Comparisons with Similar Study Regions ................................15 
 

About This Study ....................................................................... 17 
 

Frequently Used Terms ............................................................. 21 
 

Frequently Asked Questions ..................................................... 23 
 

Acknowledgments ..................................................................... 25

-3-

Item #: 4.A. 2.C.pdf



 
 

”The 

Thedkdkdidkdiekd"Understanding and acknowledging the incredible economic impact of the nonprofit 

arts and culture sectors, we must always remember their fundamental value. They 

foster beauty, creativity, originality, and vitality. The arts inspire us, soothe us, 

provoke us, involve us, and connect us. But they also create jobs and contribute to 

the economy." 

— Robert L. Lynch 

 President and CEO 

 Americans for the Arts 

 

 

 

 

“The arts have the power to transform a community. They can connect both likely 

and unlikely partners to find creative ways to address and help solve broad 

community issues, from water conservation to downtown revitalization to promoting 

health and wellness. The arts are the greatest instrument for social change and 

community building that I know. And when our community is strong, our economy 

is strong. From start to finish, arts are the answer.”  

— Michelle Williams 

 President and CEO 

 Arts Council Santa Cruz County 

 

 

Local support for Arts & Economic Prosperity IV was provided by: 

 

           
 

                     

-4-

Item #: 4.A. 2.C.pdf

A 
ARTS 
COUNCIL 
SANTA 
CRUZ 
COUNTY 

H O T EL 

, 
~ I •• •• 

SANTACRUZ 
~ 

G COMMUNITY FOUNOATION 
'" SANTA CRUZ COUNTY DA D 1\ r'\ ,..... .... , 

. ,......,.. \.~L...JVA 



Arts & Economic Prosperity IV   |   Americans for the Arts  1 

The Arts Mean Business 
By Robert L. Lynch, President and CEO, Americans for the Arts 
 

America’s artists and arts organizations live and work in every community from coast-to-coast—

fueling creativity, beautifying our cities, and improving our quality of life. In my travels across the 

country, business and government leaders often talk to me about the challenges of funding the arts 

amid shrinking resources and alongside other pressing needs. They worry about jobs and the 

economy. Is their region a magnet for attracting and retaining a skilled and innovative workforce? 

How well are they competing in the high-stakes race to attract new businesses? The findings from 

Arts & Economic Prosperity IV send a clear and welcome message: leaders who care about 

community and economic vitality can feel good about choosing to invest in the arts. 

 

Arts & Economic Prosperity IV is our fourth study of 

the nonprofit arts and culture industry’s impact on the 

economy. The most comprehensive study of its kind 

ever conducted, it features customized findings on 182 

study regions representing all 50 states and the District 

of Columbia as well as estimates of economic impact 

nationally. Despite the economic headwinds that our 

country faced in 2010, the results are impressive. 

Nationally, the industry generated $135.2 billion in 

total economic activity—$61.1 billion by the nation’s 

nonprofit arts and culture organizations in addition to 

$74.1 billion in event-related expenditures by their 

audiences. This economic activity supports 4.1 million 

full-time jobs. Our industry also generates $22.3 billion 

in revenue to local, state, and federal governments 

every year—a yield well beyond their collective $4 

billion in arts allocations.  

 

Arts and culture organizations are resilient and 

entrepreneurial businesses. They employ people locally, 

purchase goods and services from within the community, 

and market and promote their regions. Arts organizations 

are rooted locally; these are jobs that cannot be shipped 

overseas. Like most industries, the Great Recession left a 

measurable financial impact on the arts—erasing the 

gains made during the pre-recession years, and leaving 

2010 expenditures three percent behind their 2005 levels. 

The biggest effect of the recession was on attendance 

and audience spending. Inevitably, as people lost jobs 

and worried about losing their houses, arts attendance—

like attendance to sports events and leisure travel—

waned as well. Yet, even in a down economy, some 

communities saw an increase in their arts spending and 

employment. As the economy rebounds, the arts are well 

poised for growth. They are already producing new and 

exciting work—performances and exhibitions and 

festivals that entertain, inspire, and attract audiences. 

Arts & Economic Prosperity IV shows that arts and 

culture organizations leverage additional event-related 

spending by their audiences that pumps revenue into 

the local economy. When patrons attend an arts event 

they may pay for parking, eat dinner at a restaurant, 

shop in local retail stores, and have dessert on the way 

home. Based on the 151,802 audience-intercept 

surveys conducted for this study, the typical arts 

attendee spends $24.60 per person, per event, beyond 

the cost of admission.  

 

Communities that draw cultural tourists experience an 

additional boost of economic activity. Tourism industry 

research has repeatedly demonstrated that arts tourists 

stay longer and spend more than the average traveler. 

Arts & Economic Prosperity IV reflects those findings: 

32 percent of attendees live outside the county in which 

the arts event took place, and their event-related 

spending is more than twice that of their local 

counterparts (nonlocal: $39.96 vs. local: $17.42). The 

message is clear: a vibrant arts community not only 

keeps residents and their discretionary spending close 

to home, it also attracts visitors who spend money and 

help local businesses thrive. 

 

Arts & Economic Prosperity IV demonstrates that 

America’s arts industry is not only resilient in times of 

economic uncertainty, but also a key component to our 

nation’s economic recovery and future prosperity. 

Business and elected leaders need not feel that a choice 

must be made between arts funding and economic 

prosperity. This study proves that they can choose 

both. Nationally, as well as locally, the arts mean 

business. 

-5-

Item #: 4.A. 2.C.pdf



2  Arts & Economic Prosperity IV   |   Americans for the Arts 

 

 

 

 

 

 

"Santa Cruz County embraces the arts by encouraging visual and 

performing artists to live and work in our communities. Their 

enthusiasm and energetic efforts bring an unparalleled vibrancy to our 

collective life. They increase area tourism, sales and tax revenues, and 

help stimulate small business growth. The arts community is an 

important contributor to the growing economic health of our region.”  

— Hilary Bryant 

Councilmember 2010-present, Mayor 2012-2013 

City of Santa Cruz 

-6-

Item #: 4.A. 2.C.pdf



Arts & Economic Prosperity IV   |   Americans for the Arts  3 

The Economic Impact of the 

Nonprofit Arts and Culture Industry 

in Santa Cruz County, CA 
 

Arts & Economic Prosperity IV provides compelling new evidence that the nonprofit 

arts and culture are a significant industry in Santa Cruz County—one that generates 

$38.38 million in total economic activity. This spending—$21.84 million by 

nonprofit arts and culture organizations and an additional $16.54 million in event-

related spending by their audiences—supports 877 full-time equivalent jobs, 

generates $22.36 million in household income to local residents, and delivers $5.26 

million in local and state government revenue. This economic impact study sends a 

strong signal that when we support the arts, we not only enhance our quality of life, 

but we also invest in Santa Cruz County’s economic well-being. 

 

In 2012, Americans for the Arts published Arts & 

Economic Prosperity IV, the most comprehensive 

study of its kind ever conducted. It documented the 

economic impact of the nonprofit arts and culture 

sector in 139 cities and counties, 31 multi-city or multi-

county regions, 10 states, and two individual arts 

districts—representing all 50 U.S. states and the 

District of Columbia. The diverse study regions ranged 

in population (1,600 to four million) and type (rural to 

large urban). Project economists customized input-

output models to calculate specific and reliable 

findings for each study region. This study focused 

solely on the economic impact of nonprofit arts and 

culture organizations and event-related spending by 

their audiences. Spending by individual artists and the 

for-profit arts and culture sector were excluded. 

 

This report presents the findings of a new study to 

evaluate the economic impact of the nonprofit arts 

and culture industry in Santa Cruz County, CA. 

The methodology used is identical to the national study 

methodology, providing the ability to compare the 

results with those of the national study participants. 

Defining Economic Impact 

This proprietary study uses four economic measures to 

define economic impact: full-time equivalent jobs, resident 

household income, and local and state government 

revenues. 

 

(1) Full-Time Equivalent (FTE) Jobs describes the total 

amount of labor employed.  Economists measure FTE jobs, 

not the total number of employees, because it is a more 

accurate measure that accounts for part-time employment. 

 

(2) Resident Household Income (often called Personal 

Income) includes salaries, wages, and entrepreneurial 

income paid to local residents. It is the money residents earn 

and use to pay for food, mortgages, and other living 

expenses. 

 

Revenue to (3) Local and (4) State Government includes 

revenue from local and state taxes (e.g., income, property, 

sales, and lodging) as well as funds from license fees, utility 

fees, filing fees, and other similar sources.

-7-

Item #: 4.A. 2.C.pdf



4  Arts & Economic Prosperity IV   |   Americans for the Arts 

Economic Impact of the ENTIRE Nonprofit Arts and Culture Industry 

(Combined Spending by Both Organizations and Their Audiences) 

in Santa Cruz County 
 

During fiscal year 2012, aggregate nonprofit sector spending by both Santa Cruz County’s nonprofit arts and 

culture organizations and their audiences totaled $38.38 million. The table below demonstrates the total economic 

impact of this spending. 

 

 

Direct and Indirect Economic Impact: How a Dollar is Re-spent in the Economy 

Arts & Economic Prosperity IV uses a sophisticated economic analysis called input-output analysis to measure economic 

impact. It is a system of mathematical equations that combines statistical methods and economic theory. Input-output analysis 

enables economists to track how many times a dollar is “re-spent” within the local economy, and the economic impact 

generated by each round of spending. How can a dollar be re-spent? Consider the following example: 

 

A theater company in Santa Cruz County purchases several gallons of paint from a local hardware store for $200. The 

hardware store then uses a portion of the $200 to pay the sales clerk; the sales clerk re-spends some of the money at a 

grocery store; the grocery store uses some to pay its cashier; the cashier spends some on rent; and so on ... 

 

Thus, the initial expenditure by the theater company was followed by four additional rounds of local spending (by the hardware 

store, the sales clerk, the grocery store, and the cashier). 

 

 The economic impact of the theater company’s initial $200 expenditure is the direct economic impact. 

 The economic impacts of the subsequent rounds of local spending are the indirect impacts. 

 Eventually, the $200 dollars will “leak out” of the local economy (i.e., be spent non-locally) and cease to have a local 

economic impact. In this example, if the theater company purchased the paint from a non-local hardware store there 

would be no local economic impact. Since the hardware store is located in Santa Cruz County, the dollars remain within 

the local economy and create at least one more round of local spending by the hardware company. 

 The total impact is the sum of the direct impact plus all indirect impacts. This report provides the total impact. 

 

A dollar “ripples” very different through each community, which is why a customized input-output model was created for Santa 

Cruz County. 

TOTAL Economic Impact of the Nonprofit Arts and Culture Industry in Santa Cruz County 

(Spending by Nonprofit Arts and Culture Organizations and Their Audiences) 

 
Santa Cruz County 

Median of 

Similar Study Regions 
Pop. = 250,000 to 499,999 National Median 

Direct Expenditures $38,383,368 $78,014,569 $49,081,279 

Full-Time Equivalent Jobs 877 2,719 1,533 

Resident Household Income $22,359,000 $63,166,000 $35,124,500 

Local Government Revenue $1,441,000 $3,640,500 $1,946,500 

State Government Revenue $3,815,000 $4,143,500 $2,498,000 

-8-

Item #: 4.A. 2.C.pdf



Arts & Economic Prosperity IV   |   Americans for the Arts  5 

 
 
 
 
 "Annieglass has benefited greatly from being located in a vibrant arts 

community. Santa Cruz County has attracted many of our collectors 

from around the country to visit and enjoy the inspiration we all get 

from living here." 

— Annie Morhauser 

CEO, Annieglass 

 

 

 

 

 

"When my wife and I dine at a local restaurant the night of a 

symphony concert and note that almost all the people there are going 

to the concert, it drives home the importance of our symphony to the 

local economy. This in addition to the many jobs the symphony 

provides for the musicians, the administration staff, the production 

staff and others. I believe performing arts events are a significant part 

of the appeal of Santa Cruz and greatly benefit our tourism industry 

and our local economy." 

— Owen Brown 

Board President, Santa Cruz County Symphony 

Retired, Chief Technology Officer, Plantronics 

 

 

-9-

Item #: 4.A. 2.C.pdf



6  Arts & Economic Prosperity IV   |   Americans for the Arts 

Economic Impact of Spending by Nonprofit Arts and Culture ORGANIZATIONS 
in Santa Cruz County 
 

Nonprofit arts and culture organizations are active contributors to their business community. They are employers, 

producers, and consumers. They are members of the Chamber of Commerce as well as key partners in the 

marketing and promotion of their cities, regions, and states. Spending by nonprofit arts and culture organizations 

totaled $21.84 million in Santa Cruz County during fiscal year 2012. This spending is far-reaching: organizations 

pay employees, purchase supplies, contract for services, and acquire assets within their community. These actions, 

in turn, support jobs, create household income, and generate revenue to the local and state governments. 

 

Santa Cruz County’s nonprofit arts and culture organizations provide rewarding employment for more than just 

administrators, artists, curators, choreographers, and musicians. They also employ financial staff, facility 

managers, and salespeople. In addition, the spending by these organizations directly supports a wide array of other 

occupations spanning many industries (e.g., printing, event planning, legal, construction, and accounting). 

 

Data were collected from 72 eligible nonprofit arts and culture organizations in Santa Cruz County. Each provided 

detailed budget information about more than 40 expenditure categories for fiscal year 2012 (e.g., labor, payments 

to local and nonlocal artists, operations, administration, programming, facilities, and capital expenditures/asset 

acquisition). The following tables demonstrates the total economic impacts of their aggregate spending. 

 

TOTAL Economic Impact of Spending by Nonprofit Arts and Culture ORGANIZATIONS 

in Santa Cruz County 

 
Santa Cruz County 

Median of 

Similar Study Regions 
Pop. = 250,000 to 499,999 National Median 

Direct Expenditures $21,839,409 $35,493,513 $23,141,643 

Full-Time Equivalent Jobs 593 1,392 791 

Resident Household Income $15,311,000 $32,773,000 $19,488,000 

Local Government Revenue $601,000 $1,425,000 $867,000 

State Government Revenue $1,768,000 $1,565,000 $1,010,000 

-10-

Item #: 4.A. 2.C.pdf



Arts & Economic Prosperity IV   |   Americans for the Arts  7 

An Economic Impact Beyond Dollars: Volunteerism 
 

While arts volunteers may not have an economic impact as defined in this study, they clearly have an enormous 

impact by helping Santa Cruz County’s nonprofit arts and culture organizations function as a viable industry. Arts 

& Economic Prosperity IV reveals a significant contribution to nonprofit arts and culture organizations as a result 

of volunteerism. During 2012, a total of 4,588 volunteers donated a total of 94,336 hours to Santa Cruz County’s 

participating nonprofit arts and culture organizations. This represents a donation of time with an estimated 

aggregate value of $2,088,599 (Independent Sector estimates the dollar value of the average 2012 volunteer hour 

to be $22.14). 

 

The 72 participating organizations reported an average of 20.6 volunteers who volunteered an average of 63.7 

hours, for a total of 1,310 hours per organization. 

 

 

The Value of  In-Kind Contributions to Arts Organizations 
 

The participating organizations were asked about the sources and value of their in-kind support. In-kind 

contributions are non-cash donations such as materials (e.g., office supplies from a local retailer), facilities (e.g., 

rent), and services (e.g., printing costs from a local printer). The 72 participating nonprofit arts and culture 

organizations in Santa Cruz County reported that they received in-kind contributions with an aggregate value of 

$354,751 during fiscal year 2012. These contributions were received from a variety of sources including 

corporations, individuals, local and state arts agencies, and government. 

 

 

“Artists are entrepreneurs whether they define themselves in that way or 

not. In immigrant communities artists like small businesses need to be 

fostered and supported in order to attain their economic potential. I 

believe there is untapped artistic entrepreneurship here in the Pájaro 

Valley. It is the responsibility of our community as a whole to nourish the 

arts and cultivate a vibrant community.” 

—  Amy Mascareñas 

Outreach and Business Development Specialist, El Pajaro 

Community Development Corp. 

 

-11-

Item #: 4.A. 2.C.pdf



8  Arts & Economic Prosperity IV   |   Americans for the Arts 

Economic Impact of Spending by Nonprofit Arts and Culture AUDIENCES 

in Santa Cruz County 
 

The nonprofit arts and culture industry, unlike most industries, leverages a significant amount of event-related 

spending by its audiences. For example, when patrons attend a cultural event, they may pay to park their car, 

purchase dinner at a restaurant, shop in nearby stores, eat dessert after the show, and pay a babysitter upon their 

return home. Attendees from out of town may spend the night in a hotel. This spending generates related 

commerce for local businesses such as restaurants, parking garages, retail stores, and hotels. 

 

To measure the impact of nonprofit arts and culture audiences in Santa Cruz County, data were collected from 671 

event attendees during 2013. Researchers used an audience-intercept methodology, a standard technique in which 

patrons complete a written survey about their event-related spending while attending the event. In Santa Cruz 

County, arts attendees spend an average of $29.19 per person, per event as a direct result of their attendance to the 

event. Local businesses that cater to arts and culture audiences reap the rewards of this economic activity. 

 

The 72 participating nonprofit arts and culture organizations reported that the aggregate attendance to their events 

was $16.54 million during 2010. These attendees spent an estimated total of $16.54 million, excluding the cost of 

event admission. The following table demonstrate the total impacts of this spending. 

 

 

 

 

 

* Why exclude the cost of admission? The admissions paid by attendees are excluded from the analysis because those dollars are 

captured in the operating budgets of the participating nonprofit arts and culture organizations and, in turn, are spent by the 

organization. This methodology avoids “double-counting” those dollars in the study analysis. 

TOTAL Economic Impact of Spending by Nonprofit Arts and Culture AUDIENCES  

in Santa Cruz County (excluding the cost of event admission*) 

 
Santa Cruz County 

Median of 

Similar Study Regions 
Pop. 250,000 to 499,999 National Median 

Direct Expenditures $16,543,959 $36,540,347 $21,573,435 

Full-Time Equivalent Jobs 284 923 643 

Resident Household Income $7,048,000 $20,520,500 $12,823,000 

Local Government Revenue $840,000 $1,747,000 $1,084,000 

State Government Revenue $2,047,000 $2,055,000 $1,334,000 

-12-

Item #: 4.A. 2.C.pdf



Arts & Economic Prosperity IV   |   Americans for the Arts  9 

Cultural Tourists Spend More 
 

The 671 audience survey respondents were asked to provide the ZIP code of their primary residence, enabling 

researchers to determine which attendees were local residents (live within Santa Cruz County) and which were 

non-residents (live outside Santa Cruz County). In Santa Cruz County, researchers estimate that 73.6 percent of 

the 566,562 nonprofit arts attendees were residents; 26.4 percent were non-residents. 

 

Non-resident attendees spend an average of 289 percent more per person than local attendees ($64.48 vs. $16.56) 

as a result of their attendance to cultural events. As would be expected from a traveler, higher spending was 

typically found in the categories of lodging, meals, and transportation. When a community attracts cultural 

tourists, it harnesses significant economic rewards.

Event-Related Spending by Arts and Culture Event Attendees Totaled $16.54 million 

in Santa Cruz County (excluding the cost of event admission) 

 

Residents Non-Residents 

All 

Santa Cruz County 

Event Attendees 

Total Attendance 417,111 149,451 566,562 

Percent of Attendees 73.6 percent 26.4 percent 100 percent 

Average Dollars Spent Per Attendee $16.56 $64.48 $29.19 

Direct Event-Related Expenditures $6,907,359 $9,636,600 $16,543,959 

Nonprofit Arts and Culture Event Attendees Spend an Average of $29.19 Per Person 

in Santa Cruz County (excluding the cost of event admission) 

 

Residents Non-Residents 

All 

Santa Cruz County 

Event Attendees 

Refreshments/Snacks During Event $3.36 $5.41 $3.90 

Meals Before/After Event $8.99 $15.10 $10.60 

Souvenirs and Gifts $1.52 $3.80 $2.12 

Clothing and Accessories $0.72 $2.44 $1.18 

Ground Transportation $1.48 $3.20 $1.93 

Event-Related Child Care $0.24 $0.25 $0.24 

Overnight Lodging (one night only) $0.08 $33.57 $8.91 

Other $0.17 $0.71 $0.31 

Total Per Person Spending $16.56 $64.48 $29.19 

-13-

Item #: 4.A. 2.C.pdf



10  Arts & Economic Prosperity IV   |   Americans for the Arts 

Cultural Events Attract New Dollars and Retain Local Dollars  
 

Santa Cruz County’s nonprofit arts and culture sector provides attractions that draw visitors to the community. In 

fact, 74.0 percent of all non-resident survey respondents reported that the primary reason for their trip was 

“specifically to attend this arts/cultural event.” 

 

In addition, 20.3 percent of Santa Cruz County’s non-resident survey respondents reported that they will spend at 

least one night away from home in Santa Cruz County as a direct result of attending the cultural event. Non-

resident attendees who stay overnight in paid lodging spend an average of $231.30 per person as a result of their 

attendance—significantly more than the overall per person average of $64.48 for all non-resident attendees to 

events in Santa Cruz County. 

 

Finally, the audience survey respondents were asked, “If this event were not happening, would you have traveled 

to another community to attend a similar cultural experience?” 

 

 40.4 percent of Santa Cruz County’s resident cultural attendees report that they would have traveled to a 

different community in order to attend a similar cultural experience. 

 61.9 percent of Santa Cruz County’s non-resident cultural attendees report the same. 

 

These figures demonstrate the economic impact of the nonprofit arts and culture in the purest sense. If a 

community does not provide a variety of artistic and cultural experiences, it will fail to attract the new dollars of 

cultural tourists. It will also lose the discretionary spending of its local residents who will travel elsewhere to 

experience the arts. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

Many Cultural Attendees are Artists, Too! 

 62.1 percent of Santa Cruz County’s arts attendees report that they actively participate in the creation 
of the arts (e.g., sing in a choir, play an instrument , act in a community play, paint or draw). 

"The arts community in Santa Cruz County provides incredible enrichment 

to our local economy, creating jobs, generating tax revenue and providing 

access to many facets of entrepreneurship.  The arts sector has been vital to 

our community through enhancing tourism, and in general greatly enhancing 

our way of life in Santa Cruz County.” 

— Teresa Thomae  

Director, Small Business Development Center 

 

-14-

Item #: 4.A. 2.C.pdf



Arts & Economic Prosperity IV   |   Americans for the Arts  11 

Conclusion 
 

The nonprofit arts and culture are a $38.38 million industry in Santa Cruz County—

one that supports 877 full-time equivalent jobs and generates $5.26 million in local 

and state government revenue. Nonprofit arts and culture organizations, which spend 

$21.84 million annually, leverage a remarkable $16.54 million in additional spending 

by arts and culture audiences—spending that pumps vital revenue into local 

restaurants, hotels, retail stores, parking garages, and other businesses. By 

demonstrating that investing in the arts and culture yields economic benefits, Arts & 

Economic Prosperity IV lays to rest a common misconception: that communities 

support the arts and culture at the expense of local economic development. In fact, 

they are investing in an industry that supports jobs, generates government revenue, 

and is a cornerstone of tourism. This report shows conclusively that the arts mean 

business! 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

“As a County Supervisor, former Mayor, and long-time supporter 

of music, art, and theater in our local community, I can attest to 

the direct, positive economic impact that the arts have on our 

local economy.  When the community supports the arts, we also 

support our local restaurants, hotels, retail, not to mention the 

artists themselves and the support staff to make it all possible.  A 

community with a vibrant art scene not only enhances the quality 

of life for residents and visitors but it also contributes to a healthy 

and diverse local economy.” 

— Neal Coonerty 

Supervisor, Third District, County of Santa Cruz 

 

-15-

Item #: 4.A. 2.C.pdf



12  Arts & Economic Prosperity IV   |   Americans for the Arts 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

“The Visual, Applied, and Performing Arts Division at Cabrillo 

College is proud of the multi-faceted role we play in stimulating 

economic and creative vitality in Santa Cruz County. In addition to 

employing approximately 125 full and part-time faculty and staff to 

accomplish our primary mission of arts education, we are also a major 

arts presenter, offering concerts, theatre and dance productions, 

exhibitions, lectures, and workshops to 30,000 patrons per year. In 

addition to graduating creative designers, artists, performers, recording 

arts specialists, theatre technicians, arts educators, and more, we serve 

as a catalyst for increasing patrons’ appetites to invest in other arts 

experiences. Most importantly, Cabrillo College arts programs expand 

the creative capital of our community, improving our citizens’ quality 

of life by increasing their capability to apply creative and innovative 

solutions to a wide variety of local and regional challenges.” 

—  John Graulty 

Dean, Visual, Applied, and Performing Arts, Cabrillo College 

-16-

Item #: 4.A. 2.C.pdf



Arts & Economic Prosperity IV   |   Americans for the Arts  13 

The Arts & Economic Prosperity IV Calculator 
 

To make it easier to compare the economic impacts of different organizations within Santa Cruz County, the 

project researchers calculated the economic impact per $100,000 of direct spending by nonprofit arts and culture 

organizations and their audiences. 

 

Economic Impact Per $100,000 of Direct Spending by ORGANIZATIONS 
 

For every $100,000 in direct spending by a nonprofit arts and culture organization in Santa Cruz County, there 

was the following total economic impact. 

 

An Example of How to Use the Organizational Spending Calculator Table (above): 

 

An administrator from a nonprofit arts and culture organization that has total expenditures of $250,000 wants to 

determine the organization’s total economic impact on full-time equivalent (FTE) employment in Santa Cruz 

County. The administrator would: 

 

1. Determine the amount spent by the nonprofit arts and culture organization; 

2. Divide the total expenditure by 100,000; and 

3. Multiply that figure by the FTE employment ratio per $100,000 for Santa Cruz County. 

 

Thus, $250,000 divided by 100,000 equals 2.5; 2.5 times 2.72 (from the top row of data on Table 1 above) equals 

a total of 6.8 full-time equivalent jobs supported (both directly and indirectly) within Santa Cruz County by that 

nonprofit arts and culture organization. Using the same procedure, the estimate can be calculated for resident 

household income and local and state government revenue. 

TABLE 1: 

Ratios of Economic Impact Per $100,000 of Direct Spending by Nonprofit Arts and Culture Organizations  

in Santa Cruz County 

 
Santa Cruz County 

Median of 

Similar Study Regions 
Pop. = 250,000 to 499,999 National Median 

Full-Time Equivalent Jobs 2.72 3.54 3.46 

Resident Household Income $70,107 $86,526 $82,084 

Local Government Revenue $2,752 $3,913 $3,819 

State Government Revenue $8,095 $5,031 $4,656 

-17-

Item #: 4.A. 2.C.pdf



14  Arts & Economic Prosperity IV   |   Americans for the Arts 

Economic Impact Per $100,000 of Direct Spending by AUDIENCES 

 

The economic impact of event-related spending by arts audiences can also be derived for individual or groups of 

nonprofit arts and culture organizations and events in Santa Cruz County. 

 

The first step is to determine the total estimated event-related spending by arts and culture event attendees 

(excluding the cost of admission). To derive this figure, multiply the average per person event-related expenditure 

in Santa Cruz County by the total event attendance. The ratios of economic impact per $100,000 in direct 

spending can then be used to determine the total economic impact of the total estimated audience spending.

TABLE 2: 

Average Per Person Event-Related Spending by All Arts and Culture Event Attendees 

in Santa Cruz County (excluding the cost of event admission) 

 
Santa Cruz County 

Average of 

Similar Study Regions 
Pop. = 250,000 to 499,999 National Average 

Refreshments/Snacks During Event $3.90 $2.85 $3.02 

Meals Before/After Event $10.60 $8.97 $10.12 

Souvenirs and Gifts $2.12 $2.00 $2.74 

Clothing and Accessories $1.18 $1.20 $1.31 

Ground Transportation $1.93 $2.37 $2.65 

Event-Related Child Care $0.24 $0.24 $0.36 

Overnight Lodging (one night only) $8.91 $2.37 $3.51 

Other $0.31 $0.78 $0.89 

Total Per Person Spending $29.19 $21.90 $24.60 

TABLE 3: 

Ratios of Economic Impact Per $100,000 of Direct Spending by Nonprofit Arts and Culture Audiences  

in Santa Cruz County 

 
Santa Cruz County 

Median of 

Similar Study Regions 
Pop. = 250,000 to 499,999 National Median 

Full-Time Equivalent Jobs 1.72 2.84 2.69 

Resident Household Income $42,602 $62,535 $57,140 

Local Government Revenue $5,077 $5,338 $5,100 

State Government Revenue $12,373 $6,686 $5,802 

-18-

Item #: 4.A. 2.C.pdf



Arts & Economic Prosperity IV   |   Americans for the Arts  15 

An Example of How to Use the Audience Spending Calculator Tables (on the preceding page): 

 

An administrator wants to determine the total economic impact of the 25,000 total attendees to his/her 

organization’s nonprofit arts and culture events on full-time equivalent (FTE) employment in Santa Cruz County. 

The administrator would: 

 

1. Determine the total estimated audience spending by multiplying the average per person expenditure for 

Santa Cruz County by the total attendance to nonprofit arts and culture events; 

2. Divide the resulting total estimated audience spending by 100,000; and 

3. Multiply that figure by the FTE employment ratio per $100,000 for Santa Cruz County. 

 

Thus, 25,000 times $29.19 (from the bottom row of data on Table 2 on the preceding page) equals $729,750; 

$729,750 divided by 100,000 equals 7.30; 7.30 times 1.72 (from the top row of data on Table 3 on the preceding 

page) equals a total of 12.6 full-time equivalent jobs supported (both directly and indirectly) within Santa Cruz 

County by that nonprofit arts and culture organization. Using the same procedure, the estimate can be calculated 

for resident household income and local and state government revenue. 

 

 

Making Comparisons with Similar Study Regions 
 

For the purpose of this research project, the geographic region being studied is defined as Santa Cruz County. 

According to the most recent data available from the U.S. Census Bureau, the population of Santa Cruz County 

was estimated to be 266,776 during 2012. For comparison purposes, more than 300 pages of detailed data tables 

containing the study results for all 182 study regions that participated in the 2012 Arts & Economic Prosperity IV 

national study can be found in Appendix B of the National Statistical Report. The data tables are stratified by 

population, making it easy to compare the findings for Santa Cruz County to the findings for similarly populated 

study regions (as well as any other participating study regions that are considered valid comparison cohorts). 

 

All of the national study publications are available both by download (free) and hardcopy (for purchase) at 

www.AmericansForTheArts.org/EconomicImpact. 

-19-

Item #: 4.A. 2.C.pdf



16  Arts & Economic Prosperity IV   |   Americans for the Arts 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

“When we moved to Santa Cruz 35 years ago, we had no idea that we’d stay 

here so long. One of the key reasons we have stayed is that there are so many 

arts opportunities right down the street from us. We don’t need to drive to San 

Francisco to experience high quality art. Santa Cruz County is an arts bouquet 

and we pick those flowers regularly. We’re proud to be part of a community that 

both values and invests in the arts.” 

—  Rowland Rebele 

Philanthropist and Retired Newspaper Publisher 

 

 

 

"It’s so wonderful to have the economic impact study to help fuel local 

advocacy. The economic facts on the impact of just the nonprofit sector are 

staggering! I think it’s important to make that distinction as there are a lot of arts 

related businesses and artists who contribute even more to our local economy." 

— Linda Levy 
Executive Director, Mountains Art Center 

 

-20-

Item #: 4.A. 2.C.pdf



Arts & Economic Prosperity IV   |   Americans for the Arts  17 

About This Study 
 

The Arts & Economic Prosperity IV study was conducted by Americans for the Arts 

to document the economic impact of the nonprofit arts and culture industry in 182 

communities and regions (139 cities and counties, 31 multi-city or multi-county 

regions, and 10 states, and two individual arts districts)—representing all 50 U.S. 

states and the District of Columbia. 

The diverse communities range in population 

(1,600 to four million) and type (rural to urban). 

The study focuses solely on nonprofit arts and 

culture organizations and their audiences. Public 

arts councils and public presenting 

facilities/institutions are included, as are select 

programs embedded within another organization 

(that have their own budget and play a substantial 

role in the cultural life of the community). The 

study excludes spending by individual artists and 

the for-profit arts and entertainment sector (e.g., 

Broadway or the motion picture industry). Detailed 

expenditure data were collected from 9,721 arts and 

culture organizations and 151,802 of their 

attendees. The project economists, from the 

Georgia Institute of Technology, customized input-

output analysis models for each study region to 

provide specific and reliable economic impact data 

about their nonprofit arts and culture industry, 

specifically full-time equivalent jobs, household 

income, and local and state government revenue. 

 

The 182 Local, Regional, and 

Statewide Study Partners 
Americans for the Arts published a Call for 

Participants in 2010 seeking communities interested 

in participating in the Arts & Economic Prosperity 

IV study. Of the more than 200 potential partners 

that expressed interest, 182 agreed to participate 

and complete four participation criteria: (1) identify 

and code the universe of nonprofit arts and culture 

organizations in their study region; (2) assist 

researchers with the collection of detailed financial 

and attendance data from those organizations; (3) 

conduct audience-intercept surveys at cultural events; 

and (4) pay a modest cost-sharing fee (no community 

was refused participation for an inability to pay). 

 

Arts Council Santa Cruz County contracted with 

Americans for the Arts to conduct a separate 

economic impact analysis focused solely on the 

nonprofit arts and culture industry in Santa Cruz 

County. The methodology used is identical to the 

national study methodology, making it possible to 

compare the results for Santa Cruz County with those 

of the national study participants. 

 

Surveys of Nonprofit Arts and 

Culture ORGANIZATIONS 
Each of the 182 study regions attempted to identify 

its comprehensive universe of nonprofit arts and 

culture organizations using the Urban Institute’s 

National Taxonomy of Exempt Entity (NTEE) 

coding system as a guideline. The NTEE system—

developed by the National Center for Charitable 

Statistics at the Urban Institute—is a definitive 

classification system for nonprofit organizations 

recognized as tax exempt by the Internal Revenue 

Code. This system divides the entire universe of 

nonprofit organizations into 10 Major categories, 

including “Arts, Culture, and Humanities.” The 

Urban Institute reports that 113,000 nonprofit arts 

and culture organizations were registered with the 

IRS in 2010, up from 94,450 in 2005.

-21-

Item #: 4.A. 2.C.pdf



18  Arts & Economic Prosperity IV   |   Americans for the Arts 

The following NTEE “Arts, Culture, and 

Humanities” subcategories were included in this 

study: 

 A01 – Alliances and Advocacy 

 A02 – Management and Technical Assistance 

 A03 – Professional Societies and Associations 

 A05 – Research Institutes and Public Policy Analysis 

 A11 – Single Organization Support 

 A12 – Fund Raising and Fund Distribution 

 A19 – Support (not elsewhere classified) 

 A20 – Arts and Culture (general) 

 A23 – Cultural and Ethnic Awareness 

 A24 – Folk Arts 

 A25 – Arts Education 

 A26 – Arts and Humanities Councils and Agencies 

 A27 – Community Celebrations 

 A30 – Media and Communications (general) 

 A31 – Film and Video 

 A32 – Television 

 A33 – Printing and Publishing 

 A34 – Radio 

 A40 – Visual Arts (general) 

 A50 – Museums (general) 

 A51 – Art Museums 

 A52 – Children’s Museums 

 A53 – Folk Arts Museums 

 A54 – History Museums 

 A56 – Natural History and Natural Science Museums 

 A57 – Science and Technology Museums 

 A60 – Performing Arts (general) 

 A61 – Performing Arts Centers 

 A62 – Dance 

 A63 – Ballet 

 A65 – Theatre 

 A68 – Music 

 A69 – Symphony Orchestras 

 A6A – Opera 

 A6B – Singing and Choral Groups 

 A6C – Bands and Ensembles 

 A6E – Performing Arts Schools 

 A70 – Humanities (general) 

 A80 – Historical Organizations (general) 

 A82 – Historical Societies and Historic Preservation 

 A84 – Commemorative Events 

 A90 – Arts Services (general) 

 A99 – Arts, Culture, and Humanities (miscellaneous) 

In addition, the study partners were encouraged to 

include other types of eligible organizations if they 

play a substantial role in the cultural life of the 

community or if their primary purpose is to promote 

participation in, appreciation for, and understanding 

of the visual, performing, folk, and media arts. These 

include government-owned or government-operated 

cultural facilities and institutions, municipal arts 

agencies and councils, private community arts 

organizations, unincorporated arts groups, living 

collections (such as zoos, aquariums, and botanical 

gardens), university presenters, and arts programs 

that are embedded under the umbrella of a non-arts 

organization or facility (such as a community center 

or church). In short, if it displays the characteristics 

of a nonprofit arts and culture organization, it is 

included. For-profit businesses and individual artists 

were excluded from this study. 

 

Nationally, detailed information was collected from 

9,721 eligible organizations about their fiscal year 

2010 expenditures in more than 40 expenditure 

categories (e.g., labor, local and non-local artists, 

operations, materials, facilities, and asset acquisition) 

as well as about their event attendance, in-kind 

contributions, and volunteerism. Responding 

organizations had budgets ranging from a low of $0 

to a high of $239.7 million. Response rates for the 

182 communities averaged 43.2 percent and ranged 

from 5.3 percent to 100 percent. It is important to 

note that each study region’s results are based solely 

on the actual survey data collected.  No estimates 

have been made to account for non-respondents. 

Therefore, the less-than-100 percent response rates 

suggest an understatement of the economic impact 

findings in most of the individual study regions. 

 

In Santa Cruz County, 72 of the approximately 90 

total eligible nonprofit arts and culture 

organizations identified by Arts Council Santa 

Cruz County participated in this study—an 

overall participation rate of 80 percent.

-22-

Item #: 4.A. 2.C.pdf



Arts & Economic Prosperity IV   |   Americans for the Arts  19 

Surveys of Nonprofit Arts and 
Culture AUDIENCES 
Audience-intercept surveying, a common and 

accepted research method, was conducted in all 182 

of the study regions to measure event-related 

spending by nonprofit arts and culture audiences.  

Patrons were asked to complete a short survey 

while attending an event. Nationally, a total of 

151,802 valid and usable attendees completed the 

survey for an average of 834 surveys per study 

region. The randomly selected respondents 

provided itemized expenditure data on attendance-

related activities such as meals, souvenirs, 

transportation, and lodging. Data were collected 

throughout 2011 (to guard against seasonal spikes 

or drop-offs in attendance) as well as at a broad 

range of both paid and free events (a night at the 

opera will typically yield more spending than a 

weekend children’s theater production or a free 

community music festival, for example). The 

survey respondents provided information about the 

entire party with whom they were attending the 

event. With an overall average travel party size of 

2.69 people, these data actually represent the 

spending patterns of more than 408,000 attendees. 

 

A total of 671 valid and usable audience-

intercept surveys were collected from attendees 

to arts and culture performances, events, and 

exhibits that took place in Santa Cruz County 

during 2013. 

 

Economic Analysis 
A common theory of community growth is that an 

area must export goods and services if it is to 

prosper economically. This theory is called 

economic-base theory, and it depends on dividing 

the economy into two sectors: the export sector and 

the local sector. Exporters, such as automobile 

manufacturers, hotels, and department stores, obtain 

income from customers outside of the community. 

This “export income” then enters the local economy 

in the form of salaries, purchases of materials, 

dividends, and so forth, and becomes income to local 

residents. Much of it is re-spent locally; some, 

however, is spent for goods imported from outside of 

the community. The dollars re-spent locally have an 

economic impact as they continue to circulate 

through the local economy. This theory applies to arts 

organizations as well as to other producers. 

 

Studying Economic Impact Using 

Input-Output Analysis 
To derive the most reliable economic impact data, 

input-output analysis is used to measure the impact of 

expenditures by nonprofit arts and culture 

organizations and their audiences. This is a highly 

regarded type of economic analysis that has been the 

basis for two Nobel Prizes. The models are systems 

of mathematical equations that combine statistical 

methods and economic theory in an area of study 

called econometrics. They trace how many times a 

dollar is re-spent within the local economy before it 

leaks out, and it quantifies the economic impact of 

each round of spending. This form of economic 

analysis is well suited for this study because it can be 

customized specifically to each study region. 

 

To complete the analysis for Santa Cruz County, 

project economists customized an input-output model 

based on the local dollar flow between 533 finely 

detailed industries within the economy of Santa Cruz 

County. This was accomplished by using detailed 

data on employment, incomes, and government 

revenues provided by the U.S. Department of 

Commerce (County Business Patterns, the Regional 

Economic Information System, and the Survey of 

State and Local Finance) and local tax data (sales 

taxes, property taxes, and miscellaneous local option 

taxes), as well as the survey data from the responding 

nonprofit arts and culture organizations and their 

audiences. 

 

-23-

Item #: 4.A. 2.C.pdf



20  Arts & Economic Prosperity IV   |   Americans for the Arts 

The Input-Output Process 
The input-output model is based on a table of 533 

finely detailed industries showing local sales and 

purchases. The local and state economy of each 

community is researched so the table can be 

customized for each community. The basic 

purchase patterns for local industries are derived 

from a similar table for the U.S. economy for 2007 

(the latest detailed data available from the U.S. 

Department of Commerce). The table is first 

reduced to reflect the unique size and industry mix 

of the local economy, based on data from County 

Business Patterns and the Regional Economic 

Information System of the U.S. Department of 

Commerce. It is then adjusted so that only 

transactions with local businesses are recorded in 

the inter-industry part of the table. This technique 

compares supply and demand and estimates the 

additional imports or exports required to make total 

supply equal total demand. The resulting table 

shows the detailed sales and purchase patterns of 

the local industries. The 533-industry table is then 

aggregated to reflect the general activities of 32 

industries plus local households, creating a total of 

33 industries. To trace changes in the economy, 

each column is converted to show the direct 

requirements per dollar of gross output for each 

sector. This direct-requirements table represents the 

“recipe” for producing the output of each industry. 

 

The economic impact figures for Arts & Economic 

Prosperity IV were computed using what is called 

an “iterative” procedure. This process uses the sum 

of a power series to approximate the solution to the 

economic model. This is what the process looks like 

in matrix algebra: 

 

T = IX + AX + A2X + A3X + ... + AnX. 

 

T is the solution, a column vector of changes in 

each industry’s outputs caused by the changes 

represented in the column vector X. A is the 33 by 

33 direct-requirements matrix. This equation is used 

to trace the direct expenditures attributable to 

nonprofit arts organizations and their audiences. A 

multiplier effect table is produced that displays the 

results of this equation. The total column is T. The 

initial expenditure to be traced is IX (I is the identity 

matrix, which is operationally equivalent to the 

number 1 in ordinary algebra). Round 1 is AX, the 

result of multiplying the matrix A by the vector X 

(the outputs required of each supplier to produce the 

goods and services purchased in the initial change 

under study). Round 2 is A2X, which is the result of 

multiplying the matrix A by Round 1 (it answers the 

same question applied to Round 1: “What are the 

outputs required of each supplier to produce the 

goods and services purchased in Round 1 of this 

chain of events?”). Each of columns 1 through 12 in 

the multiplier effects table represents one of the 

elements in the continuing but diminishing chain of 

expenditures on the right side of the equation. Their 

sum, T, represents the total production required in the 

local economy in response to arts activities. 

 

Calculation of the total impact of the nonprofit arts 

on the outputs of other industries (T) can now be 

converted to impacts on the final incomes to local 

residents by multiplying the outputs produced by the 

ratios of household income to output and 

employment to output. Thus, the employment impact 

of changes in outputs due to arts expenditures is 

calculated by multiplying elements in the column of 

total outputs by the ratio of employment to output for 

the 32 industries in the region. Changes in household 

incomes, local government revenues, and state 

government revenues due to nonprofit arts 

expenditures are similarly transformed. The same 

process is also used to show the direct impact on 

incomes and revenues associated with the column of 

direct local expenditures. 

 

A comprehensive description of the methodology 

used to complete the national study is available at 

www.AmericansForTheArts.org/EconomicImpact. 

-24-

Item #: 4.A. 2.C.pdf



Arts & Economic Prosperity IV   |   Americans for the Arts  21 

Frequently Used Terms 
 

This section provides a glossary of economic impact terminology. 

 

Cultural Tourism 
Travel directed toward experiencing the arts, heritage, and special character of a place. 

 

Direct Economic Impact 
A measure of the economic effect of the initial expenditure within a community. For example, when the 

symphony pays its players, each musician’s salary, the associated government taxes, and full-time equivalent 

employment status represent the direct economic impact. 

 

Direct Expenditures 
The first round of expenditures in the economic cycle. A paycheck from the symphony to the violin player and a 

ballet company’s purchase of dance shoes are examples of direct expenditures. 

 

Econometrics 
The process of using statistical methods and economic theory to develop a system of mathematical equations that 

measures the flow of dollars between local industries. The input-output model developed for this study is an 

example of an econometric model. 

 

Econometrician 
An economist who designs, builds, and maintains econometric models. 

 

Full-Time Equivalent (FTE) Jobs 
A term that describes the total amount of labor employed. Economists measure FTE jobs—not the total number of 

employees—because it is a more accurate measure of total employment. It is a manager’s discretion to hire one 

full-time employee, two half-time employees, four quarter-time employees, etc. Almost always, more people are 

affected than are reflected in the number of FTE jobs reported due to the abundance of part-time employment, 

especially in the nonprofit arts and culture industry. 

 

Indirect Economic Impact 
Each time a dollar changes hands, there is a measurable economic impact. When people and businesses receive 

money, they re-spend much of that money locally. Indirect impact measures the effect of this re-spending on jobs, 

household income, and revenue to local and state government. It is often referred to as secondary spending or the 

dollars “rippling” through a community. When funds are eventually spent non-locally, they are considered to have 

“leaked” out of the community and therefore cease to have a local economic impact. Indirect impact includes the 

impact of all rounds of spending (except for the initial expenditure) until the dollars have completely “leaked out” 

of the local economy. 

-25-

Item #: 4.A. 2.C.pdf



22  Arts & Economic Prosperity IV   |   Americans for the Arts 

Input-Output Analysis 
A system of mathematical equations that combines statistical methods and economic theory in an area of 

economic study called econometrics. Economists use this model (occasionally called an inter-industry model) to 

measure how many times a dollar is re-spent in, or “ripples” through, a community before it “leaks out” of the 

local economy by being spent non-locally (see Leakage below). The model is based on a matrix that tracks the 

dollar flow between 533 finely detailed industries in each community. It allows researchers to determine the 

economic impact of local spending by nonprofit arts and culture organizations on jobs, household income, and 

government revenue. 

 

Leakage 
The money that community members spend outside of the local economy. This non-local spending has no 

economic impact within the community. A ballet company purchasing shoes from a non-local manufacturer is an 

example of leakage. If the shoe company were local, the expenditure would remain within the community and 

create another round of spending by the shoe company. 

 

Multiplier (often called Economic Activity Multiplier) 

An estimate of the number of times that a dollar changes hands within the community before it leaks out of the 

community (for example, the theater pays the actor, the actor spends money at the grocery store, the grocery store 

pays its cashier, and so on). This estimate is quantified as one number by which all expenditures are multiplied. 

For example, if the arts are a $10 million industry and a multiplier of three is used, then it is estimated that these 

arts organizations have a total economic impact of $30 million. The convenience of a multiplier is that it is one 

simple number; its shortcoming, however, is its reliability. Users rarely note, however, that the multiplier is 

developed by making gross estimates of the industries within the local economy with no allowance for differences 

in the characteristics of those industries, usually resulting in an overestimation of the economic impact. In 

contrast, the input-output model employed in Arts & Economic Prosperity IV is a type of economic analysis 

tailored specifically to each community and, as such, provides more reliable and specific economic impact results. 

 

Resident Household Income (often called Personal Income) 

The salaries, wages, and entrepreneurial income residents earn and use to pay for food, mortgages, and other 

living expenses. It is important to note that resident household income is not just salary. When a business receives 

money, for example, the owner usually takes a percentage of the profit, resulting in income for the owner. 

 

Revenue to Local and State Government 
Local and state government revenue is not derived exclusively from income, property, sales, and other taxes. It 

also includes license fees, utility fees, user fees, and filing fees. Local government revenue includes funds to city 

and county government, schools, and special districts. 

-26-

Item #: 4.A. 2.C.pdf



Arts & Economic Prosperity IV   |   Americans for the Arts  23 

Frequently Asked Questions 
 

This section answers some common questions about this study and the methology 

used to complete it. 

 

How were the 182 participating communities and regions selected? 
In 2010, Americans for the Arts published a Call for Participants for communities interested in participating in the 

Arts & Economic Prosperity IV study. Of the more than 200 participants that expressed interest, 182 agreed to 

participate and complete four participation criteria: (1) identify and code the universe of nonprofit arts and culture 

organizations in their study region; (2) assist researchers with the collection of detailed financial and attendance 

data from those organizations; (3) conduct audience-intercept surveys at cultural events; and (4) pay a modest 

cost-sharing fee (no community was refused participation for an inability to pay). 

 

How were the eligible nonprofit arts organizations in each community selected? 
Local partners attempted to identify their universe of nonprofit arts and culture organizations using the Urban 

Institute’s National Taxonomy of Exempt Entity (NTEE) codes as a guideline. Eligible organizations included 

those whose primary purpose is to promote appreciation for and understanding of the visual, performing, folk, and 

media arts. Public arts councils, public presenting facilities or institutions, and embedded organizations that have 

their own budget also were included if they play a substantial role in the cultural life of the community. For-profit 

businesses and individual artists are excluded from this study. 

 

What type of economic analysis was done to determine the study results? 
An input-output analysis model was customized for each of the participating communities and regions to 

determine the local economic impact their nonprofit arts and culture organizations and arts audiences. Americans 

for the Arts, which conducted the research, worked with highly regarded economists to design the input-output 

model used for this study. 

 

What other information was collected in addition to the arts surveys? 
In addition to detailed expenditure data provided by the surveyed organizations, extensive wage, labor, tax, and 

commerce data were collected from local, state, and federal governments for use in the input-output model. 

 

Why doesn’t this study use a multiplier? 
When many people hear about an economic impact study, they expect the result to be quantified in what is often 

called a multiplier or an economic activity multiplier. The economic activity multiplier is an estimate of the 

number of times a dollar changes hands within the community (e.g., a theater pays its actor, the actor spends 

money at the grocery store, the grocery store pays the cashier, and so on). It is quantified as one number by which 

expenditures are multiplied. The convenience of the multiplier is that it is one simple number. Users rarely note, 

however, that the multiplier is developed by making gross estimates of the industries within the local economy 

and does not allow for differences in the characteristics of those industries. Using an economic activity multiplier 

usually results in an overestimation of the economic impact and therefore lacks reliability. 

-27-

Item #: 4.A. 2.C.pdf



24  Arts & Economic Prosperity IV   |   Americans for the Arts 

Why are the admissions expenses excluded from the analysis of audience 
spending? 
Researchers make the assumption that any admissions dollars paid by event attendees are typically collected as 

revenue for the organization that is presenting the event. The organization then spends those dollars. The 

admissions paid by audiences are excluded because those dollars are captured in the operating budgets of the 

participating nonprofit arts and culture organizations. This methodology avoids “double-counting” those dollars in 

the analysis. 

 

How is the economic impact of arts and culture organizations different from 
other industries? 
Any time money changes hands there is a measurable economic impact. Social service organizations, libraries, 

and all entities that spend money have an economic impact. What makes the economic impact of arts and culture 

organizations unique is that, unlike most other industries, they induce large amounts of related spending by their 

audiences. For example, when patrons attend a performing arts event, they may purchase dinner at a restaurant, eat 

dessert after the show, and return home and pay the baby-sitter. All of these expenditures have a positive and 

measurable impact on the economy. 

 

Will my local legislators believe these results? 
Yes, this study makes a strong argument to legislators, but you may need to provide them with some extra help. It 

will be up to the user of this report to educate the public about economic impact studies in general and the results 

of this study in particular. The user may need to explain (1) the study methodology used; (2) that economists 

created an input-output model for each community and region in the study; and (3) the difference between input-

output analysis and a multiplier. The good news is that as the number of economic impact studies completed by 

arts organizations and other special interest areas increases, so does the sophistication of community leaders 

whose influence these studies are meant to affect. Today, most decision makers want to know what methodology 

is being used and how and where the data were gathered. 

 

You can be confident that the input-output analysis used in this study is a highly regarded model in the field of 

economics (the basis of two Nobel Prizes in economics). However, as in any professional field, there is 

disagreement about procedures, jargon, and the best way to determine results. Ask 12 artists to define art and you 

may get 12 answers; expect the same of economists. You may meet an economist who believes that these studies 

should be done differently (for example, a cost-benefit analysis of the arts). 

 

How can a community not participating in the Arts and Economic Prosperity IV 
study apply these results? 
Because of the variety of communities studied and the rigor with which the Arts & Economic Prosperity IV study 

was conducted, nonprofit arts and culture organizations located in communities that were not part of the study can 

estimate their local economic impact. Estimates can be derived by using the Arts & Economic Prosperity IV 

Calculator (found at www.AmericansForTheArts.org/EconomicImpact).  Additionally, users will find sample 

PowerPoint presentations, press releases, Opinion-Editorials (i.e., Op-Eds), and other strategies for proper 

application of their estimated economic impact data. 

 

 

-28-

Item #: 4.A. 2.C.pdf



Arts & Economic Prosperity IV   |   Americans for the Arts  25 

Acknowledgments 
 

Americans for the Arts expresses its gratitude to the many organizations and people 

who made Arts & Economic Prosperity IV: The Economic Impact of Nonprofit Arts 

and Culture Organizations and Their Audiences in Santa Cruz County possible and 

assisted in its coordination and production. Funding for this project was provided by 

Arts Council Santa Cruz County,which also served as the local project partner and as 

such was responsible for the study’s local implentation and data collection. 

Additional funding was provided by the County of Santa  Cruz, City of Santa Cruz, 

Community Foundation Santa Cruz County, and the Santa Cruz Conference and 

Visitors Council. Hotel Paradox was the lodging partner for the study. 
 

Special thanks to the John D. and Catherine T. 

MacArthur Foundation and The Ruth Lilly Fund of 

Americans for the Arts for their financial support of the 

national implementation of Arts & Economic 

Prosperity IV. 

Thanks also to the Cultural Data Project (CDP), a 

collaborative project of the Greater Philadelphia 

Cultural Alliance, The Greater Pittsburgh Arts Council, 

Pennsylvania Council on the Arts, The Pew Charitable 

Trusts, The William Penn Foundation, and The Heinz 

Endowments (in each participating state, the CDP is 

also the result of a collaborative partnership of public 

and private funders and advocacy agencies). The CDP 

was created to strengthen arts and culture by 

documenting and disseminating information on the arts 

and culture sector. CDP data were used in the  

economic impact analysis for all study regions located 

in Arizona, California, Illinois, Maryland, 

Massachusetts, Michigan, New York, Ohio, 

Pennsylvania, and Rhode Island. For more information 

about the Cultural Data Project, visit 

www.culturaldata.org. 

 

Santa Cruz County’s Participating 
Nonprofit Arts and Culture Patrons 
Additionally, this study could not have been completed 

without the cooperation of the 671 arts and culture 

audience members who generously took the time to 

complete the audience-intercept survey while attending 

a performance, event, or exhibit within Santa Cruz 

County. 

Santa Cruz County’s Participating 
Nonprofit Arts and Culture 
Organizations 
This study could not have been completed without the 

cooperation of the 72 nonprofit arts and culture 

organizations in Santa Cruz County, listed below, that 

provided detailed financial and event attendance 

information about their organization. 

Aptos Community Foundation; Aptos History Museum; Cabrillo 

Festival of Contemporary Music; Cabrillo Stage; Cadenza; California 
Association of Museums; Camp Tannery Arts; Catamaran Literary 

Reader; Children's Art Foundation (Stone Soup); Community Music 

School of Santa Cruz; Arts Council Santa Cruz County; Ensemble 
Monterey Chamber Orchestra; Friends of Olympia Station/Tandy Beal; 

Friends of Santa Cruz State Parks; International Musical Saw 

Association; Japanese Cultural Fair; Jazz Society of Santa Cruz County; 
Jewel Theatre Company; Juneteenth; KUSP Public Radio; Kuumbwa 

Jazz Center; Market Street Theatre; Motion Pacific; Mount Madonna 

School; Mountain Parks Foundation; MoveSpeakSpin; Museo Eduardo 
Carrillo; Museum of Art and History @ the McPherson Center; New 

Music Works; Pacific Rim Film Festival; Pacific Voices; Pajaro Valley 

Arts Council; Pajaro Valley Performing Arts Association; Performance 
Projects; Poetry Santa Cruz; Regional Artisans Association; San 

Lorenzo Valley Historical Society; San Lorenzo Valley Mountain 

Community Theater; Santa Cruz Art League; Santa Cruz Ballet Theatre; 
Santa Cruz Baroque Festival; Santa Cruz Chamber Players; Santa Cruz 

Chorale/Musical Arts of Santa Cruz; Santa Cruz City Arts; Santa Cruz 

Civic Auditorium; Santa Cruz County Actors Theatre; Santa Cruz 
County Art of Guitar Festival; Santa Cruz County Music Teachers 

Association; Santa Cruz County Symphony; Santa Cruz County Youth 

Symphony; Santa Cruz Dance; Santa Cruz Film Festival; Santa Cruz 

Fringe Festival; Santa Cruz Indian Council; Santa Cruz Jazz Festival; 

Santa Cruz Jewish Film Festival; Santa Cruz Mountains Art Center; 

Santa Cruz Museum of Natural History; Santa Cruz Opera Society; 
Santa Cruz Surfing Club Preservation Society; Scotts Valley Performing 

Arts; Seymour Marine Discovery Center; Shakespeare Santa Cruz; 

Stamping Zebra Dance Theatre; Tannery Arts Center; Tannery Arts 
Lecture Series; Tannery World Dance & Cultural Center; The 418 

Project; UCSC ArtsBridge; Waddell Creek Association; Watsonville 

Taiko Group; and William James Association. 

 

-29-

Item #: 4.A. 2.C.pdf



26  Arts & Economic Prosperity IV   |   Americans for the Arts 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

"One of the keys to building and sustaining communities and promoting 

high quality economic development is support and funding of the arts. We 

have witnessed, in some states, decreased support of the arts which is 

counterproductive and a major step backward. We need to emphasize that 

potential employers look at enrichment of lives as well as schools, 

hospitals, libraries, and other essential services for the communities in 

which they want to locate. We need to continue—and increase—our 

support for the arts. In today’s competitive marketplace, it has never been 

truer that supporting the arts means business." 

— Senator Steve Morris 

President, National Conference of State Legislatures 

"The Committee Encouraging Corporate Philanthropy (CECP), which is active 

in measuring trends and best practices in corporate giving to the arts, values the 

far-reaching research and leadership of Americans for the Arts, demonstrated in 

the Arts & Economic Prosperity™ series.” 

— Charles H. Moore 

Executive Director, Committee Encouraging Corporate Philanthropy 

-30-

Item #: 4.A. 2.C.pdf



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Thefollowing national organizations partner with Americans fo r the Arts to 
help public and private sector feaders understand the economic and social 
benefits tha t the arts bring to their communities, states, and the nation. 

~ 
L <!rantmakers in the Arts 

Supporting a Creative America 

, Destination 
- .:'~ Marketing 

AssociatiOn IntematJOOal 

Business Civic 
l eadership Cente r 
~-...~ .. -.. - .. -

I 

"'\\ N ATIONAL CONFEIUNCE 
IIIIII of STATE lEGISlATUIUS 

National Laagua of Cit/as 

® THE CONFERENCE BOARD 
Trusted Insights for Business Worldwide (:J" 

* AMERICANS 
fortheARTS 

1000 Vermont Avenue, NW, 6th Floor 

Washington, DC 20005 

T 202.371.2830 

P 202.371.0424 

E research@artsusa.org 

www.AmericansForTheArts.org 

-31-

Item #: 4.A. 2.C.pdf

Thefollowing national organizations partner with Americansfor the Arts to 
help public and private sector leaders understand the economic and social 
benefits that the arts bring to their communities, states, and the nation. 

'IF 
~Grantmakers in the Arts 

Supporting a Creative America 

, Destination 
-.. '~ Marketing 

AssociatlOO IntematlOl'lai 

Business Civic 
Leadership Center 

I 
ni\\ NATIONAL CONfEl'.ENCE 

111111 of STATE lECISLATUI'.[s 

® THE CONFERENCE BOARD 
Trusted Insights for Business Worldwide (:J" 

'* AMERICANS 
fo<lheARTS 

1000 Vermont Avenue, NW, 6th Floor 

Washington, DC 20005 

T 202.371.2830 

F 202.371.0424 

E research@artsusa.org 

www.AmericansForTheArts.org 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-32-



ADDITIONAL MATERIAL − ITEM 9.C. 
4-10-14 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

 

1 
 

MUTUAL INDEMNITY AGREEMENT  
RE: JUNIOR LIFEGUARD 

INSTRUCTOR TRAINING SERVICES 
 

 This Mutual Indemnity Agreement (“Agreement”) is made and entered into by and 
between the CITY OF SANTA CRUZ, a charter city and municipal corporation (“SANTA 
CRUZ”) and the CITY OF CAPITOLA, a general law city and municipal corporation 
(“CAPITOLA”), (hereinafter collectively referred to as “Parties” or individually as “Party”), 
both of which are public entities organized and existing under and by virtue of the laws of the 
State of California.  This Agreement will be effective as of _________________, 2014. 

      RECITALS 

WHEREAS, each Party to this Agreement provides a Junior Lifeguard program; 

 WHEREAS, Santa Cruz through its Fire Department provides lifeguard services to 
CAPITOLA at CAPITOLA Main Beach pursuant to the Agreement for Lifeguard Services 
entered on May 25, 2012, which has been extended and is currently in effect; 

 WHEREAS, Santa Cruz Fire Department, Marine Safety Division is a certified United 
States Lifesaving Association (USLA) Chapter and therefore qualified to provide open water 
lifeguard training;  

WHEREAS, CAPITOLA seeks a cost-effective and efficient option to train Junior 
Lifeguard Instructors pursuant to a USLA certified training program; 

 WHEREAS, Parties now wish to agree upon the responsibility and liability for the 
provision of Junior Lifeguard Instructor training services, under the terms and conditions 
described in this Agreement. 

 NOW THEREFORE, the Parties agree as follows: 

1. SERVICES.  Santa Cruz Fire Department, through its lifeguards and lifeguard 
supervisors, shall provide lifeguard training to CAPITOLA Junior Lifeguard 
Instructors to complete the requirements for open water beach lifeguards as follows: 
 

a) SANTA CRUZ shall annually, for a total of 40 hours, train a maximum of 24 
Junior Lifeguard Instructors with the goal that the Junior Lifeguard Instructors 
will complete the requirements for open water beach lifeguards trained under a 
certified USLA program.   
 

b) At a minimum, said training shall include sixteen hours of recurrent training in 
lifeguarding, first aid and cardiopulmonary resuscitation (CPR). The Santa Cruz 
Fire Department Marine Safety Division is a United States Lifesaving Association 
(USLA) advanced agency member and all training provided pursuant to this 
Agreement shall adhere to and comply with USLA training standards.   

 

-33-

Item #: 4.B. 9.C.pdf



ADDITIONAL MATERIAL − ITEM 9.C. 
4-10-14 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

 

2 
 

c) Junior Lifeguard Instructors may become open water lifeguards by participating 
and successfully completing either: 1) SANTA CRUZ Fire Department’s Marine 
Division Rookie School, or 2) an equivalent training session as determined by the 
Marine Safety Division of the Santa Cruz Fire Department.   
 

d) SANTA CRUZ makes no guarantee, warrantee, or other assurances that the 
Junior Lifeguard Instructor trainees will successfully complete the training 
requirements to becoming open water beach lifeguards. Any person who fails to 
successfully complete the training requirements will not be endorsed as an open 
water lifeguard. 
 

2. SERVICES MANAGER. CAPITOLA agrees to assign a CAPITOLA employee as 
the project manager to administer the contract and provide administrative services 
relating to this program. 
 

3. TERM. The term of this Agreement will commence on ______ and terminate one 
year from the same date. The term of this Agreement may be extended annually by 
mutual agreement of the Parties evidenced in writing as an amendment to this 
Agreement. 
 

4. COMPENSATION. For all Junior Lifeguard Instructor training services provided by 
SANTA CRUZ pursuant to this Agreement, including all equipment used by Santa 
Cruz in connection therewith and all expenses incurred by SANTA CRUZ in 
connection therewith, CAPITOLA shall pay SANTA CRUZ a total of $4,500. Said 
$4,500 shall be remitted by CAPITOLA to SANTA CRUZ in a single lump sum 
payment due and payable on or about May 15th. 
 

5. MUTUAL INDEMNIFICATION. Each Party agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold 
the other Party, its officers, employees, agents harmless from any and all claims, 
liability, losses, expenses, attorneys, fees or costs arising out of said Party’s 
respective employees’, officers’ or agents’ negligent acts, errors, omissions or willful 
misconduct while performing their obligations pursuant to this Agreement, but only 
in proportion to and to the extent such liability, losses, expenses, attorneys’ fees, costs 
or claims for injury or damages are caused by the negligent or intentional acts or 
omissions of said Party, its respective officers, employees, or agents.  For purposes of 
this provision none of the Santa CruzSANTA CRUZ personnel who provide services 
pursuant to this Agreement shall be construed to be, or considered, Capitola 
CAPITOLA officers, employees or agents.   

 

6. INSURANCE.   Each Party shall insure its activities in connection with this 
Agreement and obtain, keep in force and maintain as follows: 
A. Commercial General Liability Insurance of at least $1 Million; 
B. Worker’s Compensation Insurance as required by California law. 

 

7. TERMINATION WITHOUT CAUSE. Each Party may terminate this Agreement, 
without cause, by giving written notice to the other Party. Such termination shall be 
effective thirty (30) days following receipt of written notice. 

 

-34-

Item #: 4.B. 9.C.pdf



ADDITIONAL MATERIAL − ITEM 9.C. 
4-10-14 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

 

3 
 

8. TERMINATION FOR CAUSE. Should any Party be in default of any covenant or 
condition hereof, the other Party may immediately terminate this Agreement for cause 
if the defaulting Party fails to cure the default within ten (10) calendar days of 
receiving a written notice of the default. 
 

9. NON-ASSIGNABILITY. This Agreement shall not be assigned by either Party 
without first obtaining the express written consent of the other Party. 
 

10. NOTICES. Any and all notices or other communications required or permitted by this 
Agreement or by law to be served on or given to the Parties shall be in writing and 
shall be deemed duly served and given when personally or electronically delivered to 
the Party to whom directed or in lieu of such personal or electronic service when 
deposited in the United States mail, postage paid to: 
 

City of Capitola 
420 Capitola Ave 
Capitola CA 95010 
Attn: City Manager 
Telephone: (831) 475-7300 
 

City of Santa Cruz 
809 Center Street, Room 10 
Santa Cruz CA 95060 
Attn: City Manager 
Telephone: (831) 420-5010 
 

11. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. The Parties agree that this Agreement constitutes the sole 
and only Agreement between them concerning lifeguard training for Junior Lifeguard 
Training servicesInstructors and correctly sets forth their obligations and duties with 
respect to each other. 

 

12. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended only by written consent of the 
Parties. 

 

13. SUBJECT HEADINGS. The subject headings of the paragraphs in this Agreement 
are included solely for the purposes of convenience and reference, and shall not be 
deemed to explain, modify, limit, amplify or aid in the meaning, construction or 
interpretation of any provision of this Agreement.  

 

14. NO INTERPRETATION AGAINST DRAFTING. This Agreement has been 
negotiated at arm’s length between the Parties hereto. Accordingly, any rule or law 
(including California Civil Code §1635 et seq.) or legal decision that would require 
interpretation of any ambiguities in this Agreement against the Party that has drafted 
the applicable provision, is not applicable and is waived. The provisions of this 
Agreement shall be interpreted in a reasonable manner to effect the purpose and 
intent of the Parties. 

 

15. EXECUTE IN COUNTERPARTS. The Parties agree that there shall be two originals 
of this Agreement, which shall be identical in all respects, including form and 
substance. The Parties may execute this Agreement in two or more counterparts, 

-35-

Item #: 4.B. 9.C.pdf



ADDITIONAL MATERIAL − ITEM 9.C. 
4-10-14 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

 

4 
 

which shall, in the aggregate, be deemed an original but all of which, together, shall 
constitute one and the same instrument.   A copy of this executed Agreement shall be 
deemed as valid as the original. 
 

16. GOVERNING LAW. This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with and 
governed by the laws of the State of California. 

 

17. WAIVER OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST.  Each Party has considered the conflict of 
interest and fully understands the possible adverse consequences of the simultaneous 
representation by the same legal counsel in the preparation of this Agreement.  Each 
Party understands that it has the right to seek the advice of independent legal counsel 
on its own behalf on the conflict of interest issue and also relating to this Agreement.  
Each Party hereby agrees to waive the conflict of interest in the continued 
representation by the same legal counsel relating to this Agreement.  

The Parties acknowledge and accept the terms and conditions of this Agreement as 
evidenced by the following signatures of their duly authorized representatives.  

 

CITY OF CAPITOLA, a Municipal Corporation 
 
 
By:       
Name: Jamie Goldstein 
Its: City Manager 
Date:         
 
 
CITY OF SANTA CRUZ, a Municipal Corporation 
 
 
By:       
Name: Martin Bernal 
Its: City Manager 
Date:       
 
 
 

Approved as to form: 
 
 

       By:      
      John G. Barisone, City Attorney 
      For City of Santa Cruz and City of Capitola 
 
 

 

 

-36-

Item #: 4.B. 9.C.pdf



ADDITIONAL MATERIAL -ITEM 10.A. Ilell/\ /0. A-4-10-14 CITY COUNCIL MEETING -
fJ~ki/a,c/- Cos-f 

Preliminary Cost Estimate for McGregor Park £.s/;/Vt lV~ 414/2014 

Material Unit Quantity Unit Cost Cost 
clearing and demo each 1 $1,500.00 $1,500.00 
tree removal and stump grinding each 1 $2,200.00 $2,200.00 
grading each 1 $3,500.00 $3,500.00 

Asphalt parking for ADA sq. ft. 468 $4.00 $1,872.00 2" thick 
Asphalt (skate park) sq. ft. 4000 $4.00 $16,000.00 2" thick 
Base for ADA parking and skate park cu. yd. 170 $90.00 $15,300.00 4" thick 
DG walkways and access cu. yd. 15 $300.00 $4,500.00 2" thick 
DG seating area cu. yd. 4 $300.00 $1,200.00 2" thick 
Base for DG walkways and access cu. yd. 23 $90.00 $2,070.00 3" thick 
Base for DG seating area cu. yd. 5 $90.00 $450.00 3" thick 
Gravel parking cu. yd. 170 $90.00 $15,300.00 6" thick 
Concrete wheel stops each 30 $50.00 $1,500.00 
Bioswale sq. ft. 513 $12.00 $6,156.00 

3' split rail fence (perimeter) lin. ft. 665 $12.00 $7,980.00 lif 00·1) 
3' split rail fence (kid's play area) lin. ft. 120 $12.00 $1,440.00 J 
3' wood and wire fence (dog park) lin. ft. 625 $10.00 $6,250.00 
3'h x 3'w wood and wire gate (dog park) each 2 $500.00 $1,000.00 
3'h x 14'w wood and wire gate (dog park) _ each 2 $1,000.00 $2,000.00 
4' chain link fence (skate park) lin. ft. 420 $12.00 $5,040.00 
4.'h x 8'w chain link gate (skate park) each 1 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 
metal vehicle gate at parking lot entry each 1 $1,200.00 $1,200.00 

LED Solar light each 3 $1,200.00 $3,600.00 
bench each 2 $900.00 $1,800.00 
dog cleanup station each 2 $325.00 $650.00 
trash receptacle each 2 $800.00 $1,600.00 
recycling receptacle each 2 $800.00 $1,600.00 
bike rack each 2 $400.00 $800.00 
Drinking Fountain each 2 $3,000.00 $6,000.00 
Game Table each 1 $850.00 $850.00 

~. 

Irrigation system each 1 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 

Planting 
24 in. box trees each 7 $350.00 $2,450.00 
5 gallons shrubs each 68 $30.00 $2,040.00 
1 gallon shrubs each 193 $18.00 $3,474.00 
Bioswale plant plugs each 82 $1.50 $123.00 

Subtotal $123,445.00 
10% Contigency $12,344.50 
Total $135,789.50 

-37-

Item #: 4.C. 10.A.pdf/1 
I 

ADDITIONAL MATERIAL -ITEM 10.A. 
4-10-14 CITY COUNCIL MEETING -

fJ~ki/a,c/- Cos-f 
Preliminary Cost Estimate for McGregor Park £.s/;/Vt lV~ 414/2014 

Material Unit Quantity Unit Cost Cost 
clearing and demo each 1 $1,500.00 $1,500.00 
tree removal and stump grinding each 1 $2,200.00 $2,200.00 
grading each 1 $3,500.00 $3,500.00 

Asphalt parking for ADA sq. ft. 468 $4.00 $1,872.00 2" thick 
Asphalt (skate park) sq. ft. 4000 $4.00 $16,000.00 2" thick 
Base for ADA parking and skate park cu. yd. 170 $90.00 $15,300.00 4" thick 
DG walkways and access cu. yd. 15 $300.00 $4,500.00 2" thick 
DG seating area cu. yd. 4 $300.00 $1,200.00 2" thick 
Base for DG walkways and access cu. yd. 23 $90.00 $2,070.00 3" thick 
Base for DG seating area cu. yd. 5 $90.00 $450.00 3" thick 
Gravel parking cu. yd. 170 $90.00 $15,300.00 6" thick 
Concrete wheel stops each 30 $50.00 $1,500.00 
Bioswale sq. ft. 513 $12.00 $6,156.00 

3' split rail fence (perimeter) lin. ft. 665 $12.00 $7,980.00 lif 00·1) 
3' split rail fence (kid's play area) lin. ft. 120 $12.00 $1,440.00 J 
3' wood and wire fence (dog park) lin. ft. 625 $10.00 $6,250.00 
3'h x 3'w wood and wire gate (dog park) each 2 $500.00 $1,000.00 
3'h x 14'w wood and wire gate (dog park) _ each 2 $1,000.00 $2,000.00 
4' chain link fence (skate park) lin. ft. 420 $12.00 $5,040.00 
4.'h x 8'w chain link gate (skate park) each 1 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 
metal vehicle gate at parking lot entry each 1 $1,200.00 $1,200.00 

LED Solar light each 3 $1,200.00 $3,600.00 
bench each 2 $900.00 $1,800.00 
dog cleanup station each 2 $325.00 $650.00 
trash receptacle each 2 $800.00 $1,600.00 
recycling receptacle each 2 $800.00 $1,600.00 
bike rack each 2 $400.00 $800.00 
Drinking Fountain each 2 $3,000.00 $6,000.00 
Game Table each 1 $850.00 $850.00 

~. 

Irrigation system each 1 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 

Planting 
24 in. box trees each 7 $350.00 $2,450.00 
5 gallons shrubs each 68 $30.00 $2,040.00 
1 gallon shrubs each 193 $18.00 $3,474.00 
Bioswale plant plugs each 82 $1.50 $123.00 

Subtotal $123,445.00 
10% Contigency $12,344.50 
Total $135,789.50 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-38-



Sneddon,Su 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

Molly Ording [molly.ording@icloud.com] 
Thursday, April 10, 2014 12:09 PM 
City Council 
Renaming of Pacific Cove Parking Lots! 

Hello Much-Apprciated City Council Members! 

ADDITIONAL MATERIAL -ITEM 10.8. 
4-10-14 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

I had been planning to attend tonight's meeting and speak about the renaming of Pacific Cove. As we have just 
returned in the past few days from a month in New Zealand & Tasmania and I have come down with some 
awful bug, I have decided to write you instead of possibly exposing you and others to this awful 
illness .. whatever it may be! So sorry not to be there! . 

I have served on the Traffic and Parking Commission for as long as it has been in existence! As such, we have 
been intimately involved with the evolution of Lower Pac Cove into this huge parking area that it is becoming! 

It occurred to me, many, many months ago, when I was up in the Bay Area and searching for parking adjacent 
to an East Bay planetarium, that we in Capitola needed to have names for the Pac Cove Lots that were 
RELEVANT, APPEALING, SHORT & INFORMATIVE! In other words, place-names for our old and new 
parking lots that would pop up when one checks on any of our information-providing devices, that would 
quickly and succinctly tell us HOW to get there and if "THERE" was where we wanted to bellI As we all 
know, the names, "Pacific Cove," though so familiar to us, provides visitors with no information as to where or 
what it is near! 

I came up with the names "CAPITOLA BEACH PARK 1" and "CAPITOLA BEACH PARK 2," thinking the 
names as they were used would probably evolve into "BEACH 1" and "BEACH 2!" I have brought these 
suggestions to your attention in the past and also brought them to the attention of the Traffic and Parking 
Commission as well. We (the T & PC) also discussed "North and South" and "Upper and Lower" "BEACH 
PARK!" For the sake of simplicity and clarity we decided on "1 and 2," although, again, for me that 1 & 2 
designation is neither very clear or at all appealing! 

Although the T & PC decided unanimously on the suggestion of "VILLAGE AND BEACH PARK 1 & 2," I 
would just suggest that you take some time to further consider shortening the names. For me, the shorter and 
clearer the better! Obviously, from all the Capitola information I have ever seen, be it in print or on-line, there 
is AL WAYS the association of a village with Capitola .i.e. Capitola IS a village, but our goal is to get beach 
parkers and village visitors to use our BEACH LOTS! It sounds so much more appealing to me already!!! 

I am very sorry not to be able to be there tonight to pitch this to you a little further! Think it over ... as we know, 
these names will be around forever and, nowadays, names need to impati information quickly and be cool and 
appealing! Also, it is all of our mission to enable this investment of precious Capitola space and dollars to be 
utilized to the max -let's give these spaces and some fun and appealing names from the get-go! And . .ifin 5 
years, it is decided to actually convert this space into larger & better uses for the community, we will have 
"CAPITOLA BEACH PARK" already named! Think it over! 

Cheers & thanks! Hope to see each of you soon! 

Molly Ording 

1 

-39-

Item #: 4.D. 10.B.pdf

Sneddon,Su 

From: 
Sent: 
To: 
Subject: 

Molly Ording [molly.ording@icloud.com] 
Thursday, April 10, 2014 12:09 PM 
City Council 
Renaming of Pacific Cove Parking Lots! 

Hello Much-Apprciated City Council Members! 

ADDITIONAL MATEDIAI - ITJ:M ofn c 

4-10-14 CITY COUN 

I had been planning to attend tonight's meeting and speak about the renaming of Pacific Cove. As we have just 
returned in the past few days from a month in New Zealand & Tasmania and I have come down with some 
awful bug, I have decided to write you instead of possibly exposing you and others to this awful 
illness .. whatever it may be! So sorry not to be there! . 

I have served on the Traffic and Parking Commission for as long as it has been in existence! As such, we have 
been intimately involved with the evolution of Lower Pac Cove into this huge parking area that it is becoming! 

It occurred to me, many, many months ago, when I was up in the Bay Area and searching for parking adjacent 
to an East Bay planetarium, that we in Capitola needed to have names for the Pac Cove Lots that were 
RELEVANT, APPEALING, SHORT & INFORMATIVE! In other words, place-names for our old and new 
parking lots that would pop up when one checks on any of our information-providing devices, that would 
quickly and succinctly tell us HOW to get there and if "THERE" was where we wanted to bellI As we all 
know, the names, "Pacific Cove," though so familiar to us, provides visitors with no information as to where or 
what it is near! 

I came up with the names "CAPITOLA BEACH PARK 1" and "CAPITOLA BEACH PARK 2," thinking the 
names as they were used would probably evolve into "BEACH 1" and "BEACH 2!" I have brought these 
suggestions to your attention in the past and also brought them to the attention of the Traffic and Parking 
Commission as well. We (the T & PC) also discussed "North and South" and "Upper and Lower" "BEACH 
PARK!" For the sake of simplicity and clarity we decided on "1 and 2," although, again, for me that 1 & 2 
designation is neither very clear or at all appealing! 

Although the T & PC decided unanimously on the suggestion of "VILLAGE AND BEACH PARK 1 & 2," I 
would just suggest that you take some time to further consider shortening the names. For me, the shorter and 
clearer the better! Obviously, from all the Capitola information I have ever seen, be it in print or on-line, there 
is AL WAYS the association of a village with Capitola .i.e. Capitola IS a village, but our goal is to get beach 
parkers and village visitors to use our BEACH LOTS! It sounds so much more appealing to me already!!! 

I am very sorry not to be able to be there tonight to pitch this to you a little further! Think it over ... as we know, 
these names will be around forever and, nowadays, names need to impati information quickly and be cool and 
appealing! Also, it is all of our mission to enable this investment of precious Capitola space and dollars to be 
utilized to the max -let's give these spaces and some fun and appealing names from the get-go! And . .ifin 5 
years, it is decided to actually convert this space into larger & better uses for the community, we will have 
"CAPITOLA BEACH PARK" already named! Think it over! 

Cheers & thanks! Hope to see each of you soon! 

Molly Ording 

1 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-40-



ADDITIONAL MATERIAL -ITEM 10.C. 
4-10-14 CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

Sneddon,Su 

From: John Martorella [captainmartorella@gmail.com] 
Wednesday, April 09, 2014 11 :33 AM Sent: 

To: City Council 
Cc: Jesberg, Steve 
Subject: Stockton / Esplanade & Parking lot renaming 

Hello all, 

I have a few observations and comments about the redesign project on Stockton ave. 

1. Closing the wrong crosswalk. 
A. Pedestrians from the Riverview Terrace and David Lyng office area cross in front of the 

Village Creamery ( Polar Bear) as this is the most direct and intuitive route. 

B. Parents with strollers, wagons, kids walking bikes bound for the beach typically walk on 
the Mercantile side of the sidewalk to avoid crowds and congestion in front of Pizza My 
Heart and the other establishments. This new design would necessitate crossing THREE 
streets instead of ONE to take the same route. 

C. If there is only one Stockton crosswalk, keep it as far away from the bridge and it's 
distractions as possible. The current crosswalk in front of Stockton Bridge Grill is the 
most dangerous. 

2. Planned island is a problem. 

A. Narrowed traffic lanes will exacerbate cars trying to turn right onto the Esplanade 
blocking all through traffic on Stockton ave and creating more of a gridlock. Currently it 
is possible for thru traffic to squeeze by on the left of stopped cars. 

B. Emergency vehicles will have more of a challenge getting over the bridge if vehicles are 
stopped on either side. Currently vehicles can pull over to the right and allow Police 
and Fire to proceed thru, the island will delay that response. 

C. The Island may restrict delivery trucks making right turns onto the Esplanade especially 
when there are cars parked in front of the Village Creamery. 

I realize that traffic and pedestrian safety is the top priority here, but I don't agree with squeezing down an already 
narrow corridor, this planned improvement should be modified. My recommendation would be to enhance 2 out of 3 
existing crosswalks and eliminate the current one in front of Stockton Bridge Grill and Armida Winery. The sidewalk 
project looks good but not sure if it's in the budget to complete it at this time. 

One final thing, I recommend and support the renaming of the parking lots as outlined in the staff report. 

Thanks, 
John Martorella 
831-359-9685 

Sent from my iPad 

1 

-41-

Item #: 4.E. 10.C.pdf
ADDITIONAL MAT--· _. 
4-10-14 CITY COU 

Sneddon,Su 

From: John Martorella [captainmartorella@gmail.com] 
Wednesday, April 09, 2014 11 :33 AM Sent: 

To: City Council 
Cc: Jesberg, Steve 
Subject: Stockton / Esplanade & Parking lot renaming 

Hello all, 

I have a few observations and comments about the redesign project on Stockton ave. 

1. Closing the wrong crosswalk. 
A. Pedestrians from the Riverview Terrace and David Lyng office area cross in front of the 

Village Creamery ( Polar Bear) as this is the most direct and intuitive route. 

B. Parents with strollers, wagons, kids walking bikes bound for the beach typically walk on 
the Mercantile side of the sidewalk to avoid crowds and congestion in front of Pizza My 
Heart and the other establishments. This new design would necessitate crossing THREE 
streets instead of ONE to take the same route. 

C. If there is only one Stockton crosswalk, keep it as far away from the bridge and it's 
distractions as possible. The current crosswalk in front of Stockton Bridge Grill is the 
most dangerous. 

2. Planned island is a problem. 

A. Narrowed traffic lanes will exacerbate cars trying to turn right onto the Esplanade 
blocking all through traffic on Stockton ave and creating more of a gridlock. Currently it 
is possible for thru traffic to squeeze by on the left of stopped cars. 

B. Emergency vehicles will have more of a challenge getting over the bridge if vehicles are 
stopped on either side. Currently vehicles can pull over to the right and allow Police 
and Fire to proceed thru, the island will delay that response. 

C. The Island may restrict delivery trucks making right turns onto the Esplanade especially 
when there are cars parked in front of the Village Creamery. 

I realize that traffic and pedestrian safety is the top priority here, but I don't agree with squeezing down an already 
narrow corridor, this planned improvement should be modified. My recommendation would be to enhance 2 out of 3 
existing crosswalks and eliminate the current one in front of Stockton Bridge Grill and Armida Winery. The sidewalk 
project looks good but not sure if it's in the budget to complete it at this time. 

One final thing, I recommend and support the renaming of the parking lots as outlined in the staff report. 

Thanks, 
John Martorella 
831-359-9685 

Sent from my iPad 

1 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-42-



ACTION SUMMA"RY MINUTES 
CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION 

THURSDAY, APRIL 3, 2014 
7 P.M. CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

1. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Commissioners: Ron Graves, Gayle Ortiz, Mick Routh, Linda Smith and T J Welch 

2. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 

A. Additions and Deletions to Agenda-NONE 

B, Public Comments-NONE 

C. Commission Comments-NONE 

D. Staff Comments-NONE 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

A. March 6, 2014, Draft Planning Commission Minutes 

ACTION: Approved 5-0 

4. CONSENT CALENDAR 

A. 207 California Avenue #13-170 APN: 035-181-10 
Design Permit to remodel an existing single-family home in the CV (Central Village) 
Zoning District. 
This project does not require a Coastal Development Permit due to the addition being less 
than 10% of the internal floor area of the existing structure. 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Owner/Representative: Alfred Silva Jr., Filed 12.12.2013 

ACTION: Approved 5-0 

B. 3120 Capitola Rd #14-027 APN: 034-281-27 
Fence Permit application with request for a height exception up to 6 feet within the front 
yard of a residence located in the R-1 (single family) Zoning District. 
This project is not located in the Coastal Zone. 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Owner: Lenny Farrell 
Representative: Leland Cadwallader, filed: 02/14/2014 

ACTION: Approved 5-0 

5. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

A. 1955 41 st Avenue #14-029 APN: 034-261-53 
Amendment to the Master Sign Program at 1955 41 5t Avenue to allow Logo Signs up to 4 
square feet in the CC (Community Commercial) Zoning District. -43-

Item #: 9.A. Minutes.pdf

ACTION SUMMA"RY MINUTES 
CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION 

THURSDAY, APRIL 3, 2014 
7 P.M. CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

1. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Commissioners: Ron Graves, Gayle Ortiz, Mick Routh, Linda Smith and T J Welch 

2. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 

A. Additions and Deletions to Agenda-NONE 

B, Public Comments-NONE 

C. Commission Comments-NONE 

D. Staff Comments-NONE 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

A. March 6, 2014, Draft Planning Commission Minutes 

ACTION: Approved 5-0 

4. CONSENT CALENDAR 

A. 207 California Avenue #13-170 APN: 035-181-10 
Design Permit to remodel an existing single-family home in the CV (Central Village) 
Zoning District. 
This project does not require a Coastal Development Permit due to the addition being less 
than 10% of the internal floor area of the existing structure. 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Owner/Representative: Alfred Silva Jr., Filed 12.12.2013 

ACTION: Approved 5-0 

B. 3120 Capitola Rd #14-027 APN: 034-281-27 
Fence Permit application with request for a height exception up to 6 feet within the front 
yard of a residence located in the R-1 (single family) Zoning District. 
This project is not located in the Coastal Zone. 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Owner: Lenny Farrell 
Representative: Leland Cadwallader, filed: 02/14/2014 

ACTION: Approved 5-0 

5. PUBLIC HEARINGS 

A. 1955 41 st Avenue #14-029 APN: 034-261-53 
Amendment to the Master Sign Program at 1955 41 5t Avenue to allow Logo Signs up to 4 
square feet in the CC (Community Commercial) Zoning District. 



CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION ACTION SUMMARY - Thursday, April 3, 2014 

This project is not located within the Coastal Zone. 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Property Owner: JFG Capitola- Winfield Partners, L.P. 
Representative: AKC Services, Kasey Clark, filed 02/18/2014 

ACTION: Approved 4-0; Commissioner Graves recused. 

B. 1601 41 st Ave #14-023 APN: 034-151-20 

2 

Conditional Use Permit, Design Permit, Variance, and Sign Permit to allow an expansion 
of the existing Cinelux Theatre located in the Community Commercial (CC) zoning district. 
This project is not in the Coastal Zone and does not require a Coastal Development 
Permit. 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Property Owner: George Ow Jr. 
Representative: Paul Gunsky, filed 2-26-14 

ACTION: Approved 5-0 

C. GENERAL PLAN UPDATE 
Planning Commission recommendation on the proposed General Plan Update 
Environmental Determination: Environmental Impact Report 
Applicant: City of Capitola 

ACTION: Adopted a resolution certifying the Final Environmental Impact Report and adopting the 
Mitigation Monitoring Reporting Program and Statement of Overriding Considerations; 
Adopted a resolution to adopt the City's General Plan Update. 

6. DIRECTOR'S REPORT 

7. COMMISSION COMMUNICATIONS 

8. ADJOURNMENT 
Adjourned the meeting at 10:00 p.m. to the regular meeting of the Planning Commission to be held 
on Thursday, May 1, 2014, at 7 p.m. in the City Hall Council Chambers, 420 Capitola Avenue, 
Capitola, California. 

-44-

Item #: 9.A. Minutes.pdf
CAPITOLA PLANNING COMMISSION ACTION SUMMARY - Thursday, April 3, 2014 

This project is not located within the Coastal Zone. 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Property Owner: JFG Capitola- Winfield Partners, L.P. 
Representative: AKC Services, Kasey Clark, filed 02/18/2014 

ACTION: Approved 4-0; Commissioner Graves recused. 

B. 1601 41 st Ave #14-023 APN: 034-151-20 

2 

Conditional Use Permit, Design Permit, Variance, and Sign Permit to allow an expansion 
of the existing Cinelux Theatre located in the Community Commercial (CC) zoning district. 
This project is not in the Coastal Zone and does not require a Coastal Development 
Permit. 
Environmental Determination: Categorical Exemption 
Property Owner: George Ow Jr. 
Representative: Paul Gunsky, filed 2-26-14 

ACTION: Approved 5-0 

C. GENERAL PLAN UPDATE 
Planning Commission recommendation on the proposed General Plan Update 
Environmental Determination: Environmental Impact Report 
Applicant: City of Capitola 

ACTION: Adopted a resolution certifying the Final Environmental Impact Report and adopting the 
Mitigation Monitoring Reporting Program and Statement of Overriding Considerations; 
Adopted a resolution to adopt the City's General Plan Update. 

6. DIRECTOR'S REPORT 

7. COMMISSION COMMUNICATIONS 

8. ADJOURNMENT 
Adjourned the meeting at 10:00 p.m. to the regular meeting of the Planning Commission to be held 
on Thursday, May 1, 2014, at 7 p.m. in the City Hall Council Chambers, 420 Capitola Avenue, 
Capitola, California. 



CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

MEETING OF APRIL 10, 2014 

FROM: CITY MANAGER'S DEPARTMENT 

SUBJECT: LIABILITY CLAIM 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Deny liability claim and forward to the City's liability insurance carrier. 

DISCUSSION: 

The following claimant has filed a liability claim against the City of Capitola: 

1. Patricia Greenwood: $9,500.00 

ATTACHMENTS: None 

Report Prepared By: Liz Nichols 
Executive Assistant to the City Manager 

R:\CITY COUNCIL\Agenda Staff Reports\2014 Agenda Reports\04 10 14\Liability Claims_report.docx 
-45-

Item #: 9.B. Staff Report.pdf

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

MEETING OF APRIL 10, 2014 

FROM: CITY MANAGER'S DEPARTMENT 

SUBJECT: LIABILITY CLAIM 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Deny liability claim and forward to the City's liability insurance carrier. 

DISCUSSION: 

The following claimant has filed a liability claim against the City of Capitola: 

1. Patricia Greenwood: $9,500.00 

ATTACHMENTS: None 

Report Prepared By: Liz Nichols 
Executive Assistant to the City Manager 

R:\CITY COUNCIL\Agenda Staff Reports\2014 Agenda Reports\04 10 14\Liability Claims_report.docx 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-46-



CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

MEETING OF APRIL 10, 2014 

FROM: CITY MANAGER'S DEPARTMENT 

SUBJECT: CONSIDER A CONTRACT WITH CITY OF SANTA CRUZ FOR JUNIOR 
LIFEGUARD INSTRUCTOR TRAINING 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
1. Authorize the City Manager to execute a contract with the City of Santa Cruz to provide 

Junior Lifeguard Instructor Training in an amount not to exceed $4,500 for a term of one 
year; and 

2. Authorize a budget adjustment amending the Fiscal Year 2013-2014 General Fund Budget 
by transferring $19,500 from Fund Balance to the Recreation Department to fund the 
Junior Lifeguard Instructor Training Program. · 

BACKGROUND: The Capitola Junior Lifeguard instructors are currently the only instructors in 
the County and beyond who do not attend a United States Lifesaving Association (USLA) 
certified lifeguard training program. This has created several issues; most importantly it is a 
safety issue, but also creates a liability problem for the City. In addition, other junior lifeguard 
programs have informed the City they do not want the Capitola Junior Lifeguard students 
attending their competitions because of their liability exposure due to the lack of training and 
certification of our instructors. 

DISCUSSION: The City had the option to either contract with the City of Santa Cruz to train our 
Instructors, join the City of Santa Cruz's Junior Lifeguard program, or not attend the 
competitions. Staff is recommending contracting with City of Santa Cruz to train our instructors. 

The City of Santa Cruz Fire Department, Marine Safety Division is a certified USLA Chapter and 
therefore qualified to provide the necessary training to the Capitola Junior Lifeguard instructors. 
The training is composed of a one-time requirement of 40 hours of initial training and 16 hours 
annually thereafter to maintain certification. The City of Santa Cruz will provide the required 
training with their staff at their facilities, as well as on Capitola Beach in May 2014, or instructors 
can attend training in June 2014. All of the Capitola Junior Lifeguard instructors will be required 
to attend and pass the training in order to become a Junior Lifeguard instructor. 

FISCAL IMPACT: The amount of the contract is $4,500 for the first year of training, and 
$15,000 for wages paid to the Capitola Junior Lifeguard instructors for their attendance. The 
amount will decrease slightly over time as Capitola instructors complete the initial 40 hour 
training requirement and are then required to attend 16 hours of training annually thereafter. 

ATTACHMENTS: 1) Contract, 2) Budget Adjustment Form 

Report Prepared By: Lisa G. Murphy 
Administrative Services Director 

Reviewed and FAwed 
by City Manage~ 

R:\CITY COUNCIL \Agenda StaffReports\2014 Agenda Repmts\04 10 14\9.C. Santa Cruz JR guard 
training_ SR _rev.docx -47-

Item #: 9.C. Staff Report.pdf

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

MEETING OF APRIL 10, 2014 

FROM: CITY MANAGER'S DEPARTMENT 

SUBJECT: CONSIDER A CONTRACT WITH CITY OF SANTA CRUZ FOR JUNIOR 
LIFEGUARD INSTRUCTOR TRAINING 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
1. Authorize the City Manager to execute a contract with the City of Santa Cruz to provide 

Junior Lifeguard Instructor Training in an amount not to exceed $4,500 for a term of one 
year; and 

2. Authorize a budget adjustment amending the Fiscal Year 2013-2014 General Fund Budget 
by transferring $19,500 from Fund Balance to the Recreation Department to fund the 
Junior Lifeguard Instructor Training Program .. 

BACKGROUND: The Capitola Junior Lifeguard instructors are currently the only instructors in 
the County and beyond who do not attend a United States Lifesaving Association (USLA) 
certified lifeguard training program. This has created several issues; most importantly it is a 
safety issue, but also creates a liability problem for the City. In addition, other junior lifeguard 
programs have informed the City they do not want the Capitola Junior Lifeguard students 
attending their competitions because of their liability exposure due to the lack of training and 
certification of our instructors. 

DISCUSSION: The City had the option to either contract with the City of Santa Cruz to train our 
Instructors, join the City of Santa Cruz's Junior Lifeguard program, or not attend the 
competitions. Staff is recommending contracting with City of Santa Cruz to train our instructors. 

The City of Santa Cruz Fire Department, Marine Safety Division is a certified USLA Chapter and 
therefore qualified to provide the necessary training to the Capitola Junior Lifeguard instructors. 
The training is composed of a one-time requirement of 40 hours of initial training and 16 hours 
annually thereafter to maintain certification. The City of Santa Cruz will provide the required 
training with their staff at their facilities, as well as on Capitola Beach in May 2014, or instructors 
can attend training in June 2014. All of the Capitola Junior Lifeguard instructors will be required 
to attend and pass the training in order to become a Junior Lifeguard instructor. 

FISCAL IMPACT: The amount of the contract is $4,500 for the first year of training, and 
$15,000 for wages paid to the Capitola Junior Lifeguard instructors for their attendance. The 
amount will decrease slightly over time as Capitola instructors complete the initial 40 hour 
training requirement and are then required to attend 16 hours of training annually thereafter. 

ATTACHMENTS: 1) Contract, 2) Budget Adjustment Form 

Report Prepared By: Lisa G. Murphy 
Administrative Services Director 

Reviewed and FAwed 
by City Manage~ 

R:\CITY COUNCIL\Agenda StaffReports\2014 Agenda RepOlts\04 10 14\9.C. Santa Cruz JR guard 
training_ SR Jev.docx 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-48-



MUTUAL INDEMNITY AGREEMENT 
RE: JUNIOR LIFEGUARD 

INSTRUCTOR TRAINING SERVICES 

This Mutual Indemnity Agreement ("Agreement") is made and entered into by and 
between the CITY OF SANTA CRUZ, a charter city arid municipal corporation ("SANTA 
CRUZ") and the CITY OF CAPITOLA, a general law city and municipal corporation 
("CAPITOLA"), (hereinafter collectively referred to as "Parties" or individually as "Party"), 
both of which are public entities organized and existing under and by virtue ofthe laws of the 
State of California. This Agreement will be effective as of , 2014. 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, each Party to this Agreement provides a Junior Lifeguard program; 

WHEREAS, Santa Cruz through its Fire Department provides lifeguard services to 
CAPITOLA at CAPITOLA Main Beach pursuant to the Agreement for Lifeguard Services 
entered on May 25, 2012, which has been extended and is currently in effect; 

WHEREAS, Santa Cruz Fire Department, Marine Safety Division is a certified United 
States Lifesaving Association (USLA) Chapter and therefore qualified to provide open water 
lifeguard training; 

WHEREAS, CAPITOLA seeks a cost-effective and efficient option to train Junior 
Lifeguard Instructors pursuant to a USLA certified training program; 

WHEREAS, Parties now wish to agree upon the responsibility and liability for the 
provision of Junior Lifeguard Instructor training services, under the terms and conditions 
described in this Agreement. 

NOW THEREFORE, the Parties agree as follows: 

1. SERVICES. Santa Cruz Fire Department, through its lifeguards and lifeguard 
supervisors, shall provide lifeguard training to CAPITOLA Junior Lifeguard 
Instructors to complete the requirements for open water beach lifeguards as follows: 

a) SANTA CRUZ shall annually, for a total of 40 hours, train a maximum of 24 
Junior Lifeguard Instructors with the goal that the Junior Lifeguard Instructors 
will complete the requirements for open water beach lifeguards trained under a 
certified USLA program. 

b) At a minimum, said training shall include sixteen hours of recurrent training in 
lifeguarding, first aid and cardiopulmonary resuscitation (CPR). The Santa Cruz 
Fire Department Marine Safety Division is a United States Lifesaving Association 
(USLA) advanced agency member and all training provided pursuant to this 
Agreement shall adhere to and comply with USLA training standards. 

c) Junior Lifeguard Instructors may become open water lifeguards by participating 
and successfully completing either: 1) SANTA CRUZ Fire Department's Marine 

1 
-49-

Item #: 9.C. Attach 1.pdf
MUTUAL INDEMNITY AGREEMENT 

RE: JUNIOR LIFEGUARD 
INSTRUCTOR TRAINING SERVICES 

This Mutual Indemnity Agreement ("Agreement") is made and entered into by and 
between the CITY OF SANTA CRUZ, a charter city arid municipal corporation ("SANTA 
CRUZ") and the CITY OF CAPITOLA, a general law city and municipal corporation 
("CAPITOLA"), (hereinafter collectively referred to as "Parties" or individually as "Party"), 
both of which are public entities organized and existing under and by virtue of the laws of the 
State of California. This Agreement will be effective as of ,2014. 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, each Party to this Agreement provides a Junior Lifeguard program; 

WHEREAS, Santa Cruz through its Fire Department provides lifeguard services to 
CAPITOLA at CAPITOLA Main Beach pursuant to the Agreement for Lifeguard Services 
entered on May 25,2012, which has been extended and is currently in effect; 

WHEREAS, Santa Cruz Fire Department, Marine Safety Division is a certified United 
States Lifesaving Association (USLA) Chapter and therefore qualified to provide open water 
lifeguard training; 

WHEREAS, CAPITOLA seeks a cost-effective and efficient option to train Junior 
Lifeguard Instructors pursuant to a USLA certified training program; 

WHEREAS, Parties now wish to agree upon the responsibility and liability for the 
provision of Junior Lifeguard Instructor training services, under the terms and conditions 
described in this Agreement. 

NOW THEREFORE, the Parties agree as follows: 

1. SERVICES. Santa Cruz Fire Department, through its lifeguards and lifeguard 
supervisors, shall provide lifeguard training to CAPITOLA Junior Lifeguard 
Instructors to complete the requirements for open water beach lifeguards as follows: 

a) SANTA CRUZ shall annually, for a total of 40 hours, train a maximum of 24 
Junior Lifeguard Instructors with the goal that the Junior Lifeguard Instructors 
will complete the requirements for open water beach lifeguards trained under a 
certified USLA program. 

b) At a minimum, said training shall include sixteen hours of recurrent training in 
lifeguarding, first aid and cardiopulmonary resuscitation (CPR). The Santa Cruz 
Fire Department Marine Safety Division is a United States Lifesaving Association 
(US LA) advanced agency member and all training provided pursuant to this 
Agreement shall adhere to and comply with USLA training standards. 

c) Junior Lifeguard Instructors may become open water lifeguards by participating 
and successfully completing either: 1) SANTA CRUZ Fire Department's Marine 

1 



Division Rookie School, or 2) an equivalent training session as determined by the 
Marine Safety Division of the Santa Cruz Fire Department. 

d) SANTA CRUZ makes no guarantee, warrantee, or other assurances that the 
Junior Lifeguard Instructor trainees will successfully complete the training 
requirements to becoming open water beach lifeguards. Any person who fails to 
successfully complete the training requirements will not be endorsed as an open 
water lifeguard. 

2. SERVICES MANAGER. CAPITOLA agrees to assign a CAPITOLA employee as 
the project manager to administer the contract and provide administrative services 
relating to this program. 

3. TERM. The term of this Agreement will commence on and terminate one 
year from the same date. The term of this Agreement may be extended annually by 
mutual agreement of the Parties evidenced in writing as an amendment to this 
Agreement. 

4. COMPENSATION. For all Junior Lifeguard Instructor training services provided by 
SANTA CRUZ pursuant to this Agreement, including all equipment used by Santa 
Cruz in connection therewith and all expenses incurred by SANTA CRUZ in 
connection therewith, CAPITOLA shall pay SANTA CRUZ a total of$4,500. Said 
$4,500 shall be remitted by CAPITOLA to SANTA CRUZ in a single lump sum 
payment due and payable on or about May 15th. 

5. MUTUAL INDEMNIFICATION. Each Party agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold 
the other Party, its officers, employees, agents harmless from any and all claims, 
liability, losses, expenses, attorneys, fees or costs arising out of said Party's 
respective employees', officers' or agents' negligent acts, errors, omissions or willful 
misconduct while performing their obligations pursuant to this Agreement, but only 
in proportion to and to the extent such liability, losses, expenses, attorneys' fees, costs 
or claims for injury or damages are caused by the negligent or intentional acts or 
omissions of said Party, its respective officers, employees, or agents. For purposes of 
this provision none of the Santa Cruz personnel who provide services pursuant to this 
Agreement shall be construed to be, or considered, Capitola officers, employees or 
agents. 

6. INSURANCE. Each Party shall insure its activities in connection with this 
Agreement and obtain, keep in force and maintain as follows: 
A. Commercial General Liability Insurance of at least $1 Million; 

B. Worker's Compensation Insurance as required by California law. 

7. TERMINATION WITHOUT CAUSE. Each Party may terminate this Agreement, 
without cause, by giving written notice to the other Party. Su,ch termination shall be 
effective thirty (30) days following receipt of written notice. 

8. TERMINATION FOR CAUSE. Should any Party be in default of any covenant or 
condition hereof, the other Party may immediately terminate this Agreement for cause 
if the defaulting Party fails to cure the default within ten (1 0) calendar days of 
receiving a written notice of the default. 

2 
-50-

Item #: 9.C. Attach 1.pdf
VI Vl:)lUll Rookie School, or 2) an equivalent training session as determined by the 
Marine Safety Division of the Santa Cruz Fire Department. 

d) SANTA CRUZ makes no guarantee, warrantee, or other assurances that the 
Junior Lifeguard Instructor trainees will successfully complete the training 
requirements to becoming open water beach lifeguards. Any person who fails to 
successfully complete the training requirements will not be endorsed as an open 
water lifeguard. 

2. SERVICES MANAGER. CAPITOLA agrees to assign a CAPITOLA employee as 
the project manager to administer the contract and provide administrative services 
relating to this program. 

3. TERM. The term of this Agreement will commence on and terminate one 
year from the same date. The term of this Agreement may be extended annually by 
mutual agreement of the Parties evidenced in writing as an amendment to this 
Agreement. 

4. COMPENSATION. For all Junior Lifeguard Instructor training services provided by 
SANTA CRUZ pursuant to this Agreement, including all equipment used by Santa 
Cruz in connection therewith and all expenses incurred by SANTA CRUZ in 
connection therewith, CAPITOLA shall pay SANTA CRUZ a total of$4,500. Said 
$4,500 shall be remitted by CAPITOLA to SANTA CRUZ in a single lump sum 
payment due and payable on or about May 15th. 

5. MUTUAL INDEMNIFICATION. Each Party agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold 
the other Party, its officers, employees, agents harmless from any and all claims, 
liability, losses, expenses, attorneys, fees or costs arising out of said Party's 
respective employees', officers' or agents' negligent acts, errors, omissions or willful 
misconduct while performing their obligations pursuant to this Agreement, but only 
in proportion to and to the extent such liability, losses, expenses, attorneys' fees, costs 
or claims for injury or damages are caused by the negligent or intentional acts or 
omissions of said Party, its respective officers, employees, or agents. For purposes of 
this provision none of the Santa Cruz personnel who provide services pursuant to this 
Agreement shall be construed to be, or considered, Capitola officers, employees or 
agents. 

6. INSURANCE. Each Party shall insure its activities in connection with this 
Agreement and obtain, keep in force and maintain as follows: 
A. Commercial General Liability Insurance of at least $1 Million; 
B. Worker's Compensation Insurance as required by California law. 

7. TERMINATION WITHOUT CAUSE. Each Party may terminate this Agreement, 
without cause, by giving written notice to the other Party. Su,ch termination shall be 
effective thirty (30) days following receipt of written notice. 

8. TERMINATION FOR CAUSE. Should any Party be in default of any covenant or 
condition hereof, the other Party may immediately terminate this Agreement for cause 
if the defaulting Party fails to cure the default within ten (10) calendar days of 
receiving a written notice of the default. 

2 



9. NON-ASSIGNABILITY. This Agreement shall not be assigned by either Party 
without first obtaining the express written consent of the other Party. 

1 0. NOTICES. Any and all notices or other communications required or permitted by this 
Agreement or by law to be served on or given to the Parties shall be in writing and 
shall be deemed duly served and given when personally or electronically delivered to 
the Party to whom directed or in lieu of such personal or electronic service when 
deposited in the United States mail, postage paid to: 

City of Capitola 
420 Capitola Ave 
Capitola CA 95010 
Attn: City Manager 
Telephone: (831) 475-7300 

City of Santa Cmz 
809 Center Street, Room 10 
Santa Cmz CA 95060 
Attn: City Manager 
Telephone: (831) 420-5010 

11. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. The Parties agree that this Agreement constitutes the sole 
and only Agreement between them concerning Junior Lifeguard Training services and 
correctly sets forth their obligations and duties with respect to each other. 

12. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended only by written consent of the 
Parties. 

13. SUBJECT HEADINGS. The subject headings of the paragraphs in this Agreement 
are included solely for the purposes of convenience and reference, and shall not be 
deemed to explain, modify, limit, amplify or aid in the meaning, constmction or 
interpretation of any provision of this Agreement. 

14. NO INTERPRETATION AGAINST DRAFTING. This Agreement has been 
negotiated at arm's length between the Parties hereto. Accordingly, any rule or law 
(including California Civil Code§ 1635 et seq.) or legal decision that would require 
interpretation of any ambiguities in this Agreement against the Party that has drafted 
the applicable provision, is not applicable and is waived. The provisions of this 
Agreement shall be interpreted in a reasonable manner to effect the purpose and 
intent of the Parties. 

15. EXECUTE IN COUNTERPARTS. The Parties agree that there shall be two originals 
of this Agreement, which shall be identical in all respects, including form and 
substance. The Parties may execute this Agreement in two or more counterparts, 
which shall, in the aggregate, be deemed an original but all of which, together, shall 
constitute one and the same instmment. A copy of this executed Agreement shall be 
deemed as valid as the original. 

3 
-51-

Item #: 9.C. Attach 1.pdf

9. NON-ASSIGNABILITY. This Agreement shall not be assigned by either Party 
without first obtaining the express written consent of the other Party. 

10. N OTI CES. Any and all notices or other communications required or permitted by this 
Agreement or by law to be served on or given to the Parties shall be in writing and 
shall be deemed duly served and given when personally or electronically delivered to 
the Party to whom directed or in lieu of such personal or electronic service when 
deposited in the United States mail, postage paid to: 

City of Capitola 
420 Capitola Ave 
Capitola CA 95010 
Attn: City Manager 
Telephone: (831) 475-7300 

City of Santa Cmz 
809 Center Street, Room 10 
Santa Cmz CA 95060 
Attn: City Manager 
Telephone: (831) 420-5010 

11. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. The Parties agree that this Agreement constitutes the sole 
and only Agreement between them concerning Junior Lifeguard Training services and 
correctly sets forth their obligations and duties with respect to each other. 

12. AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amendcd only by written consent of the 
Parties. 

13. SUBJECT HEADINGS. The subject headings of the paragraphs in this Agreement 
are included solely for the purposes of convenience and reference, and shall not be 
deemed to explain, modify, limit, amplify or aid in the meaning, constmction or 
interpretation of any provision ofthis Agreement. 

14. NO INTERPRETATION AGAINST DRAFTING. This Agreement has been 
negotiated at arm's length between the Parties hereto. Accordingly, any rule or law 
(including California Civil Code § 1635 et seq.) or legal decision that would require 
interpretation of any ambiguities in this Agreement against the Party that has drafted 
the applicable provision, is not applicable and is waived. The provisions of this 
Agreement shall be interpreted in a reasonable manner to effect the purpose and 
intent of the Parties. 

15. EXECUTE IN COUNTERPARTS. The Parties agree that there shall be two originals 
of this Agreement, which shall be identical in all respects, including form and 
substance. The Parties may execute this Agreement in two or more counterparts, 
which shall, in the aggregate, be deemed an original but all of which, together, shall 
constitute one and the same instmment. A copy of this executed Agreement shall be 
deemed as valid as the original. 

3 



16. GOVERNING LAW. This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with and 
governed by the laws of the State of California. 

17. WAIVER OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST. Each Party has considered the conflict of 
interest and fully understands the possible adverse consequences of the simultaneous 
representation by the same legal counsel in the preparation of this Agreement. Each 
Pmiy understands that it has the right to seek the advice of independent legal counsel 
on its own behalf on the conflict of interest issue and also relating to this Agreement. 
Each Party hereby agrees to waive the conflict of interest in the continued 
representation by the same legal counsel relating to this Agreement. · 

The Parties acknowledge and accept the terms and conditions of this Agreement as 
evidenced by the following signatures of their duly authorized representatives. 

CITY OF CAPITOLA, a Municipal Corporation 

By: ____________ _ 
Nmne: Jamie Goldstein 
Its: City Manager 
Date: 

CITY OF SANTA CRUZ, a Municipal Corporation 

By: ____________ _ 
Name: Martin Bernal 
Its: City Manager 
Date: -------------------------------

Approved as to form: 

By: ________ _ 
John G. Barisone, City Attorney 
For City of Santa Cruz and City of Capitola 

4 

-52-

Item #: 9.C. Attach 1.pdf
10. VV v CKl'Hl'-fG LAW. This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with and 

governed by the laws of the State of California. 

17. WAIVER OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST. Each Party has considered the conflict of 
interest and fully understands the possible adverse consequences of the simultaneous 
representation by the same legal counsel in the preparation of this Agreement. Each 
PaIry understands that it has the right to seek the advice of independent legal counsel 
on its own behalf on the conflict of interest issue and also relating to this Agreement. 
Each Party hereby agrees to waive the conflict of interest in the continued 
representation by the same legal counsel relating to this Agreement. . 

The Parties acknowledge and accept the terms and conditions of this Agreement as 
evidenced by the following signatures of their duly authorized representatives. 

CITY OF CAPITOLA, a Municipal Corporation 

By: ____________ _ 
Nmne: Jamie Goldstein 
Its: City Manager 
Date: 

CITY OF SANTA CRUZ, a Municipal Corporation 

By: ____________ _ 
Name: Martin Bernal 
Its: City Manager 
Date: -------------------------------

Approved as to form: 

By: ________ _ 
John G. Barisone, City Attorney 
For City of Santa Cruz and City of Capitola 

4 



City of Capitola Budget Adjustment Fonn 

Date 

Requesting Department 

Administrative 
Council 

Total 

1000-50-50-520-4305.900 

INetlmpact 

4/3/2014 

Recreation 

Item# 
Council Date 
Council Approval 

9.C. 
4/10/2014 

(19,500)1 

Purpose: To fund Junior Lifeguard Instructor Training Program 

Department Head Approva 

Finance Department Approval ____________________ _ 

City Manager Approval 

4/3/20141:23 PM 9.C. Jr Guard Budget AdjustmentGeneral Fund -53-

Item #: 9.C. Attach 2.pdf
City of Capitola Budget Adjustment Fonn 

Date 

Requesting Department 

Administrative 
Council 

Total 

1000-50-50-520-4305.900 

1 Net Impact 

4/3/2014 

Recreation 

Item # 
Council Date 
Council Approval 

9.C. 
4/10/2014 

(19,500)1 

Purpose: To fund Junior Lifeguard Instructor Training Program 

Department Head Approva 

Finance Department Approval ____________________ _ 

City Manager Approval 

4/3/20141:23 PM g.c. Jr Guard Budget AdjustmentGeneral Fund 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-54-



FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

POLICE DEPARTMENT 

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

MEETING OF APRIL 10, 2014 

CONSIDER ASSOCIATION OF MONTEREY BAY AREA GOVERNMENTS (AMBAG) 
REGIONAL PUBLIC SAFETY ELECTRIC MOTORCYCLE UPGRADE PROGRAM 
GRANT OF $14,250 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve the acceptance of the AMBAG Regional Public Safety 
Electric Motorcycle Upgrade Program Grant funds of $14,250 toward the purchase of a Police 
Department electric motorcycle. 

BACKGROUND: The AMBAG Regional Public Safety Electric Motorcycle Upgrade Program is a 
grant program offered by the Monterey Bay Unified Pollution Control District using funds allocated 
by AB2766 secured DMV fees. The purpose of the program is to replace polluting fleet vehicles in 
the Monterey Bay region with true zero emissions electric motorcycles. Funding was made 
available for the purchase of four motorcycles in Santa Cruz County in Fiscal Year 2013-2014. 

DISCUSSION: The Police Department currently has five motorcycles, including a 1999 Kawasaki 
KZ1 000 which is scheduled for replacement in the near term. The Department was awarded 
$14,250 toward the purchase of an electric motorcycle to replace the Kawasaki. The remaining 
$3,929 will be paid from money received for unclaimed property that has been sold at auction. 
Funds from this account are to be exclusively used for supporting front line law enforcement. 

Zero Motorcycles is offering incentive pricing on 2013 DS Police motorcycles to local agencies to 
maximize the leverage of the grant. The electric motorcycle will not only be less polluting, but have 
much lower fuel and maintenance costs than a gas model. 

FISCAL IMPACT: The total purchase of the motorcycle is $18,179. The $3,929 difference between 
the grant and the purchase price will be paid from the Evidence Held - Adjudicated account, which 
is money received from the auction of unclaimed property. AMBAG will provide the grant funds 
directly to the vendor. 

ATTACHMENTS: None. 

Prepared by: Denice Pearson 
Administrative/Records Analyst 

Reviewed and o 
by City Manag r: -t+<-+--

\\sunlight\SHARED\CITY COUNCIL \Agenda StaffReports\201 4 Agenda Reports\04 10 14\9.0. AM BAG Grant SR _rev 040314.docx 

-55-

Item #: 9.D. Staff Report.pdf

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

POLICE DEPARTMENT 

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

MEETING OF APRIL 10, 2014 

CONSIDER ASSOCIATION OF MONTEREY BAY AREA GOVERNMENTS (AMBAG) 
REGIONAL PUBLIC SAFETY ELECTRIC MOTORCYCLE UPGRADE PROGRAM 
GRANT OF $14,250 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve the acceptance of the AMBAG Regional Public Safety 
Electric Motorcycle Upgrade Program Grant funds of $14,250 toward the purchase of a Police 
Department electric motorcycle. 

BACKGROUND: The AMBAG Regional Public Safety Electric Motorcycle Upgrade Program is a 
grant program offered by the Monterey Bay Unified Pollution Control District using funds allocated 
by AB2766 secured DMV fees. The purpose of the program is to replace polluting fleet vehicles in 
the Monterey Bay region with true zero emissions electric motorcycles. Funding was made 
available for the purchase of four motorcycles in Santa Cruz County in Fiscal Year 2013-2014. 

DISCUSSION: The Police Department currently has five motorcycles, including a 1999 Kawasaki 
KZ1000 which is scheduled for replacement in the near term. The Department was awarded 
$14,250 toward the purchase of an electric motorcycle to replace the Kawasaki. The remaining 
$3,929 will be paid from money received for unclaimed property that has been sold at auction. 
Funds from this account are to be exclusively used for supporting front line law enforcement. 

Zero Motorcycles is offering incentive pricing on 2013 DS Police motorcycles to local agencies to 
maximize the leverage of the grant. The electric motorcycle will not only be less polluting, but have 
much lower fuel and maintenance costs than a gas model. 

FISCAL IMPACT: The total purchase of the motorcycle is $18,179. The $3,929 difference between 
the grant and the purchase price will be paid from the Evidence Held - Adjudicated account, which 
is money received from the auction of unclaimed property. AMBAG will provide the grant funds 
directly to the vendor. 

ATTACHMENTS: None. 

Prepared by: Denice Pearson 
Administrative/Records Analyst 

Reviewed and 0 

by City Manag r: -t+<-+--

\\sunlight\SHARED\CITY COUNCIL\Agenda Staff Reports\20 I 4 Agenda Reports\04 10 14\9.D. AMBAG Grant SR Jev 040314.docx 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-56-



CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

MEETING OF APRIL 10, 2014 

FROM: DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 

SUBJECT: MCGREGOR PARK APPROVAL OF PLANS, AUTHORIZATION TO ADVERTISE 
FOR BIDS, BUDGET AMENDMENT ALLOCATING $130,000 WITHIN THE 
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM FROM UNDETERMINED PARK 
IMPROVEMENTS TO THE MCGREGOR PARK PROJECT AND MODIFICATIONS 
TO THE MCGREGOR PARK DONATION AND SPONSORSHIP PROGRAM 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
1. Approve plans, specifications, and engineer's estimate for construction of the McGregor Park 

and authorize advertising the Project to receive bids setting the bid opening date for May 14, 
2014, at 11:00 a.m.; and 

2. Approve a budget adjustment reallocating $130,000 within the Capital Improvement Program 
from Undetermined Park Improvements to the McGregor Park Project; and 

3. Approve modifications to the McGregor Park Donation and Sponsorship Program. 

BACKGROUND: This Project will complete the grading, fencing, landscaping, parking lot 
improvements, and related features of the park on the McGregor property. This Project does not 
include construction of the elements. 

DISCUSSION: The estimated cost of construction is $150,000 based on preliminary designs. A 
detailed estimate is being prepared and will be provided to the Council upon completion. The 
construction plans are included as Attachment 1. A full size set of plans and the specifications are 
available at the Public Works Department for review. 

The proposed construction schedule is as follows: 
Authorization to advertise: April 10, 2014 
Bids open: May 14, 2014 
Contract awarded: May 21, 2014 
Begin work: June 2014 
Construction complete: August 2014 

Separately, staff is working on finding sponsors for the completion of the skate-park, dog park, and 
bike park. It is anticipated the elements will be completed independently of each· other following 
construction. Staff received a refined cost estimate for the bike park which maximizes the use of 
the area for an amount less then what was identified in the sponsorship program. The bike park 
was originally estimated at $25,000 to install, the revised cost estimate is for $15,000. Staff is 
proposing to adjust the sponsorship program proportionate to the new amount which is a 40% 
reduction. Tentative sponsorships for the entire amount have been identified. The dog park 
sponsorship program is also recommended to be adjusted similarly by a decrease of 20%, as the 
cost to install is less than the originally identified amount of $10,000. A donor has tentatively 
committed to the full amount of the dog park. At this time, the cost for the installation for the skate 
park has not changed and no sponsorships or donations have been identified for the skate park, 
therefore no changes are recommended at this time. 

-57-

Item #: 10.A. Staff Report.pdf

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

MEETING OF APRIL 10, 2014 

FROM: DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 

SUBJECT: MCGREGOR PARK APPROVAL OF PLANS, AUTHORIZATION TO ADVERTISE 
FOR BIDS, BUDGET AMENDMENT ALLOCATING $130,000 WITHIN THE 
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM FROM UNDETERMINED PARK 
IMPROVEMENTS TO THE MCGREGOR PARK PROJECT AND MODIFICATIONS 
TO THE MCGREGOR PARK DONATION AND SPONSORSHIP PROGRAM 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 
1. Approve plans, specifications, and engineer's estimate for construction of the McGregor Park 

and authorize advertising the Project to receive bids setting the bid opening date for May 14, 
2014, at 11 :00 a.m.; and 

2. Approve a budget adjustment reallocating $130,000 within the Capital Improvement Program 
from Undetermined Park Improvements to the McGregor Park Project; and 

3. Approve modifications to the McGregor Park Donation and Sponsorship Program. 

BACKGROUND: This Project will complete the grading, fencing, landscaping, parking lot 
improvements, and related features of the park on the McGregor property. This Project does not 
include construction of the elements. 

DISCUSSION: The estimated cost of construction is $150,000 based on preliminary designs. A 
detailed estimate is being prepared and will be provided to the Council upon completion. The 
construction plans are included as Attachment 1. A full size set of plans and the specifications are 
available at the Public Works Department for review. 

The proposed construction schedule is as follows: 
Authorization to advertise: April 10, 2014 
Bids open: May 14, 2014 
Contract awarded: May 21,2014 
Begin work: June 2014 
Construction complete: August 2014 

Separately, staff is working on finding sponsors for the completion of the skate.park, dog park, and 
bike park. It is anticipated the elements will be completed independently of each· other following 
construction. Staff received a refined cost estimate for the bike park which maximizes the use of 
the area for an amount less then what was identified in the sponsorship program. The bike park 
was originally estimated at $25,000 to install, the revised cost estimate is for $15,000. Staff is 
proposing to adjust the sponsorship program proportionate to the new amount which is a 40% 
reduction. Tentative sponsorships for the entire amount have been identified. The dog park 
sponsorship program is also recommended to be adjusted similarly by a decrease of 20%, as the 
cost to install is less than the originally identified amount of $10,000. A donor has tentatively 
committed to the full amount of the dog park. At this time, the cost for the installation for the skate 
park has not changed and no sponsorships or donations have been identified for the skate park, 
therefore no changes are recommended at this time. 



APRIL 10,2014 AGENDA STAFF REPORT 
MCGREGOR PARK APPROVAL OF PLANS, SPECIFICATIONS AND ENGINEER'S ESTIMATE, 
AUTHORIZATION TO ADVERTISE FOR BIDS AND APPROVAL OF A BUDGET ADJUSTMENT 

FISCAL IMPACT: The current Capital Improvement Program Budget includes an allocation of 
$130,000, for undetermined park improvements, and $35,000 for the McGregor Park Project. A 
budget adjustment is recommended to reallocate the $130,000 to the McGregor Park Project 
bringing the Project budget to $165,000. Design costs to date are $15,000, leaving $150,000 for 
construction. 

ATTACHMENTS 
1. Construction Plans 
2. Budget Adjustment 

Report Prepared By: Steven Jesberg 
Public Works Director 

R:\CITY COUNCIL\Agenda StaffReports\2014 Agenda Reports\04 10 14\lO.A. McGregor Park to bid_SR_rev.docx -58-

Item #: 10.A. Staff Report.pdf
APRIL 10, 2014 AGENDA STAFF REPORT 
MCGREGOR PARK APPROVAL OF PLANS, SPECIFICATIONS AND ENGINEER'S ESTIMATE, 
AUTHORIZATION TO ADVERTISE FOR BIDS AND APPROVAL OF A BUDGET ADJUSTMENT 

FISCAL IMPACT: The current Capital Improvement Program Budget includes an allocation of 
$130,000, for undetermined park improvements, and $35,000 for the McGregor Park Project. A 
budget adjustment is recommended to reallocate the $130,000 to the McGregor Park Project 
bringing the Project budget to $165,000. Design costs to date are $15,000, leaving $150,000 for 
construction. 

ATTACHMENTS 
1. Construction Plans 
2. Budget Adjustment 

Report Prepared By: Steven Jesberg 
Public Works Director 

R:\CITY COUNCIL\Agenda StaffReports\2014 Agenda Reports\04 10 14\10.A. McGregor Park to bid_SR_rev.docx 



planning commision review plans for: 

McGREGOR PARK 
CITY OF CAPITOLA 

McGREGOR DRIVE, CAPITOLA 
March 31,2014 

Sheet Index 
cs 

1 

L - 1.0 

L - 1.1 

L - 1.2 

L - 2.0 

L - 2.1 

L - 3.0 

L - 3.1 

L - 4.0 

L - 4.1 

L - 5.0 

Cover sheet 

Survey 

West Grading + Drainage, Erosion Control, Tree Protection Plan 

East Grading + Drainage, Erosion Control, Tree Protection Plan 

Grading + Drainage, Erosion Control, Tree Protection Notes and Details 

Layout + Materials Plan 

Site furnishings and Lighting Cut Sheets 

West Planting Plan 

East Planting Plan 

West Irrigation Plan 

East I rrigation Plan 

Planting + Irrigation Details 

Michael Arnone + Associates 
LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE 

831.462.4988 mike@arnonelandscape.com www.arnonelandscape.com 

Vicinity Map 

Park Location ---~ 

-59-

Item
 #: 10.A

. A
ttach

 1.p
d

f

planning commision review plans for: 

McGREGOR PARK 
CITY OF CAPITOLA 

McGREGOR DRIVE, CAPITOLA 
March 31,2014 

Sheet Index 
cs 

1 

L - 1.0 

L - 1.1 

L - 1.2 

L - 2.0 

L - 2.1 

L - 3.0 

L - 3.1 

L - 4.0 

L - 4.1 

L - 5.0 

Cover sheet 

Survey 

West Grading + Drainage, Erosion Control, Tree Protection Plan 

East Grading + Drainage, Erosion Control, Tree Protection Plan 

Grading + Drainage, Erosion Control, Tree Protection Notes and Details 

Layout + Materials Plan 

Site furnishings and Lighting Cut Sheets 

West Planting Plan 

East Planting Plan 

West Irrigation Plan 

East I rrigation Plan 

Planting + Irrigation Details 

Michael Arnone + Associates 
LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE 

831.462.4988 mike@arnonelandscape.com www.arnonelandscape.com 

Vicinity Map 

Park Location ---~ 



-60-

Item
 #: 10.A

. A
ttach

 1.p
d

f



X 

• 

I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

I 
I 
I 
I 

I 
I 

x 
x IX X X 

><""XXX 
>·x X :X' 

>;Ixxx 
> .:~ X X 

>< "iiI)( XX 

i< ;<:< ></ .XXXX"< 

)( 

X )( 

x X 
x 

x X 
x X 

X )< 

X >: 
X X 

>< X X 
X x 

x XiX X. 
X ... X 

X X·X :< 

X 
I A 

I 
I 
I 

I 
I 
I 

o . ..... , 
...J 

Q) 
Q) 

..t:: 
en 

\ , 

x 

x 

>< 

0< 

x 

x 
x 

x 

X 

, , 

x 

X 

X X 

x 

x x 
x 

\ 
\ 
\ 

------

x x x 

x X x 
X X 

)( x X 

x 

x 
>: X 

x 
X X 

x 

x 

x 

X 

)( 

x 
x X 

/ 
x 

x X X X 
x X X 

> X :x: 
><X)<>< 

> X :x: 
>(XX)< 

x X X 
X X x 

/ 
x x 

/, 

)< 

, , 

x X X X K >( 
>: X X X :< :< 

x X X X / / 

. . 

X 

, . 

>( >( X 

"OYAIl!' X 7' / / n..x' x 
x r x 

x x 
X 

x 
x x x 

x 

x x x 

>< x )( X X 
x >< 

x X x x 

x X 
X X y x 

x X X X 
x X X >: 

x X X X X X 
X X X :x: 

>( X X X X )< 
> :x: X X >: 

X X X X X X 
X X :< X X 

--

, , , , , , , , , 

5"OAK 

----- ------

X 

"' x 

x 

x 

x 
x 

j ?'''',,><_ ?i _ x, _ \< , ..... <, '";'.1''' I j .i:;i;.'.III • . 1 II~ .' «..,.I i<_ . ?f _ f<r . 
. x .'" / / / ,'< / / !"" x /< _/< X X " " '" 

x :> )< >< '~' >< ;< >{ 7( X XL X X X :: 
>~//;<;<x l ><"<XX I >~ 

/-xx ~,x x ></'-x;<x ~ 

X 

x X X )< 

x X X )( 
x X >: 

>(X)<)()< 

x 

x 
X X 

x v '. 

y 

x 

x x 

x x 

x )( 

/ 
x X 

X 

x X 

X X 
/ 

)( 

x 
>: X 

x 
X X 

x 
x 

x 

)< 

x x 
x 

x 
x 

x 
x 

x 

>< >< 

>< 

i( 

x 

x 

)( 

x 

)< 

X 

x 

:< 

x 

)< 

>< 

v I , 

, , 
x >~ 

x >< 
X 

x x X 
.'/ 

' I-
f- _ X 

>( ::'>; 

>1 
,/ ,/ 
~, ~, 

I 

x x ~ " )oo!o... , X..i 

x 

x x 
>< x 

>< < 

> X \ X X 
)<)(XX 

X 
x y Y X 

x X 

McGREGOR DRIVE 

I , 

~I • • • " ---.:~/ -----

, 
I 

I , , 
I 
I 
I 

I , 
I 

I 

I 

I 
I , 
I , 

I 

I , , 

I 
I 

/~----~----

/ 
/ 

! 
! 

/ 
! 

I 
/ 
I 
I 

EXISTING TREE LEGEND 

ex. tree to be removed (typ.) 

Grading Legend 
Key Description 

existing contour 

proposed contour 

GRADING, DRAINAGE, EROSION CONTROL AND 
TREE PROTECTION SHEET NOTES: 
1. 
2. 
3. 

4. 

Construction entrance, see detail L-1.2 
Fiber roll, see detail L-1.2 
Oak root zone, no grading, provide tree protection 

fencing, see L-1.2 
Engineered bioswale see detail L-2.0 

SEE NOTES AND DETAILS SHEET L 1.2 

.- w 
o~ 
O~ 
C/)I-
C/)U 

«~ 
:I: 
u 

(I)/O<! 
s::::< 
Ow 
S::::"-
1..< 
«~ 
_0 
(l)z 
«s< .s::::-' 
o .-
~ 

DATE PURPOSE BY 

1.6.14 
2.25.14 <Xi lacement MAA 
3.31.14 bid set MAA 

scale: 

1" = 10' - 0" 
sheet title: 
East Grading + 
Drainage, Erosion 
Control, Tree 
Protection Plan 

sheet number: 

L - 1.1 
of eleven 

-61-

Item
 #: 10.A

. A
ttach

 1.p
d

f
• 

o . ..... , 
....J 
Q) 
Q) 

..s::::. 
en 

, , 

I 
I I 
I 
I I 
I 
I I 
I 
I I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 
I 

x x x :> 1>< 
><?<xx 

X A X X 

/ . 

x x X 
A xIX x x 
><>~.xxx 

x >< x x x x 
><>;Ixxx 

>' ;<1:< x x 
><>(>;iI>(XX 

x >< :< >< IX x >< 
x >< x x 

)< )< X xix >< 

, , 

\ , 

)( 

x 

X"//X.X 
vVXXV/. 

/n,//'x 'x 'I'"x: >. x X 
xX/./.X 

x x x ~< 1><. 
:< x x x • 

x x x ~< 

xx>«1 
x )< )< xl >< 

. >( 

.>( 

)( x 

x 

x 

\ 
\ 
\ 

126.02 

126.61 ------ ---

X A X X ." 
.<.", j{XX 

X/f.XY 

/< X X X 
xxx>.x 
xx><>~x 

X)<xxx 
X X X >: 

x 
x 

x 
x 

x 

x 

x 

)( 

x 

x x 

x x 
x x 

x x 
x x 

x x 

x x 

)< x 
X X 

x x x x 
x 

y x x x x x X A A 

X X X X >< x x ~ ~ x 
x x X X X X X X X X x x 
XXX/. /:. x x >< 

X :x: x x 
x x x x x x ~ x x x x x x x x x 

X X X X X X X X /Xxx )~ 

x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x x 
x x x x x X X X X 

x x 

f X X f 

x x x x 
X A A X X X X 

x x x x x x x 
x 

x x x X A A 

A X X X X A 

>< . 

x x x x :< x x x x 
x x x x x x x x x 

x >< >( >: :x: ;x: :x:;< y x >: >: x x x x :< :." x x x x x 
x x x >< 

>< x x X 
XX ';< ';< 

><x ,"'>(XXx x • 

>" /, ,", x III 
"/ >< >< >< 

'" • >. 

I 
I 
I 

I 
I 
I 

x x x x x x x x x 
x x x x x >< x x x 

x x x x 

x x x 
X X / . 

x x x x x y y x x x x x x 
x x X X X X X x x :< x x 

',' , >< 

x 
x 

x 

x 
x x 

x 

--

, , , , , , , , , 
------

, 

5"OAK 

I I». I>< _ ,>i _ >.'1 _ >< 1 ..('11 " : 1 I ... I j pllll.1 11a.- ,«..,. ri<_ ?f _ f<r 
. x " ~< ~< >< )< >< /" X :< _>< ·x x >. , >~ 

x >< x y .~ >( X >< 7( X XL X X X :: 
)( x >~ ><)< / , / , x i x;", >< Y, x x . >~ 

X A X X A / X X ~ X X X X X _< 
/, >< X X >~ )< X X >< • • " 'y '" '/ '/ x;; 

X A A x)' 'X:"/ X X -;. ' ·x ··x· 'x· ·;< · ·;<'~x 
x x X K X X X X x . -· . v ~ 

x x :~ /- x 'X: x ~~;. < ,A ,A / / . ... / 
' i _ '1'11'v; , ~· I . )·· U " " 

x x x x 
X X 

x X >'- .v, / .>< >< -7-, 

:x: :x: >' >' >< . 

>< x 
c 
~, 

>{ >( )< )< >< 
x x 

><xxxx 
x 

x 
. , 

Y / X X X A A X X A A 

x x x x ~ x x x x x x x 
x x X A X X X X X X 

x 
x 

x 

x 

x 

x 

><. 
x '/ 

.>< >~ x x 

x x 
x x '/ >< 

X x ' x 

x 

>( .:->< 

>< " • >< 

McGREGOR DRIVE 

~I • • • " ---.:~/ -----

, 
I 

I , , 
I 
I 
I 

I , 
I 

I 

I 

I 
I , 
I , 

I 

I , , 

I 
I 

EXISTING TREE LEGEND 

ex. tree to be removed (typ.) 

Grading Legend 
Key Description 

existing contour 

proposed contour 

GRADING, DRAINAGE, EROSION CONTROL AND 
TREE PROTECTION SHEET NOTES: 
1. 
2. 
3. 

4. 

Construction entrance, see detail L-1.2 
Fiber roll, see detail L-1.2 
Oak root zone, no grading, provide tree protection 

fencing, see L-1.2 
Engineered bioswale see detail L-2.0 

SEE NOTES AND DETAILS SHEET L 1.2 

\ , 

.- w 
o~ 
O~ 
C/)I-
C/)U 

«~ 
:I: 
u 

(I)~ 

s::::< 
Ow 
S::::"-
10..< 
«~ 
_0 
(l)z 
«s< .s::::-' 
o .-
~ 

DATE PURPOSE H 

1.6.14 • rolDlli~on!~ MJ 
2.25.14 pod placement MJ 
3.31.14 bid set M 

scale: 

1"=10'-0' 
sheet title: 
East Grading + 
Drainage, Erosion 
Control, Tree 
Protection Plan 

sheet number: 

L - 1.1 
of eleven 



EROSION CONTROL NOTES: 
1. The intention of the erosion control measures shown on this plan are for 

interim erosion and sediment control only. All erosion control measures 
shall conform to California Regional Water Quality Control's Field 

Manual 
for Erosion and Sedimentation Control, The Califomia Storm Water 
Quality Association Best Management Practices Handbook for 
Construction and the local governing agency for the project. 

2. No land clearing, grading, or excavation shall be done between October 
15th and April 15th. 

3. The City of Capitola, Department of Public Works shall be responsible 
for implementing and maintaining site erosion control at all times. 

4. The City of Capitola, Department of Public Works shall be responsible 
for checking and repairing erosion control systems after storm events 
and in the event of damage from construction processes. 

5. Measures shall be taken to collect and clean any accumUlation of dirt, 
mud,sand, gravel or rocks on the surface of any street. Removal shall 

be 
done with street sweepers or hand sweeping. Water shall not be used to 
wash sediments into public or private drainage systems. 

6. Unnecessary grading and disturbing of soil shall be avoided. 
7. Between October 15th and April 15th exposed soil shall be protected 

from erosion at all times .Hay bales, fiber berms, silt fences or other 
means shall be employed to prevent sediment from leaving the site and 
entering any watercourse. 

8. During construction, no turbid water shall be permitted to enter the 
channel or storm drain system. Use of silt or grease traps, filter berms, 
hay bales or silt fences shall be used to prevent such discharge. 

9. Construction entrances shall be installed prior to commencement of 
grading. All construction traffic entering on to the paved roads must 
cross the stabilized construction entrances. Contractor shall maintain a 
stabilized entrance at each entrance to a paved street. Any mud or 
debris tracked onto the public streets shall be removed daily. 

10. All areas on- and off-site exposed during construction activities, if not 
permanently landscaped per plan, shall be protected by mulching and/or 
planting of the following SCS approved erosion control mix at a rate of 
351bs. per acre. 

Blando Brome 50% 
Rose Clover (pellet innoculated) 35% 
Creeping Red Fescue 15% 
Zorro Annual Fescue Trace 

11. All excavated material shall be removed to an approved disposal site or 
disposed of on-site in a manner that will not cause erosion. 

12. Any material stockpiled on-site shall be covered with plastic during the 
winter months or during periods of rain. 

13. Exposed soil on slopes greater than 20% shall be seeded, covered with 
2· of straw, and an erosion control blanket. The erosion control blanket 
shall be staked in place. 

14. Fiber rolls shall be placed along the top of the down slope perimeter as 
shown by symbol on plan. Placement shall run with contours and rolls 
shall be tighlly end butted. Contractor shall refer to manufacturers 
specifications for placement and installation instructions. 

15. The City of Capitola, Department of Public Works shall be responsible 
for seeing that additional measures, necessary 10 control site erosion 
and prevent sediment transport off-site are implemented. 

GRADING and DRAINAGE NOTES: 
1. All grading shall be done in conformance with 

Capitola Municipal Code Chapter 13.16, Storm 
Water Pollution Prevention and Protection. 

2. Vegetation, roots and deleterious materials shall be 
removed from area to be graded prior to grading. 

3. Cut and fill slopes shall be 3:1 maximum or flatter
no exceptions. 

4. Dirt, strippings or structural fill will not be allowed to 
move on or off-site, through public rights-of-way or 
streets by non-licensed or off-road vehicles. 

5. Fill shall be compacted to 90% relative compaction 
unless otherwise noted. 

6. After grading, spread topsoil from strippings and 
landscaped areas 3" to 6" deep. 

TREE PROTECTION NOTES: 
1. Prior to initiating any construction activity in the area, including grading, temporary fencing shall be 

installed at each site tree. Fencing shall be located at or beyond the canopy drip line so that 100% of the 
drip line will be protected by fencing. To reduce soil compaction from equipment, a mulch of 1-2 inch 
sized wood chips shall be placed at a depth of 4 inches where no excavation is to occur in the vicinity of 
the trees to be protected. 

2. The tree protection fence shall be 6' high chain link with immovable posts. The fencing shall form a 
continuous barrier without entry points around each tree. Any encroachment into the drip line for fencing 
or construction purposes shall not be permitted. 

3. Low hanging limbs of saved trees shall be pruned prior to grading, or any equipment mobilization on 
site. The purpose of this requirement is to avoid tearing limbs by heavy equipment. All limbs to be pruned 
shall be supervised by the arborist of record for the job. 

4. This fencing shall serve as a barrier to prevent drip line encroachment of any type of construction 
activities and equipment. No oils, gas, chemicals, liquid waste, solid waste, construction machinery or 
construction materials shall be stored or allowed to stand for any period of time within the drip line of the 
tree. Further, no one shall enter the fence perimeter for any reason except for the purpose of monitOring 
the health of the tree. Accidental damage to bark, root crown, or limbs may increase the potential for 
future decline in the heaHh of the tree. 

5. Contractors and subcontractors shall direct all equipment and personnel to remain outside the fenced 
area and at all times until the project is complete, and shall instruct employees as to the purpose and 
importance of fenCing. 

6. A warning sign shall be posted at each tree indicating the purpose of the fencing. 

7. The arborist of record for the job and or the city arborist shall be responsible for inspection and 
approval of the fencing prior 10 any grading operations. 

8. Fencing must remain in place and shall not be removed until all construction activities are completed. 
This shall include grading and compaction activities, installation of underground utilities, all construction 
activities, and any other construction or activity that is scheduled prior to landscape installation. 

9. Roots of single standing trees often extend up the to three times the distance of the actual drip line and 
function primarily in the uptake of nutrients and water. The drip line is arbitrarily established as the 
minimum root area generally required to preserve tree health. As much area around the circumference of 
the tree should have minimum intrusion to further insure tree survival and health. 

10. Unauthorized tree removal is subject to in-kind replacement equal to the mature resource lost as 
determined by the city. 

11. The contractor is required to water, fertilize and attend to other maintenance needs of existing trees 
as needed per arborist's recommendations to maintain healthy growth throughout the construction period. 
Six foot diameter minimum by six inch tall earth berms shall be constructed at the base of each tree to 
function as temporary watering basins during the construction period. Trees shall be watered according to 
weather and tree requirements. 

12. Relocation of existing trees (if desired) shall occur under the observation and direction of a certified 
arborisl approved by the City of Capitola. Contact City for additional notes regarding tree location. 

13. Please consult speCifications concerning tree protection and maintenance prepared by project 
arborist or more information. 

14. No trenching shall occur within the tree protection zone. 

15. All digging within the drip line of trees shall be done by hand. 

16. Exposed soil after demolition must be covered immediately with a six inch layer of wood chip mulch. 

c 
I, 

NOTE: 

1. REFER TO TREE PROTECTION NOTES FOR /jo,J:\ I \ I \ 1;1'""'" 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION. \ ("\ '1\ V \ \j; . 
2. MAXIMUM SPACING OF POSTS SHALL BE 10 FEET ----------------\~\ \ \\ V/ 1/ 
3. INSTALL ALL TREE PROTEC1l0N FENCING PRIOR /' EXISTING TREE TO REMAIN ~~ ~ \\ ~ \\ ]V I .\ 
TO START OF ANY CONSRUCTION OR DISTURBANCE I \"- \ I <A 
TO SITE ADJACENT TO TREES TO REMAIN. / /:- DRIP LINE ;;:~"'''-\ \ I / ____ ------/.,--'\ 

{" \ \ I / ~ / ~ \ //4 
/ 

~ 6' CHAIN LINK FENCE -~\ ~'-,-"'-'~" ~\ \ 1/ /// // _<\ 
~~~ ~~ / / \ ",,~:>'~"":::~~ /I/-=-~"""'<1 

/

/ ~/ / /'- 2·DIA.GALVANIZED-, \ ~, ""~ o / /~ / STEEL POST. TVP \ \ 

;/ / XX . / \ \ I /' \ 

I \ / I 

( /J" · \, 
\ I 
I I \ v 

~IIIII IIII 11111- " 
PI", ~ 2' MIN. ~III _ I""~ 

"-EXTEND FENCING PERIMETER BY 50% 

Elevation 

BEYOND TI-lE DRIPLINE OF MATIJRE 
SPECIMEN TREES WHERE POSSIBLE 

1 PROTECTIVE FENCING FOR EXISTING TREES 
L1.0 

SCALE: 1/4" = l' - 0" 

:::::rusled og~~egate greoter thon 75 Illill 

;:3 in) tit smaller' th'Jn 1~,::J -nm (5 i11 
I 
I 
I ,Fil.e, folJ(c 

- (iriqi'lol 
--"U07 ',-,'- JOn 1- --",--..lOr "--'~" / -d 

----Ao.\)AOC!\"I,~9DpQS)oi?>=};:'L\:I,~9\=to~ L ~ra e 

- JUU miT ('1:2 in) \~ill, uiliess othenNise 
specified by a soils ergireer 

SECTI :Jrl B- B 
~ITS 

I·IOTE: 
C(n~-r. Jct ~ccillc;n- harrier 
ond chonne iZ8 rLnof~ tc 
seuirr1erll ~rUf.::Jir1';,j del/ice 

Vertical spacing 
measured along the 
face of the slope 
varies between 
2.4 m and 6.0 m 

Note: 
Install fiber roll 
along a level contour. 

-v 
Install a fiber roll near 

---~ slope 'INhere it transitions 
into a steeper slope 

TYPICAL FIBER ROLL INSTALLATION 
N.T.S. 

~~ I 

Wid-h ac 
'equ', cd lu 
:]ccomcdotE 
::_H1Lici:_K Led 
b'dt; c 

0. 

f,latch 
existing 
Cccdc 

1.5 rr Min 

cr leur LirT e~ Lhe ::..::ir::,,::urrI-erer1ce 
of tle lorqest construction vehicle tire, 

w'hicl~ever is greater 

P LJ'I,I\ 
I-ITS 

CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE 

not to scale \L-1.1J 

Fiber roll 
200 mrn min 

19rnrnx 
19mm 
wood stakss 
rnax1.2m 
spacing 

ENTRENCHMENT DETAIL 

N.T.S. 

FIBER ROLLS 

not to scale 

tn 
Q) .... NE co cc8 

OGi .- w 1/)"-
Uco: C!)~ 
O~ «"2 
tnl- ui 
tn U .0 

N E 
«~ :l "! 

O~ 
+ J: mE 

U +'8 
Q)co: I: . 

m~ 
s;::< (fJrl .. 
Ow 11)" 

() lij 
s;::o.. .!!l~ 
L.,< o..~ 

«~ -'" II)@) 
:l~ 

_0 E 'e 
Q)z m", 
CO< (fJ1ll 

o~ .s::::: ..... I'-~ 

U 
(")..-' 
(")1:l .-

~ 

DATE PURPOSE BY 

1.6.14 
2.25.14 od lacement MAA 
3.31.14 bid set MAA 

scale: 

as noted 
sheet title: 
Grading + Drainage, 
Erosion Control, Tree 
Protection Notes and 
Details 

sheet number: 

L - 1.2 
of eleven 

-62-

Item
 #: 10.A

. A
ttach

 1.p
d

f

EROSION CONTROL NOTES: 
1. The intention of the erosion control measures shown on this plan are for 

interim erosion and sediment control only. All erosion control measures 
shall conform to California Regional Water Quality Control's Field 

Manual 
for Erosion and Sedimentation Control, The California Storm Water 
Quality Association Best Management Practices Handbook for 
Construction and the local governing agency for the project. 

2. No land clearing, grading, or excavation shall be done between October 
15th and April 15th. 

3. The City of Capitola, Department of Public Works shall be responsible 
for implementing and maintaining site erosion control at all times. 

4. The City of Capitola, Department of Public Works shall be responsible 
for checking and repairing erosion control systems after storm events 
and in the event of damage from construction processes. 

5. Measures shall be taken to collect and clean any accumUlation of dirt, 
mud,sand, gravel or rocks on the surface of any street. Removal shall 

be 
done with street sweepers or hand sweeping. Water shall not be used to 
wash sediments into public or private drainage systems. 

6. Unnecessary grading and disturbing of soil shall be avoided. 
7. Between October 15th and April 15th exposed soil shall be protected 

from erosion at all times .Hay bales, fiber berms, silt fences or other 
means shall be employed to prevent sediment from leaving the site and 
entering any watercourse. 

S. During construction, no turbid water shall be permitted to enter the 
channel or storm drain system. Use of silt or grease traps, filter berms, 
hay bales or silt fences shall be used to prevent such discharge. 

9. Construction entrances shall be installed prior to commencement of 
grading. All construction traffic entering on to the paved roads must 
cross the stabilized construction entrances. Contractor shall maintain a 
stabilized entrance at each entrance to a paved street. Any mud or 
debris tracked onto the public streets shall be removed daily. 

10. All areas on- and off-site exposed during construction activities, if not 
permanently landscaped per plan, shall be protected by mulching and/or 
planting of the following SCS approved erosion control mix at a rate of 
351bs. per acre. 

Blando Brome 50% 
Rose Clover (pellet innoculated) 35% 
Creeping Red Fescue 15% 
Zorro Annual Fescue Trace 

11. All excavated material shall be removed to an approved disposal site or 
disposed of on-site in a manner that will not cause erosion. 

12. Any material stockpiled on-site shall be covered with plastic during the 
winter months or during periods of rain. 

13. Exposed soil on slopes greater than 20% shall be seeded, covered with 
2" of straw, and an erosion control blanket. The erosion control blanket 
shall be staked in place. 

14. Fiber rolls shall be placed along the top of the down slope perimeter as 
shown by symbol on plan. Placement shall run with contours and rolls 
shall be tightly end butted. Contractor shall refer to manufacturers 
specifications for placement and installation instructions. 

15. The City of Capitola, Department of Public Works shall be responsible 
for seeing that additional measures, necessary to control site erosion 
and prevent sediment transport off-site are implemented. 

GRADING and DRAINAGE NOTES: 
1. All grading shall be done in conformance with 

Capitola Municipal Code Chapter 13.16, Storm 
Water Pollution Prevention and Protection. 

2. Vegetation, roots and deleterious materials shall be 
removed from area to be graded prior to grading. 

3. Cut and fill slopes shall be 3:1 maximum or flatter
no exceptions. 

4. Dirt, strippings or structural fill will not be allowed to 
move on or off-site, through public rights-of-way or 
streets by non-licensed or off-road vehicles. 

5. Fill shall be compacted to 90% relative compaction 
unless otherwise noted. 

6. After grading, spread topsoil from strippings and 
landscaped areas 3" to 6" deep. 

TREE PROTECTION NOTES: 
1. Prior to initiating any construction activity in the area, including grading, temporary fencing shall be 

installed at each site tree. Fencing shall be located at or beyond the canopy drip line so that 100% of the 
drip line will be protected by fencing. To reduce soil compaction from equipment, a mulch of 1-2 inch 
sized wood chips shall be placed at a depth of 4 inches where no excavation is to occur in the vicinity of 
the trees to be protected. 

2. The tree protection fence shall be 6' high chain link with immovable posts. The fencing shall form a 
continuous barrier without entry points around each tree. Any encroachment into the drip line for fencing 
or construction purposes shall not be permitted. 

3. Low hanging limbs of saved trees shall be pruned prior to grading, or any equipment mobilization on 
site. The purpose of this requirement is to avoid tearing limbs by heavy equipment. All limbs to be pruned 
shall be supervised by the arborist of record for the job. 

4. This fencing shall serve as a barrier to prevent drip line encroachment of any type of construction 
activities and equipment. No oils, gas, chemicals, liquid waste, solid waste, construction machinery or 
construction materials shall be stored or allowed to stand for any period of time within the drip line of the 
tree. Further, no one shall enter the fence perimeter for any reason except for the purpose of monitOring 
the health of the tree. Accidental damage to bark, root crown, or limbs may increase the potential for 
future decline in the heaHh of the tree. 

5. Contractors and subcontractors shall direct all equipment and personnel to remain outside the fenced 
area and at all times until the project is complete, and shall instruct employees as to the purpose and 
importance of fenCing. 

6. A warning sign shall be posted at each tree indicating the purpose of the fencing. 

7. The arborist of record for the job and or the city arborist shall be responsible for inspection and 
approval of the fencing prior to any grading operations. 

S. Fencing must remain in place and shall not be removed until all construction activities are completed. 
This shall include grading and compaction activities, installation of underground utilities, all construction 
activities, and any other construction or activity that is scheduled prior to landscape installation. 

9. Roots of single standing trees often extend up the to three limes the distance of the actual drip line and 
function primarily in the uptake of nutrients and water. The drip line is aribitrarily established as the 
minimum root area generally required to preserve tree health. As much area around the circumference of 
the tree should have minimum intrusion to further insure tree survival and health. 

10. Unauthorized tree removal is subject to in-kind replacement equal to the mature resource lost as 
determined by the city. 

11. The contractor is required to water, fertilize and attend to other maintenance needs of existing trees 
as needed per arborist's recommendations to maintain healthy growth throughout the construction period. 
Six foot diameter minirnum by six inch tall earth berms shall be constructed at the base of each tree to 
function as temporary watering basins during the construction period. Trees shall be watered according to 
weather and tree requirements. 

12. Relocation of existing trees (if desired) shall occur under the observation and direction of a certified 
arborist approved by the City of Capitola. Contact City for additional notes regarding tree location. 

13. Please consult specifications concerning tree protection and maintenance prepared by project 
arborist or more information. 

14. No trenching shall occur within the tree protection zone. 

15. All digging within the drip line of trees shall be done by hand. 

16. Exposed soil after demolition must be covered immediately with a six inch layer of wood chip mulch. 

NOTE: 

1. REFER TO TREE PROTECTION NOTES FOR 
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION. 

2. MAXIMUM SPACING OF POSTS SHALL BE 10 FEET 

3. INSTALL ALL TREE PROTECTION FENCING PRIOR ,~---- EXISTING TREE TO REMAIN --'~ 
TO START OF ~y CQNSRUCTION OR DISTURBANCE / 
TO SITE ADJACENT TO TREES TO REMAIN. / ~ DRIP LINE 

// / ~ •• CHAIN LINK FENCE 

/~~ ~~~/ / // - 2·DIA.GALVAINIZED--' 

(/ /~x// -=~ 

i /( 
\ / 
\ I 
\ I 
\ I 

\'''''''''~~-~~//~ 
~an ~ 

6' 

2' I 

"- EXTEND FENCING PERIMETER BY 50% 
BEYOND TI-lE DRIPLINE OF MATIJRE 
SPECIMEN TREES WHERE POSSIBLE 

Elevation 

1 PROTECTIVE FENCING FOR EXISTING TREES 

c 
I, 

~~ I 

0.. 

Hatch 
EYisting 
Grode 

L1.0 
SCALE: 1/4" = l' - 0" 

2rUSled og~~egate greoter than 75 Illill 
;:.3 in) tit smaller" th'Jn 1~·::l Tlm (5 i11 
I 
I 
I ,Fil .er four"c 

- (iriqi'lol 
--"U07 ',-,'- JOn 1- j '-YOr "--'~" / -d 

-----Ao,\)AC(K"I,~9DpQS)C?\J:=};:~\::I,~9\=tO~ L ~ra e 

':,,,,'"2' 
' \--\ '-;r-

<:(-- /' 

- JUU miT ('1:2 in) \1in, uiliess othenNise 
specified by a soils ergireer 

SECTI :Jrl B- B 
~ITS 

I'JOTE: 
C(n ~ -r . Jct ~ccillc;n- harrier 
ond chonne iZ8 rLnof~ tc 
s8uirr1erll ~ruf.::Jirl';,j deI/ice 

15 rr Min 

cr fcur tirres the ::::::ir:um-"erence 
of he largest constructi~n vehicle tice, 

which:;vel- is grEIJtel-

PLp,l\ 
IHS 

CONSTRUCTION ENTRANCE 

not to scale 

Wid-h ac 
. equ'r cd lu 
:]ccomcdotE 
::_H1lici:_K leu 
b'dti c 

Vertical spacing 
measured along the 
face of the slope 
varies between 
2.4 m and 6.0 m 

Note: 
Install fiber roll 
along a level contour. 

-v 
Install a fiber roll near 

-------~ slope 'INhere it transitions 
into a steeper slope 

TYPICAL FIBER ROLL INSTALLATION 
N.T.S. 

Fiber roll 
200 mm min 

19mrnx 
19mm 
wood stakes 
max1.2m 
spacing 

ENTRENCHMENT DETAIL 

N.T.S. 

FIBER ROLLS 

not to scale 

tn 
Q) .... NE co cc8 

OGi .- w 1/)"-
Uco: C!)~ 
O~ «"2 
tnl- ui 
tn U .0 

N E 
«~ :l "! 

O~ 
+ J: mE 

U ... 8 
Q)co: I: . 

m~ 
s;::< (fJrl .. 
Ow 11)" 

() lij 
s;::o.. .!!l~ 
L.,< o..~ 

«~ -'" II)@) 
:l~ 

_0 E 'e 
Q)z m", 
CO< (fJ1ll 

o~ .s::::: ..... I'-~ 

U 
(")..-' 
(")1;l .-

~ 

DATE PURPOSE BY 

1.6.14 'gl~!U1IJaI MAA 
2.25.14 pod placement MAA 
3.31.14 bid set MAA 

scale: 

as noted 
sheet title: 
Grading + Drainage, 
Erosion Control, Tree 
Protection Notes and 
Details 

sheet number: 

L - 1.2 
of eleven 



LAYOUT AND MATERIALS SHEET NOTES: CONSTRUCTION NOTES: 
1. Fonn and pour new asphalt curbs for new enlry. 1. Cc:.mtraclor shall notify Underground Sarvice Alert (USA) at 

2. Vehicle gale 800 842.2444 to verlfytha 1000000n and depth of allaxlstlng utllilles 

3. Portable restroom pr1orto any demolition, 1J'enchlng or excava1lon. 

4. 6' High wooden screen 2. All spoils and dabn. from the demolition work shal be hauilid orr sita 

5. Solar powered LED light" see schedule sheet L-2.0 and dllpo88Cl of In a lawful manner as Il8rt of the COntractor's lita .,d 

6. Bike racks:see schedule sheet L-2.0 demolition worlt 

7. Trash recycling receptacles: see schedule sheet L-2.0 3. Contractors shall review all related work required on all other 

8. Drinking fountain: see schedule sheet L-2.0, install as per lancbcape Ilordllteoluralshecb and apec/ftocrtlons prior to start of 

manufact. instructions construction. 
9. Dog clean-up station:see schedule sheet L-2.0 4. Contracior shall take care not to damage in any way. any Ibdstil'lQ 
10. Decomposed granite path. see detail A sheet L-2.0 elements 10 rema"'. Such damage is the responsibility of the contractor 

11. Service access gates I!.nd 5hBlI ba I"BplaGed or rapHirad to match ihl9 original HI no IIddibollilll 

12. Benches:see schedule sheet L-2.0 oost to tn. owner. 

13. Kids play area: see detail G sheet L-2.0 5. All dlmenalol'18 and elevation. shall be vartned In the nald and 

14. Two seat game lable:see schedule sheet L-2.0 chalud, flaggad or string 1i1..::1 prier to any construction. If any 

15. sleeve under paving (typical) dlaaapendes Oc:c:\.lr, noIIft L..ar1d1cape Archlleclimmedlalllly before 

16. Form and pour new asphalt curb to close off existing entry proceeding. 

17. Engineered bloswale, overflow to daylight at Me Gregor Dr. 6. IV. interface ofnew landscape and 8XJsting, gracies shall be unlfonn 
See delail B sheat L-2.0. and provide a smooth transition. 
1 S. Planned location of recycling pod. 7. No top lIOil ahal be in8'IBIled within 10' of lrunkl!! of exi8ting trees to 
19. Opening in fence, 6'-0" wide remain. 
20. Donor Sign: see detail H sheel L-2.0 B. All il'Tp)rted tc:p lIOil end fin aoil for iandKAlpe areas ahan ba tested 

21. Drinking fountain percolation pit: 16" diameter, 3' deep filled by a scils lac and apflIUVEId by Landscapa Archil£ltf before delivery ID 
with 314" drain rock. Connect drain line from fountain to pit. site. Landscape Contractor sI1al pay lor all testing. 

SITE FURNISHING LEGEND· 

KEY DESCRIPTION MANUFACTURER MODEL # ca..ORIFINISH.t.10UNT QUANTITY CONTACT 

I::::==:::J DIKE RACK BLACK , dl.mOfcom SINGLE SIDE ENTRY, 9 OPENINGS DuMor 81-10 
IKLTTO CONCN:TE FOOTI/IClI 

0 TRASH RECEPTACLE 11RE-00006 GRAY RECEPTACLE & LID , PARKN poa. 11AC-00022 parknpool.com 
32 GALLON wI LINER & DOME LID 11RE-00006 NO-IOR TO OONCIIETE ~ 

0 
11 RE-OOOC16 MYSTIC BLUE par1(npool.oom RECYCLING RECEPTACLE PARKN poa. 11AC-OOOZ2 

RECEPTACLE & LID 
, 

32 GALLON wI LINER & DOLo1E LID 11RE-00006 ~ TO CONCRETE FOOT'ItO 

~ BENCH 
DuMor BENCH 165 HUNTER GREEN , dl.mOf.com RECYCLED PLASTIC w/BACK 16580PL AND REDWOOD 

!\IoDoJJR TO CONCRETE FOOTlNU 

I!..lJ 
GAME TABLE TABLE 78 w/2_18 HUNTER GREEN 

dl.mOfcom 2 SEAT RECYCLED PLASTIC DuMor 78-32P1.. AND REDWOOD 1 
.fIo'D.IOR 1/11 CONCREI'~ FOO1IN~ 

€l1f) DRINKING FOUNTAIN CUSTOfoI BLUE 
HAWS 3500D "'1TmCON<;RIiTIiFOOT.,.. 2 hawsco.com ADA COMPLIANT wI DOG BASIN 

IIE~ MANUFACruRER8 DET .... 

U OOGSTATION DOODY CALLS DIRECT THE GLADIATOR BLACK 2 doodycalilldlrec:t.com 
.fIo'D.IOR TO OONCIIIi1'E FOI:IT1NG 

1~T3 
SOLAR LED LIGHT FIXTURE FIRSTLlGKT IPL SERIES 

BLACK 3 fir&llillhttllchnllloglM oom 
ON 12 FOOT POLE TECHNOLOGIES TYPE3ELo1S SEE MANUfllCT\l1lEft:3 DET .... 

'~)T5 
SOLAR LED LIGHT FIXTURE FIRSTLlGKT IPL SERIES 

BLACK 2 nrsulllhttechnologlH.com 
ON 10 FOOT POLE TECHNOLOGIES TYPE5ELo1S 

R~ MNlU~IICT\I~3 DEl .... 

.. SEE PRODUCT CUT SHEETS ON L-2.1 

PAVING LEGEND 

KEY DESCRIPTION LOCATION 

ASPHALT SKATE PARK 

COLORIFINISHfMETHOD 

2" THICKASPHAL TIC CONCRETE OVER 
4" COMPACTED BASEROCK SUB BASE 

SLOPE TO BIOS'NALE 

SQUARE FOOTAGE (APPROXIMATE) 

4,40050 FT 

CONCRETE 

DECOMPOSED 

GRANITE 

wf STABILIZER 

ADA PARKING 

PATHWAYS AND 

SEATING AREA 

6" THICK NATURAL COLOR CONCRETE OVER 
e" COMPACTED BASEROCK SUB BASE WITH 
#4 STEEL REBAR GRID 2-4" ON CENTER 

2" THICK CAL GOLD COLOR DECOMPOSED 
GRANITE OVER 4" COMPACTED DRAIN ROCK 

SEE DETAILA/L-1.0 

4688Q FT 

2.3948Q FT 

COBBLE TOP OF BIOSWALE 2" THICK BED OF SMALL WATER WASHED COBBLE 512 SQ FT 
OVER TOP OF BIOSWALE - SEE DETAIL 811..-1.0 

BARK MULCH KIDS PLAY AREA 8" THICK BED OF ENGINEERED FIBAR (OR EQUAL) 1,021 sa FT 

BARE SOIL DOG PARK 

PUMP TRACK 

CLEAR OF ROOTS AND LARGE ROCKS 27.088 SQ FT 

ROUGH GRADE TO DRAIN TOWARD SOUTH SLOPE 

PHASE I SKATE PARK ROUGH GRADE TO DRAIN TOWARD BIOSWALE 

MAIN PARKING LOT 8" COMPACTED BASEROCK 

OVER COfolPACTED BASE 

USE STABILZING BINDER FOR ALL DG PATHS 

USE 2" X 6" PRESSURE TREATED HEADER 
ALONG BOTH SIDES TO CONTAIN MATERIAL 

STAKE MINIMUM 6' ON CENTER 

~----~WIDTH AS PER PLAN----_ 

:I 
II 

!I 
!I 

A DECOMPOSED GRANITE PATH SECTION 

L-2.0 SCALE: NOT TO SCALE 

F 

,---·2'8" PRESSURE TREATED HEADER 
ON SIDE ADJACENT TO DG PATH 

COUPACTED 3/4" BASE ROCK ---, 

COUPACTED SUBGRADE 

Gravel Parking Section 

L-2,O not to scale 

8" 

9,157 SO FT 

standard curb wI 1 B" curb 

, , 

\ 

\ 
\ 
\ 

, 

\ 
\ 
\ 

\ 

LEGEND 

KEY 

\ 
I 

\ 

\ 

\ 

I 
\ 

\ DESCRIPTION 
I 

",E"~"",",-·~--~~~~-~-~··"","",'I ~DA accessible walkway 

----- 4' black vinyl clad chain link fence (skate park) 

_11_11_11_11- 42" wood and wire fence (dog park) 

--------------

_1- _1_1_1_ 3' high split rail fence (kids play area and street frontage) 

B 

1/ ------'" 

( •. oJ Existing trees to remain 
,~ 

" // 

;l"OA~ 
Existing trees to be removed 

bioswale 
permeable growing 
medium ------, 

· · .1t:~~~~~~~;;;~~~ 

III 

,-- 8""d'I" curb w/18" curb 
cuts (where shown on plan) 

caltrans class 2 
permeable melerlal 

j~:c~~~rc'---- 6" perforated pipe (where shown on plan) 

18"----

bioswale detail 
L-2.0 not to scale 

/---------- splil rail fence - see detail EIL-2.0 

large Sonoma Field stone Boulders 

/ Eucalyptus limbs for forts and lean-to play 

Eucalyptus rounds for slapping stones 
vary heights from 6" to 24" max. 

transition from smallest to largest diameter 

1_/' splil Eucalyptus trunks for balance beam 

Engineered FIBAR play surface 
use S" thick bed of malarial 

Locate all climbing elements a minimum 
4' from fencing 

slacked Eucalyptus rounds 
secure rounds for stability 
not to exceed 3' in height 

6' wide opening in fence 

Kids play area plan view 
not to scale 

7'-fJ" 

r 
4'-0" 

BLACK VINYL CLAD CHAIN LINK FENCE 

2" ml~ GI\LV'NIZ"D --I 
STEEL TOP STRlriGER 

18" min.'fmCllIII ,1m' cCCI \iTiC!!!JCjjj'!!!JcO;:' 
IIII III 

II, 

2'-4" 

2'" CIA. GALVANIZED 
STEEL POST, TYP. 

'~----- CONCRETE FOOTING (TYPICAL) 

C 4' Chain Link Fence Elevation 
L-2,O not 10 scale 

1------ 3'-0" -----I 

J

ill 
i ' , I 
J I 

1-0 __ --- 3'-4" oc ----

(H'\ Donor Sign 
I \L-2,O/ not to scale 

,~, 

, Notas: 

I 1.Redwood sign 
with painted lettenng. 
2. Text to be 
changed for each 
park entrance. 

4'-0" 

----------------

I 
/ 

---
xx <>",xxxxx 

XAXX~'X'xx'xxxx 

)<~)- <> AXXAXXXX)- <)< 
YYVVvvXV:<'",XvVVv 

<, " '" ,XXYXYX (x <, 
'" XAX \7 \7 "i'" '" "AX 

---------

existing trees and vegetation 

42" 

16" 

.. 7'-0" oc:--------j-1 

2x4"topstrlng. 

314 x 1 112· framing on NCI1 side afWln! 

4X4" RedWood post (typiCIII) 

'----- ~",,,,,"d d.~mpoed granit. foDtinll 

~12" 

D 42" Wire Fence 
L-2,O not to scale 

~~GG[S~I3L[ p;.n lNG !.PAC[ ~GlIS~ 

/ ,~ 

I 
-~Tlc=======,-----n-----lTl----r===,,= .. =,=,,~~-r,-

) 

// ~, 

/ I \ 
(\L-2.0) 

10 - 0· 

(:1 
~;:I 

~-O" 

Accessible stall 

not to scale 

~. (TY> UL)-HI 
10 -C· 

~" Wllt I~"" ' ''' oj Ue 
/ S1I'lP[ (TIPK;I\l) 

© Michael Arnone Landscaoe Architect - 2014 
THESE DRAWINGS ARE INSTRUMENTS OF SERVICE, ISSUED FORA ONE-TIME SINGLE USE BY THE 
OWNER niE ENTIRE CONTENTS OF TriESE DRA'NINBSIS COPVRIOHTC MICHAEL ARNONE 
LANDSCJl.PE ARCHITECT. LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT RETAINS ALL RIGHTS !'\NO TITLE. NO PAFP' MAY 
BE REPRODUCED IN ANY FASHION OR foIEDIUM WITHOIJT ~.RESS...WRIIT.EN..AEERovt! OF 

- -- - - --TI1E1..ANDSCAPE-:a.RCFIITECT. THE PROPE:FfELECTRONiC TRANSFER OF DATA SHALL BE n-JE 
USER'S RESPONSIBIL!!:,,~!!!'I..Q.U~ L~J!:ITYTO .!.~~.Q~~ECL.._ _ _ __ 

--------

/ 

/ 
r 

-------

OWNER SHALl-ASSUME RESPONSIBIUTY FOR. COMPLIANCE WITH AU. EASEMENTS, SE'TiAcK/ 
REQUIREMENTS AND PROPERTY LINES. OWNER SHALL ACQUIRE AU. NECESSARY P~ITS 
REQUIRED TO PERFORM WORK SHOWN ON F'LANS. BASE INFORMATION HAS BEEN1'ROVIDED BY 
THE OWNER. MICHAEL ARNONE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE ASSUMES NO LI,..sfLlTY FOR THE 
ACCURACY OF SAID PROPERTY LINE DOLtliOARIES. FENCELINES OR PROP~RTY CORNj":RS 

/ ,... 
l..~~ 'I' 

McGREGOR DRIVE ~~~~~~~ 

I 
I 

I 
I 
I 

I 

I 
I I 
I r 

I I 

I 
I 
I 

I 
i 
I 

I 

I 
1 

I 
I 
1 

I~ 
1£ 
i~ 

Ii 
i 
I 

I 
I 
i 

I 
i 
I 

I 
I 
I 

I 

- .. --------7'-0"-------1-1 

/ / 

/ / 
4x4"posl-~ / 

2 x 6· bottom ~n ----~, 

36" Redwood Split Rail Fence 
not to scale 

RJElR c/.LTPJ~IS - _______ 

R=:JJlftTCf" , 31st< 

\ / .. .. 
,. .. 

2 5 ' DV<fJ C/'Lvt.' IZED FIP= 

II/ \ r\ 

I' '-I-I "< 'I ,, / -11-1-' '-' L 10 " DL'IJ X 2 • DEEP I ' - /~CO'IC -XTIIJG 3T:f' PIFE 

_I 1== I I ~1l/ J . Cl rAR -,~ rom ~G '}.:lTT:-IV 

-l:!f 
Accessible Parking Signage 

not to scale 

:I: 
U 

0)..: 
s::::::< 
Ow 
S::::::"
Ir..< 
<C~ 
_0 

O)z 
CU< 

.s::::::-' 
o .-
~ 

DATE PURPOSE BY 
1.6.14 
2,25.14 cd [acement MAA 
3.31.14 bid set MAA 

scale: 

1" = 20' -0" 
sheet title: 
Layout and 
Materials Plan 

sheet number: 

L - 2.0 
of eleven 

-63-

Item
 #: 10.A

. A
ttach

 1.p
d

f
LAYOUT AND MATERIALS SHEET NOTES: CONSTRUCTION NOTES: 
1. Fonn and pour new asphalt curbs for new enlry. 1. Cc:.mtraclor shall notify Underground Sarvice Alert (USA) at 

2. Vehicle gale 800 542.2444 to verlfytha 1000000n and depth of all existing utllilles 

3. Portable restroom pr1orto any demolition, 1J'enchlng or excava1on. 

4. 6' High wooden screen 2. All spoils and dabns from the demolition work shal be hauled off sitll 

5. Solar powered LED light" see schedule sheet L-2.0 and disposed of In a lawful manner as Il8rt of the COntractor's alta .,d 

6. Bike racks:see schedule sheet L-2.0 demolition worlt 

7. Trash recycling receptacles: see schedule sheet L-2.0 3. Contractors shall review all related work required on all other 

8. Drinking fountain: see schedule sheet L-2.0, install as per landscape archltecluralshecb and spec/ftoa'llons prior to start of 

manufact. instructions construction. 
9. Dog clean-up station:see schedule sheet L-2.0 4. Contracior shall take care not to damage in any way. any Ibdstil'lQ 
10. Decomposed granite path. see detail A sheet L-2.0 elements 10 remai"l. Such damage is the responsibility of the contractor 

11. Service access gates I!.nd shBiI ba I"BplaGed or rapHirad to match iha original HI no IIdditiol1illl 

12. Benches:see schedule sheet L-2.0 oost to tn. owner. 

13. Kids play area: see detail G sheet L-2.0 5. All dlmenalons and elevations shall be vartned In the nsld and 

14. Two seat game lable:see schedule sheet L-2.0 chalkad, flagged or string 1i1..::1 prier to any construction. If any 

15. sleeve under paving (typical) dlscnpendes Oc:c:\.lr, notIf:I L..a/'1d1espe Ard'IlIecIlmmedlately before 
16. Form and pour new asphalt curb to close off existing entry proceeding. 

17. Engineered bloswale, overflow to daylight at Mc Gregor Dr. 6. IV. interface ofnew landscape and 8XJsting, gracies shall be unlfonn 
See detail B sheet L-2.0. and provide a smooth transition. 
1 S. Planned location of recycling pod. 7. No top scilahal be in81:Blied within 10' of lrunks of exi8ting trees to 

19. Opening in fence, 6'-0" wide remain. 
20. Donor Sign: see detail H sheet L-2.0 B. All il'Tp)rted tcp aoil and flU aoil for iand8cape areBS ahan ba tested 
21. Drinking fountain percolation pit: 16" diameter, 3' deep filled by a seils lac and apflIUVEId by Landscape Archil£ltf before delivery ID 
with 3tI4" drain rock. Connect drain line from fountain to pit. 

SITE FURNISHING LEGEND· 

KEY DESCRIPTION MANUFACTURER 

I::::==:::J DIKE RACK 
SINGLE SIDE ENTRY, 9 OPENINGS DuMor 

0 TRASH RECEPTACLE 
32 GALLON wI LINER & DOME UD 

PARKN Pea. 

0 RECYCLING RECEPTACLE PARKN Pea. 
32 GALLON wI LINER & DOLo1E LID 

~ BENCH 
DuMor RECYCLED PLASTIC w/BACK 

I!..lJ 
GAME TABLE 
2 SEAT RECYCLED PLASTIC DuMor 

u-€J DRINKING FOUNTAIN 
HAWS ADA COMPLIANT wI DOG BASIN 

D OOGSTATION DOODY CALLS DIRECT 

1~T3 
SOLAR LED LIGHT FIXTURE FIRST LlGf-IT 
ON 12 FOOT POLE. TECHNOLOGIES 

'~)T5 
SOLAR LED LIGHT FIXTURE FIRST LlGf-IT 
ON 10 FOOT POLE TECHNOLOGIES 

.. SEE PRODUCT CUT SHEETS ON L-2.1 

PAVING LEGEND 

KEY DESCRIPTION 

ASPHALT 

CONCRETE 

DECOMPOSED 

GRANITE 

wf STABILIZER 

COBBLE 

BARK MULCH 

LOCATION 

SKATE PARK 

MJA. PARKING 

PATHWAYS AND 

SEATING AREA 

TOP OF BIOSWALE 

KIDS PLAY AREA 

site. Landl5C8pe Contractor si1al pay lor all testing. 

MODEL # ca..ORIFINISH.t.10UNT 

81-10 
BLACK 
IKLTTO CONCN:l'E FOOT'*' 

11RE-00006 GRAY RECEPTACLE & LID 11AC-00022 
11RE-00006 ..wr;J-tOR TOOONCRETE ~ 

11 RE-OOOCl6 MYSTIC BLUE 11AC-OOOZ2 
RECEPTACLE & LID 11RE-00006 ~ TO CONCRETE FOOTViO 

BENCH 165 HUNTER GREEN 
16580PL AND REDWOOD 

~ TO OONCRETE FOOTlNU 

TABLE 78 w/2_ta HUNTER GREEN 
78-32P1.. AND REDWOOD 

.fIo'D.IOR 1/11 CONCREI'~ FOOTIN~ 

CUSTOfoI BLUE 
3500D "'1TTO CONCRIiTIi FOOT_ 

se~ MANUFACruRER9 DEl ..... 

THE GLADIATOR BLACK 
~TOOONCIlliTliFOl:lT1N!l 

IPL SERIES 
BLACK TYPE3ELo1S SEE Mo\NUfACT\lRER:8 DEl .... 

IPL SERIES 
BLACK TYPE5ELo1S 
R~ Mo\NU~ACT\I~8 DEl .... 

COLORIFINISHfMETHOD 

2" THICKASPHAL TIC CONCRETE OVER 
4" COMPACTED BASEROCK SUB BASE 

SLOPE TO BIOS'NALE 

QUANTITY 

, 
, 

, 
, 
1 

2 

2 

3 

2 

6" THICK NATURAL COLOR CONCRETE OVER 
6" COMPACTED BASEROCK SUB BASE WITH 

#4 STEEL REBAR GRID 24" ON CENTER 

2" THICK CAL GOLD COLOR DECOMPOSED 
GRANITE OVER 4" COMPACTED DRAIN ROCK 
SEE DETAILA/L-1.0 

CONTACT 

dl.mOfcom 

parknpool.com 

par1(npool.oorn 

dl.mOf.com 

dl.mOfcom 

hawsco.com 

doodycaillildlrec:t.com 

IirsUij;jhttedmlllogllltli oom 

ftrstllllhttechnologlH.com 

SQUARE FOOTAGE (APPROXIMATE) 

4,400 sa FT 

4688Q FT 

2.3948Q FT 

2" THICK BED OF SMALL WATER WASHED COBBLE 512 sQ FT 
OVER TOP OF BIOSWALE - SEE DETAIL BI1..-1.0 

, , 

\ 

\ 
\ 
\ 

, 

\ 
\ 
\ 

\ 

LEGEND 

KEY 

\ 
I 

\ 

\ 

\ 

I 
\ 

\ DESCRIPTION 
I 

E"--'-- "~~ - ··'I ~DA accessible walkway 

----- 4' black vinyl clad chain link fence (skate park) 

."_"_11_,'. 42" wood and wire fence (dog park) 

--------------

8" THICK BED OF ENGINEERED FIBAR (OR EQUAL) 1,021 sa FT 
3' high split rail fence (kids play area and street frontage) .,- _,_,_,. 

BARE SOIL DOG PARK 

PUMP TRACK 

CLEAR OF ROOTS AND LARGE ROCKS 27.088 SQ FT 

ROUGH GRADE TO DRAIN TOWARD SOUTH SLOPE 

PHASE I SKATE PARK ROUGH GRADE TO DRAIN TOWARD BIOSWALE 

Lo1AIN PARKING LOT 8" COMPACTED BASEROCK 

OVER COfolPACTED BASE 

USE STABILZING BINDER FOR ALL DG PATHS 

USE 2" X 6" PRESSURE TREATED HEADER 
ALONG BOTH SIDES TO CONTAIN MATERIAL 

STAKE MINIMUM 6' ON CENTER 

~----~WIDTH AS PER PLAN----_ 

:I 
II 

!I 
!I 

II! 
I 

F 
L-2,O 

DECOMPOSED GRANITE PATH SECTION 

SCALE: NOT TO SCALE 

2 x 8- PRESSURE TREATED HEADER 

ON SIDE ADJACENT TO DG PATH 

COMPACTED 3W BASE ROCK --~, 

COUPACTED SUBGRADE 

Gravel Parking Section 
not to scale 

I 

8" 

9,157 sa FT 

standard curb wI , B" curb 

I ' 
I I~ / 
I ~ 

B 

//-----"" 
( •. oJ Existing trees to remain 
,~~ 

" // 

;l"OA~ 
Existing trees to be removed 

bioswale 
permeable growing 
medium ------, 

III 

,. 8""d,," curb w/1S" curb 
cuts (where shown on plan) 

'~~~r~~~rr;:--- caltrans class 2 .. ~ permeable malerlal 

j __ ~;~AA~;:--C---- 6" perforated pipe 
(where shown on plan) 

18"----

bioswale detail 
L-2.0 not to scale 

1/// 

split rail fence - see detail EIL-2.0 

large Sonoma Field stone Boulders 

~~-- Eucalyptus limbs for forts and lean-to play 

~ 

• • /--
Eucalyptus rounds for stepping stones 
vary heights from 6" to 24" max. 

transition from smallest 10 largest diameter 

splil Eucalyptus trunks for balance beam 

• -- Engineered FIBAR play surface 
use S" thick bed of malerial • 

.~ Locate all climbing elements a minimum 
~ 

/ • 4' from fencing 

1 
------- -' 1- __ _ __ , _______ ~""_ 

~--------~~--• slacked Eucalyptus rounds 
secure rounds for stability 
not to exceed 3' in height , 

" 
" 
~------------------- 6' wide opening in fence 

Kids play area plan view 
not to scale 

r 
4'-0" 

18" min.jjTiUlI 1"1 Ijj T\:'I hJCL!!1 1"1 Ijj jj~IIL!!IIIC '\' 
IIII II III IIII ' 

IIII 
III 

7'-fJ" 

BLACK VINYL CLAD CHAIN LINK FENCE 

2" DII,~ GI\LV.NIZ"D --I 
STEEL TOP STRlriGER 

2'" CIA. GALVANIZED 
STEEL POST, TYP. 

'~----- CONCRETE FOOTING (TYPiCAl) 

C 4' Chain Link Fence Elevation 

2'-4" 

I ill 
I ! \ I 
J I 

, 

L-2,O not 10 scale 

1------ 3'-0" -----I 

1-1 ..... --- 3'-4" OC -----1 .. -

( H '\ Donor Sign 
I \k2,OJ not to scsle 

~/ 

I Notes: 

I 1.Redwood sign 
with painted lettering. 
2. Text to be 
changed for aach 
park entrance. 

4'-0" 

----------------
-- - ------

---
" x x x 

existing trees and vegetation 

42" 

1611 

/~ --...." 
/ I \ 
(\L-2.0) 

... 7'-0" oc:--------j-1 

2x4"topstrll"lger 

314 x 1 112· framing on NCI1 side afWlnl 

" 2 x 4" batIom stnnllgr 

~ galvanized 4"lIr1d hog wlreferldlljl 

4X4" RMNood pOi! (typiCIII) 

'---- ~",,,,,,"d da~mfXl8d grann. foDting 

~12" 

D 42" Wire Fence 

L-2,O not to scale 

/r- ~ "G[S~ I~[ PIJ' ~I ~G SP AC[ ~GI1~ ~'-

~, ,~ 

10 Q" ~ Q" 

Accessible stall 

not to scale 

_ " - "'''' 1'RAF'P' ''-: ' LJ r 
/ $mr[ ( T".,K::-<l) 

© Michael Arnone Landscaoe Architect - 2014 
THESE DRAWINGS ARE INSTRUMENTS OF SERVICE, ISSUED FORA ONE-TIME SINGLE USE BY THE 
OWNER niE ENTIRE CONTEN'TS OF T1-iESE DRAININBSIS COPVRIOHTCI MICHAEL ARNONE 
LANDSCJl.PE ARCHITECT. LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT RETAINS ALL RIGHTS !'\NO TITLE. NO PAFP' MAY 
BE REPRODUCED IN ANY FASHION OR foIEDIUM WITHOIJT ~.RESS...lllIRII.EN..AEEROVp.l. OF 

- -- - - --TI1E1..ANDSCAPE"ARCAITECT. THE mQpt:RELECTRONiC TRANSFER OF DATA SHALL BE n'fE 
USER'S RESPONSIBIL!!:"~!!!,,..Q.U~ L~J!:ITYTO .!.~~.Q~ECL.._ _ _ __ 

- ----- --

! 

I 

I , 

-------

, 
I 
I 
I 

OWNER SHALl-ASSUME RESPONSIBIUTY FOR. COMPLIANCE WITH All. EASEMENTS, SEriAcK/ 
REQUIREMENTS AND PROPERTY LINES. OWNER SHALL ACQUIRE All. NECESSARY P~ITS 
REQUIRED TO PERFORM WORK SHOWN ON F'LANS. BASE INFORMATION HAS BEEN1'Ro,VIDED BY 
THE OWNER. MICHAEL ARNONE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE ASSUMES NO u,..sfUTY FOR THE 
ACCURACY OF SAI[} PROPERTY LINE DOLtliDARIES. FENCELINES OR PROP~RTY CORNERS 

/ ,... 
~ '" 
~-.........--- ! 

McGREGOR DRIVE ~~~~~~~ 

I 
/ 

I 

I 
I 

I 
I 
I 

I 

I 
I I 
I I 

I I 

I 
I 
I 

I 
I 
I 

I 

I 
/ 

I~ 
/£ 
I~ 

Ii 
I 
I 

I 
I 
I 

I 
I 
I 

I 
I 
I 

I 

- .. --------7'-0"------1-1 

2x6" cap 

2x6" rail ---~\ ''-'' , 
;.. ~, 

~ / 
4x4"post-~ / 

2 x 6· bottom ~n ----~I 

36" Redwood Split Rail Fence 
not to scale 

R; 9f1 CJ..LT rA'l~ - ____ 

R=3UlftTCf 1 31""" 

\L-2.0/ 

pl!Rn~G 

O\U 

" , , . ~ . , 

z 
, 

w 

Accessible Parking Signage 

not to scale 

:I: 
U 

0)..: 
S::::::<C 
Ow 
S::::::"
Io..<C 

<C~ 
_0 

O)z 
cu<c 

.s::::::-' 
o .-
~ 

DATE PURPOSE BY 
1.6.14 ,_! rommi~on!. MAl 
2,25.14 pod placement MAl 
3.31.14 bid set MAl 

scale: 

1" = 20' - 0" 
sheet title: 
Layout and 
Materials Plan 

sheet number: 

L - 2.0 
of eleven 



Trash and recycling receptacle 

by Park n Pool 

gray color for trash/mystic blue color for recycling 

.. ~ -(1O-...a.UTI _ 0.0. ,.-...... , 
(1'001"'''''' CO< 000tII,_ 

iIJM<I'O"O· .......... 

~ 
:~"""-"7-<!l+"" -=--, • • • 

@Pl1_ ... . ~_'"lOIEl_CM.V. 
IIlIi 1I&f. ftIO, .......... lIONan.u. 

III '"""""'- __ .-'"""', .... ""'-""NI ........... ,.1/7 
0.0. T M.NOIi. _ 0CJDIiI. __ .G:III'I()fN. ............ """ -[] _ TO "". OI'BlAnlN 1dO......rrewoa; __ .... anrao....., .......... 
NSrIU~ "wu:nIINI. 

(NOlUCCNllIUDClI< 1I&f" 

MODEL UI.IHDMI 

I--- Si ", .. - -I ~---·· I··--'I------i ,-- ".. l li_ .. ' 

.f.· , r 
~ -

t u·ocw. )I 
~,
(IEl:UI _ I) 

"{r "' .n._ 
( I tWlt' llL ) 

!ill" I 1 Itt un .... 
...-. HI. "" ..- ..., _ 

'---______ n ( ,_II. ) _______ ~ 
,...- >7' ('_"- ) 

\. 
! 

lElQi WT!!!§ 

o ~' IDIJ' 
o !' ~~ 

SLIJ !J'T!IJIJS 

NOlES 0 "WW!' IIECllUD PLISR: 
[J ~ ~a;o:;LEC PUSl1C 

1.) III S'A... IIOIBHS ro\I!O VII roc Rlll1 IPCKl' It£N 0 "Rll1OOl"' RECYCI£D f'I)S1'(: 
F\NI~ED wI Pll.lESTER POIiOOl awDC. 0 u wr ~LlD RASlIC 

2.) 1/ 2" X J J(+" EXPH'lSlXI I'I'GIl:ft ID..TS I'HQ,'OW. 0 OTl£R 

~~~=----::::':::::====----j 

DuMor. 

FEATURES & 8ENEFITS _.-
""_ ............. ,.".' •• , 1>0<111 _ '-" , .... \.oes .... 
hI<9" _ ""' ... 1(1' ...... U .-.qII\. aM _ «t</a> ... 
... '" (I _ . ........... '_ ....... _ ....... d\' OIFiIaIy...,.d_. ..... "'-, 
_ ....... ~...,_ CO_a """' . :'~';_;...~_ 
...... b Q "-'''_IO'IIOo:O_~ --10,,,,.,..,....,,,.. to ___ .... _ to ... 
CIt __ IO"'CI .................. ....."" _ .... 
__ • ......,. "", _ '""" ill doo~ .... _ 
....... _;o.tIOOO . ..... ___ 

~~~ 

SooI""'" -..:tII'I a'" ""'....,. _ acNe "" """ "" """ eo I J 9O"IiIl 1_ »0 ,_ 1l000i. aa.g ... ~d 
31" I,~"""i II'OC:tcoll. ___ ... _~_ 
"''''o~ __ "",d'''''_'iI __ i;I 
... ~ ..... "ni'lOeOO"l~_ 

MX:III.Ull 
_ d _ ..... .,. II <x_ ........ _ d Oft 
.. t~ ____ Iood ..... ~_ 
~~o ... ~_ ..... _...,~_ 

~-. '-""'I ..... OOlOn_ .... CO_«ee1l "'PeI"""_ 
<;a>q..oonctI_ ... II no ............ 

--~ _ !II ",,10ft"'" 1Pd. • ...,8' .11''11 _. ... ... 
_ft """"'''''' ..... ~ wN:~ _ .... ...... _ ....... ~"' ... _"'com~_ 
.. __ No __ 01 .. '(1)'1. ~"" '

.... '"-.... _._ ""ft.".oo"'O-... """'" 
dlD b to l1li1'2.1 10 IL2 bal. 

OPTIONS 

a S<ncI'_, _U' 1 . .. "" t ,., b~ccIj<Io::IofIIlo 
-.:I diWo'oCl ,_ to _ ..... """ _ ...... 
_"""""'~~_Io ..... 

a S<ncI ,_, _ ~ ""'_ .... ""'" _ ............ 
3SaI<rod 3511. 

a _ntng:_"IIO":IXI"",,"",Ing_~.~ 
_bN>= __ "" ........... " ... _ ........... Itog,..""""' ... 

a ~,_ .... G.,~".o ...... _"._o ........ ~ 

BENCH 

165 SERIES- PL -" ••• 

SPEOFICATIONS 

_ .. :mooWUf __ ..... -'Y ...... ,,'_, 
-.:I <1'-";' _ """ 0_ Pel "''''''''' _ 
_ a 'l_'\IPO »OS .. _S_ ~_ .... _ 
hIooVd :loI·I'S~1r"j _ oH1 __ 1>0 ..... 01_ 

goe ... -~ ~" ... ...., .... -.-
,..~ ...... ___ catt;l\lO <rod .".. ""~ 

~ ""'" ' ee _~ """""'" <1«=' • ""'"" toooo. 
"Iodd ., ... ~ ... .,,;,. _d <1«=, ... ,ad 
too .......... '_ .... 01e_ft_""'''' ..... _ 
_1IOI1>o ...... "'..- ....... _1Co 
...."......,.., .. 0 ...- _ct ,,"\10 <xc. ..,.. _ 
~ '*"'"' ........ .- ..., 1><*1. . ......... _ 
__ foOeg,,~ ........ o""'·'rr ......... . 

APPUCATIONS 

IO"*,,, ..... -... ..... "' ........... 10" _ ............ " 
No ..... ""'"'"""' <*doo .. _ ~ .....,... ~ 
....- I N> ~ .. """ _ '" -. , .... cre... _ COt"""""" l<dllo , __ .... ""'y". ...... _ '" 
"""'~ l,weIoitIO ... _"'...., ... N'*"'CfOIl. ".". 
-.. .. _ ......... ..-II, _-""" .....,""" _l ir> "",,_ ... ......,."_.80\.0 .... .....," '*'''_ ........ . ..,,- -.,., --... -'" _ .. ....... 
_ till ,*,, ' UI,"''' _ .. """"'I'll Of ,, _ _ 
,,,,",,ili;00i, <»v _'" _ 10 ... 9''''''''' .... _ 

-If· 
_ .. _01.,.. ... _lDIt-ouoloMo ........ " .. _ 
~_""" ___ ".IoC1.H"'" 
"",""""'u's ~ "'_ ...... __ co_ ICo 
too """" .... '" 01 ..... _ ... _ ~ MY/_ 
I_ .,. _ t . MY/_ $I':/. C'-crria ",,,,,,,A:n 

~ " ......... ""''' !CI" oo.toIo'ICI ...... ...,l .....,"'" " 
""",1:tIo'" to C __ """ Sol"" Code ".15 1M 
" 5J.D»I · 

' .. '--_ ................. ,." .• , ... .. - -- ... - .. _ .. . 
~~.~- : , : . __ ... __ .. _--........ - , -"'-,-----

"' 

. "" "'" ... 

II------- ,~';;:\ -----

1------ :~\=\-----" 

CI 10· .. 

NONE 

DuMor, Inc. 81 SERIES 

Gladiator' Pet Waste Station 
OM"" E' 'T 

I*Its U eltsUrt 
. ~. ·r ... m --~ 
.~. " -----·_m =, . ,.. .... (l) .-

" -.--''''' - QI -~-
. "....,.-(~ ·~· ... oo . ""'*""..,. (ll ,-.... -.. ' _ 00 ~-. -. . .... _~'11 . ... _ .... 
· r .. c..u-. ' 0 .-- I 

'~_M 

@ ' 0 
'rI' '~._1II 

' 0 
"'N" _~I --~ 

_eo. ...... 

The Gladiator· Pet Wane Station A1ombl, lnlltnlctlou 
, _ _ III _ _ ~IodII<. .. III. ... _<.ool _ _ .. · ",..,... ... " . ...,,""" .. ,-• _ .... _r o.w ........... ' ... _ ........ rtIoa""o.tn · ""-... --.. -...................... ~ ... • __ ... ,r _ _ ...... N-t"" ... ,, "" ..... "' ''' _ . 

• _ .... rt ........ _-._~I .... II<I (_ .... 1l · -"" ... _ .. .-............ ,.., ..... .... ,--• ... ______ fl<.·~· · ....... _do. _ _ ... ""_ .... _ ........ _ "' .. _ ... ,_ 
. .... -....~ ... -I:I .. .... ~. 

• """'1IoiIoI""-...r_1Ioo.of"" co~ "' ..... __ .. "'_ . ........ r-foo_ .. "" __ ...... __ '100 .. _ .... _ ........ 01 ....... _ ..... _ .... 
__ fl"',~ f). 

• roo !1('I_b"..... _ .. oIIopooM"""1Ioo,.... · ___ .. I'\UI_.~...,v. .... _ ..... _Jr;.Il.~f) . ......... _ 

--~ 
• _ !,- ....... "" ..... ~ ........... _"'_ ... S1oIt, .. _ .. __ . __ .. 

1"_"", 

----II 

.-

-• •• 

5W CPOO!S 
a 'cWR' REmLfO I'I)STI: 
a 'M£f RECiClH) FVSIt 
a 'RED.LW' I!Er1l1ED PIAm: 
a "ll.LWI" ~ I'VSIC 

II' 

0000 ____ _ 

"'" 

FIRSTLIGHT 
"' -

lI t/r .. ..-. __ 

1~·I> . 'Jr ...... ., 

GAME TABLE 

76-32PL H" , .. 

Solar LED Integrated Pathway Light 

OUlnlily: 

ltflmg .... ~nll.£D&. !he Fl. UIy "'_.-11 *' IIId otfnlllgflltoc.-. bcnthl 
_pi d~llgtu .. cbIng 

low In.a.lod DD.t.-d ml-i.u.1I m~ -...to nollw1<hrc,J. ~ or ~ 
"' ...... 0IIp.g_..m. no .... 1aoII *orboJ~ II:) ~ 
No! "oc:tld bV pow. 0I/IagII 
~wdor."""" ~ ota-.m ........ 1 racu!T\ng crrt>on .... Boiona 

TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS 

-... , .. " .. ---
, , ,,_ ............ . 
..., .. IIIr~-...... ~"'l"~ 

_ _TtDoeIll""l 
" _.--. 
_1oiQII~ ... UD_ .......-...--., 
0...-. Ij_¥r,. ,., .. _00.=. ,"'-..0 ........... ---.......... ""- . ... _-
10_ ........ ------~ ... --,~- ....... 

11._ .. 
~-

,OO'!XIO .... lJO-. 
-poo:IIQ--~... , -
"'" -." .". 1.." ... f" """'4! """" ' ... _ ........ _1 ... ,100_ 
c.. .... __ .............. _ 
_-. ....... -..... _""',_-'ffIC-*,,_ ---f,u ______ _ 

00 __ 01 __ 

... __ 01_'_ 00 __ ". __ 1_"_ 
"..-.01 .... 5'-_' __ _ 00.-._10 __ ' ........ I_ --

::&os""~ 

'I MICHAEL A. ~ 
ARNONE '::I. 

m 
, !j 

o o 
(&p 1111114) 

~OF"'-'~ 

DATE BY 
1.6.14 
331.14 

. _1dJI MAA 
set MAA 

scale: 

not to scale 
sheet title: 
Site Furnishings 
and Lighting Cut 
Sheets 

sheet number: 

L - 2.1 
of eleven 

-64-

Item
 #: 10.A

. A
ttach

 1.p
d

f

Trash and recycling receptacle 

by Park n Pool 

gray color for trash/mystic blue color for recycling 

iD'-,ao,c. __ 

..... -, 
L 

• •• 

.-.~ --
. , . 

, . .. . 

I1J on _ ... _Il>0-.0 _ _ ,_eM. y. 
IIBi: ___ > rao , .. wu. _iii, .... . 

III (PIDIM.. __ ... ......" .... . 1D,onMI ....... ..... ,.<17 
Ort. T."Ea; _ ..:ca _ _ ..:IIO'I'IDMIoLNCf ........ 1lOOO -[] _TO,",_-"I'O'_~ 
_ .... .... 1UTlU< _ VAl. ... 
........... ~ "1IIInIIN_ 
(NOTIiI CC»rllKM) DI.ut 21 

MODEL •• IHDMII 

1---" 0/," - -I ~---" I " -" I------i ,-- ... l li_ .. ' 

I 

If.· • t 
~ -

rU'(~Al )1 
~.~ 
( III:U_I) 

I '11' "" . ... _ 
(ltWM" GLl 

1,111" I 1 Itt un. III • ........ <»-..,, -
l1. ~J '--______ 7t ( ' _IL ) _______ ~ 

,...- "" ('''''''' 1 

/ 

DuMor. 

FEATURES & BENEFITS 

.. _IIUD 
___ tIOO. fIUl_ '-" leo"' .. "" 
htoqd __ ...... ""_ .. ....,... G,,", k ~ 
..... a _ _ ~1_ """ .. _""..,"" 
-"""Y......,eal_. ...... _-
1o.1to ..... ~ ___ c_" .... :.~.;_;;..; _ 
...... ... .. -.tier .. __ IOo:CI"'" " 

-~ ""'-..",.. '" --_ ... --"' .. _ ... _ "'''''CI 1M...., 0""".""'" II _ .... _ClOt 'O'IIr9 "", aM .... ill ""'~ _ ...... -~ . ....,--
~~~ s..:. __ <I'd ""'-" __ .... "" .-

01,2_'.,... XIO I_I"'~ _~d :IfII" (,ft ..... _ ... ". ____ ._ 

"'II>" ~ ___ .a>d ~""'" k........:l b 

""-,,,-. .. ~~~
~.~ 

_ .. ,"_ .. , •••• "~~ ~ oe_ ..." ....... CO aft .. t~ ____ ....,,~_ 

IWvn om " _1>1_ .,. ..... 

~-. _""lIIIn_"'_OCOO."I>eI __ 
ca>~_trnIno ........... 

-~~ 
...... II> ,.".,,,.,, ~. • "'1'''''1 _. "'"'' _ft _ ... ..- -"I' wM:ft ..,"* "'" 
. ..... occ. . . ..... """"""'''' ... _ .. co : 106 ....:I .. __ .. _ 01., I~ _ ..... 
.... -..,. .... _ e _ .. eft ..... "'IftO_e'<FVt 
.. :II b to ooIf:1:' 10 IL2 baI: 

OPTIONS 

o Smd'_,_"'1 I. ",,,,," .~ ",~""",- to 
_d~_ b_lI ... oWIId __ 
_ ....... '"c~_ .... 

[] Smd ,_, _ U1S. h<>_IbI __ ... """'"*' 
=_:11111: 

[] _ ..... _ .. 1I03m""""'Ing'*""'QIt.~ _ ... ,..,= __ 1011 ................ -

........... "'" ""'''''''' .. [] --.g'_ .... G3!1J1."_ ... IOeI ........... 

LDQ! W!![X:E 

o ~' IDIJ' 
o B" !IJI~ 

BENCH 

165 SERlES- PL "" .. , 

SPEOFICAnoNS 

_:DIDD~ ___ --, • ...., .... _ 

-.:I <i'HfroO _ ....... _ pel "'''''''''' ~ 

.- e , ~ _ IjOQe :DO UO_ S_ """"'''''''..,., 
hItoq'" uo: I.tSc .... __ "",,, ___ "" ...... _ 
000" _:CO<:PIftcI. __ el*t6ed .... __ 
"'k.., ...... ___ e<rHllII" _ tow ~_ 
IOOlI ...... ' " _~ """""'" ........ __ • 
.cIod" : llId _ ... <161. p(jII>ed el ... ,."",., 
too ........... _ ....... _ ........ top<l"""'.-" 
--. "" "".., .. II> _ _.10 _ b 

" .... 10. G ~ _ct ... goo ...... ....,. "' ... 
~ '"'- __ ta<to -. ._",_ 
__ Nev<II ~1OtI ... """ ':'rr ... _ ... 

APPUCATIONS 

"'otIO ____ ... ~ ..... __ .... 111" 
.. ~ ~ to_ IN! ""'"""'" ~ _ ............. _",-_ ....... -
"",""""'ocIIlIo, _ """"' .... ...,1,.,. ...... """"" ", 
b ... _11"-"01he_"' ......... ""'~..., ......... _ ...... "'" _ . .... _otov ..... __ t 1ft 

"""_ "'_ c _ _ \< .... """' ..... ,lI .... _. 
.. ,_ -.air ~ " "'0.,10: !No _'" _ """ 
_ be OCO' 'II "' .. _ .. """"'''' tII .. _ _ 

_l1::<>li< '*>9 pa'" "'" ....... q_ '"" .. ,,
co:ct_Ir: _ .. _01 __ ""'tooguakno""' .... dioo_ 

~_"''''-''''''''''''''_''''<!l_ _ ... ,~"' ____ ._b 
.. ...... _ 0,0 c' ..... _ .,._ ~ '""'_ 
1_ ..... _ , : ,"",/ANSI $1'1 C.-aria ,,_-. 
iU. 0l'O:I ...... ".,'" ~ .. ~ ........... l """""" II 
-",*,'" b C __ .....:I Sdely C<>doe '''II~ 1M 
It»»»I· 

, .. _ ..... _ ............ , .... " .• , .. .. - -- ... - .. _ .. . 
""""' .... c-... ' 

a __ ... _ _ .. _ __ ...... _ _ .. _ ____ _ 

.... 

DuMor, Inc. 

. ~, .... 

11------- I~\;'::\ -----

1--_--- ... \-\---~ • ¥I'll,. 

NONE 

81 SERIES -••• 

Produc~ Assembly Inst:llCtJons 1.1011.llooo1.,clLo ()tA..m2J ....-..,c..lIo..o;n 

Gladiator' Pet Waste Station 
OM"" 

=1' 
I*Itll.IeItIUrt 

. ~. ·" ... m --~ 

.~. " ---_. ·_m =, .,... ... 0) .-. , ---. 'CIoo_m .~-

. "..,.". ....... (lI '~''''M 

· ~""Ol ,-..... -.. '_00 ~_oo _w . .... -~>I , ... _ ..... 
. r .. c..u.... ' 0 .-- I 

. ~_(Jl) 

@ ' 0 'H. __ 

'0 
"'f1I '_~1 --~ _Coo'-

TIle OladJator' Pet Wate StaUOD Auembly lJUItnIc:tIou 
, __ "' __ ~IodIIC: .. ior. .... _<*oJ __ .. 

• "",""' ..... ' .. ...",'""'10' ......... • ___ .. _ .. _ ... , __ .. ,.-roo.. .... eo.tn 
• ""'_ .... -""'_ .. _ ............. ..w.. .. ~ ... • ___ 'r ___ torr"" ... ,,"" or .. ",,,,_. 
, _ .... nllo lllllt ___ ~I ... ·IHI .. _Io .. 1I. 

· _CIooi·'_ ........ ""-. .. ""' ..... "'., __ • ... ______ fi .. DooIj. 

• 10 ........ "" ...... _ ... ""_ .... _ .... ""_"' .. _ ... ,_ · ",,,,,,,,,,,~,---(:I,, .... ~, 

, I11III",,,",Il10_ .. _ """'01""1:... ...... 10 __ .. "'_ ......... """"'_ or"" __ .. ""_~" .. t ..... _ .... _.ol .............. _ ..... __ .... 
..-" ... ,~O). 

• "" oItl_ ~ ""'" -. or. oIopooM" ..... ,.... , ___ .. I'\UI_.~IIOiIIIIII ... _ ... poot. J<;. .. Lfl._""'_ 
--~ • _!lr ................. ""'k<._"' __ . 
"_H __ • __ " 

l~'_"'" 

--

.-

-

II' 
... q '. l " 

SLY CPIlO!S 
o 'c1Il'l( RECl'ClUI f'I.OST( 
o 'M£f REC'l'CUD f'I.OST( 

o 'REIIwii:t! I!ErI11ED PIAm: 
o 'l.\L1ItII' IE!O.£D PVSIC 
0000 ____ _ 

."'" 

FIRSTLIGHT 
~.., Sol .. Ucha.., Simple" 

GAME TAB LE 

78- 3ZPL "" ,., 

Solar LED Integrated Pathway Light 

WlulgICIIIrJ)DWIWnllBlI. 1hII1't.. uty ... .aIIlIaNd _ oI'Inllilollc:rI broIhI 
-¢db d~~",o:aa.g' 

lDIIIlnMooIId ClO8t nI ,"hnW .le"'pEt"fllilt1 no~. ~ f1IwItlG 
"' ....... ""II"1'II c..u .... tII no ~ 1* DO bUt. lei a...g. 
NoIltIlICttd b11lO'ff" OUIlOM 
~. 'IIIIIlIy ~ _ .... """" ........ "11 caban ""....". 

TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS 

..... 
MIll 4 .~ 

'".... 
1 , I)_ .. ~,,_ 

....... ""~-.... ~-~ ,,,,_,,""""'=1 ,_ 
__ T-'"""II1II"'Il 
m _._-.. 
_..,. o:tcWoqUlt_ ... -----. ~. " -,,""II ,.b_ .. _ ........ , 1_-.1 ----__ .u._q.-_1'QIlI 
a..-.,... ..... _. .. _-
10,.. ........ ---.... ..... ... --,~--' 

~-
"'0_111 --

l00.cm .... t1Il_ -IDDII- - to.:oo""" ""I _ 

.-., "'" 7.. ,. ... " Wi""'-<:/!<jlO 1 ..... _ ...... _11:0.1200_ 

CIoII, .... __ ......... -.I_ --------_ ...... __ .l GC __ _ ---f<u:_-. ___ _ 
110.-,,,._ 
110.-'01_'_ DIi.-. .... ~_'_il _ (100.-'''_'_.' __ _ 110 ........ 10 __ ,_.,_ -.-

fIl 
Q) ... , 
ell , , .- w , 
U '" 

, 
0" • fIl~ t 
fIlU 
«~ , 

t 

'" , 
U • Q)", , , 

1:< , 
Ow , , 
I:~ , 
... < ; 
«~ 1 
- " i 
Q)z , 
ell < 

, 
..c:::~ ~ 
u , , .-
::!: 

u 

~os""~ 

Ij MICHAELA. ~ 
ARNONE '::I. 

m 
, !l 

o o 
{E>qo 11111141 

~OF"'-'~ 

DAlE BY 
1.6.14 
331.14 

. niililil MAA 
set MAA 

scale: 

not to scale 
sheet title: 
Site Furnishings 
and Lighting Cut 
Sheets 

sheet number: 

L - 2.1 
of eleven 



KEY BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME SIZE QUAN. CA. Native
aec Arctostaphylos 'Emerald Carpet' Groundcover Manzanita 5 gal 33 yes
ami Achillea millefolium Yarrow 1 gal 32 yes
cgh Ceanothus griseus horizontalis  'Yankee Point' Carmel Creeper 5 gal 27 yes
csp Cistus salviifolius 'Prostratus' Rockrose groundcover 5 gal 8 no
ec Eschscholzia californica California Poppy 1 gal 55 yes
id Iris douglasiana Pacific Coast Iris 1 gal 20 yes
lns Laurus nobilis 'Saratoga' Bay Laurel 15 gal 7 no
mri Muhlenbergia rigens Deer Grass 1 gal 86 yes

-65-

Item
 #: 10.A

. A
ttach

 1.p
d

f
Planting Notes 
1. All existing trees, shrubs and ground covers to remain shall be protected. Any 
damage caused by Contracto~s work shall be repaired or replaced at the 
Contracto~s expense and be approved by the Landscape Architect. 

2. All planting areas shall receive 50 Ibs "Sustane 5-2-4 + Fe" (or equal organic 
slow release fertilizer) soil fertilizer per 2500 square feet to be thoroughly 
incorporated into the top 6 inches of soil. 
Call Sustane - Natural Fertilizer of America, Inc. 1-800-325-9245 
for Distribution/Product Information. Or visit www.sustane.com 

3. After amending soil, grade all areas smooth with no localized depressions 

exceeding .5 inch. All araas shall surface drain with 1.5 percent minimum slope 

away from all buildings, paving or other structures. 

4. Quantities are for aiding in bidding only. Contractor shall verify all quantities. 

5. Contractor shall layout plant material as per plan and receive approval from 
Landscape Architect prior to installation. 
6. No plants shall be planted with root balls or new pits in a dry condition. 
7. Plant all plants as per planting details in square pits with sides and bottoms 
thoroughly scarifies. Do not amend backfill mix beyond initial topsoil amending 
unless noted. 

8. All newly planted material shall be watered by deep soaking within 3 hours of planting. 
9. All planting areas shall receive 3 inches of mini- bark top dressing (mulch). 
10. Contractor shall be responsible for irrigating all new plant material until the entire 
project as been approved and accepted by Owner. 
11. Thirty days after planting Contractor shall restake and straighten all trees as 
necessary to be approved by Landscape Architect. 

BIOSWALE PLANT LEGEND 

Symbol Scientific Name Common Name Size 

Carex barberae Santa Barbera Sedge plugs 

Juncus patens California Gray Rush plugs 

PLANT LIST 

--- --- --- ~ . 
~~~~~~~~~~ . 

• • • • 

Spacing 

30' o. c. 

\ 
\ 

\ 
\ 
\ 

\ 
\ 
\ 

\ 
\ 
\ 

\ 
\ 
\ 

• • 

30' o. c. 

\ 
\ 
\ 

\ 
\ 
\ 

\ 

\ 
\ 

\ 
\ 
\ 

\ 
\ 
\ 

\ 
\ 
\ 

\ 
\ 
\ 

\ 
\ 
\ 

\ 

~~, 

'\ 
\------------ "'-.."" 

\ 
; 
\ 

L~;;\; 
; 
\ 

L-~;, 
\ 
\~ v 

SEE PLANTING DETAILS SHEET L- 5.0 \ 

• • • • • • • • • • • • 

UJ 
Z -....J 
I 
() 
I-

..-. 
C") 

I 
...J -Q) 
Q) 

..r::. 
en 
Q) 
Q) 
en 

cgh 

-• 

I 
I 

, I 
\- .... ;' q~ (<>2) ----

x 
>< 

x 

x 

>< 
>< >< 

>< 
>< 

>< >< x 
x 

x x 

x x 

)( x 

)( x 

x x 

x 
>< 

x 
x x 

x x x 
x x 

x 
x )( >< 

• • • • • • • • • 

\ 

© Michael Arnone Landscape Architect - 2014 
THESE DRAWINGS ARE INSTRUMENTS OF SERVICE. ISSUED FOR A ONE·TIME SINGLE USE BY THE 
OINNER THE ENTIRE CONTENTS OF THESE DRAWINGS IS COPYRIGHT C MICHAEL ARNONE 
LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT RETAINS ALL RIGHTS AND TITLE. NO PART MAY 
BE REPRODUCED IN MY FASHION OR MEDII.to1 WITHOUT THE EXPRESS WRITTEN APPROVJI.J... OF 
THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT. THE PROPER ELECTRONIC TRANSFER OF DATA SHALL BE THE 
USER'S RESPONSIBILITYWITHOUT LIABILITY TO THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT. 

OINNER SHAll. ASSUME RESPONSIBILITY FOR COMPLIANCE WrTH ALL EASEMENTS, SETBACK 
REQUIREf.ENTSAND PROPERTY LINES. OWNER SHALL ACQUIRE ALL NECESSARY PERMITS 
REQUIRED TO PERFORM WORK SHOWN ON PLANS. BASE INFORMAnON HAS BEEN PROVIDED BY 
THE Q'MIIER. MICHAEL ARNOt£. LANDSCAPE ARCHITEcnJRE ASSU~ES NO UABILITY FOR ruE 
ACCURACY OF SAID PROPERTY LINE BOUNDARIES, FENCELINES OR PROPERTY CORNERS. 

\ 
l 

DATE 

.-o 
o en en 

<C 

.... 
~ 

:;) 

I
U .... 
I-

+ :I: 
U 

Q)~ 

s::::< 
0 .... 
s::::c.. 
10..< 
<C~ 
_0 
Q)Z 
CU< .s::::-' 
o .-

::?! 

PURPOSE B 
1.6.14 ,_! rommi~on!Dml M 
3.31.14 bid set M 

scale: 

1" 
sheet title: 

10' 

West 

-

Planting 
Plan 

sheet number: 

L - 3.( 
of elever~ 



KEY BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME SIZE QUAN. CA. Native
aec Arctostaphylos 'Emerald Carpet' Groundcover Manzanita 5 gal 33 yes
ami Achillea millefolium Yarrow 1 gal 32 yes
cgh Ceanothus griseus horizontalis  'Yankee Point' Carmel Creeper 5 gal 27 yes
csp Cistus salviifolius 'Prostratus' Rockrose groundcover 5 gal 8 no
ec Eschscholzia californica California Poppy 1 gal 55 yes
id Iris douglasiana Pacific Coast Iris 1 gal 20 yes
lns Laurus nobilis 'Saratoga' Bay Laurel 15 gal 7 no
mri Muhlenbergia rigens Deer Grass 1 gal 86 yes

\ 

1 

• • • • • • • • • • • • 

w 
z -.....J 
I 
o 
I-

~ --1.-~'" 
mil • 

,~ t.;D 

• • • • I., 
• 

I 
I 
I 
I 

I 
I 

~I 
mi)(ii (~) 

x 

x 

a . 
C") 

I 

....J 
Q) 
Q) 

..t::. 
(/) 

Q) 
Q) 
(/) 

5" OAK 
• 

( cgh ) 
" ---

" I 

'~planted bioswale - see 
Bioswale Plant Legend 

skate park 

/ 

McGREGOR DRIVE 

------------------ = =*==---::::-=-=====----===;t==========~====~= 

aec 

• 

( aec) , , 
5"OAK 

SEE PLANTING DETAILS SHEET L-S.O 

~\ 
(mn' 
~) 

I 

I 
I 
I 

I 

PLANT LIST 

I 

I 

I 

\ / 

Planting Notes 

© Michael Arnone Landscane Architect - 2014 
THESE DRAWINGS ARE INSTRUMENTS OF SER~CE. ISSUED FORA ONE-TIME SINGLE USE BY TI-lE 
OWNER. THE E:NTIRE CONTENTS OF THESE DRAWINGS IS COPYRIGHTC MICHACL ARNONE 
LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT. LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT RETAINS ALL RIGHTS AND TITLE. NO PART MAY 
BE REPRODUCED IN MY FASHION OR MEDIUM WITHOUT TI-I: EXPRESS WRITTEN APPROVAL OF 
THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT. THE PROPER ELECTRONIC TRANSFER OF DATA SHALL BE THE 
USER'S RESPONSIBILITYWITHOUT LIABILITY TO THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT. 

OWNER SHALL ASSUME RESPONSIBILITY FOR COMPUANCE WITI-I ALL EASEMENTS, SETBACK 
REQUIREMENTS AND PROPERTY LINES. OWflER SHALL ACQUIRE ALL NECESSARY PERMITS 
REQUIRED TO PERFORM WORK SHOWN ON PLANS BASE INFORMATION HAS 8EEN PROVIDED BY 
THE OWNER. MICHAEL ARNONE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE ASSUMES NO LIABILITY FOR THE 
ACCURACY OF SAID PROPERTY LINE BOUNDARIES, FENCELINES OR PROPERTY CORNERS. 

1, All existing trees, shrubs and ground covers to remain shall be protected, Any 
damage caused by Contractor's work shall be repaired or replaced at the 
Contractor's expense and be approved by the Landscape Architect, 

2. All planting areas shall receive 50 Ibs ·Sustane 5-2-4 + Fe" (or equal organic 
slow release fertilizer) soil fertilizer per 2500 square feet to be thoroughly 
incorporated into the top 6 inches of soil. 
Call Sustane - Natural Fertilizer of America, Inc. 1-800-325-9245 
for Distribution/Product Information, Or visit www.sustane.com 

3, After amending soil, grade all areas smooth with no localized depressions 

exceeding ,5 inch. All areas shall surface drain with 1.5 percent minimum slope 

away from all buildings. paving or other structures, 

4. Quantities are for aiding in bidding only. Contractor shall verify all quantities. 

5. Contractor shall lay out plant material as per plan and receive approval from 
Landscape Architect prior to installation. 
6. No plants shall be planted with root balls or new pits in a dry condition. 
7. Plant all plants as per planting details in square pits with sides and bottoms 
thoroughly scarifies, Do not amend backfill mix beyond initial topSOil amending 

unless noted, 

8. All newly planted material shall be watered by deep soaking within 3 hours of planting. 
9, All planting areas shall receive 3 inches of mini- bark top dressing (mulch), 
10, Contractor shall be responsible for irrigating all new plant material until the entire 
project as been approved and accepted by Owner. 
11, Thirty days after planting Contractor shall restake and straighten all trees as 
necessary to be approved by Landscape Architect. 

BIOSWALE PLANT LEGEND 

Symbol Scientific Name Common Name Size Spacing 

Carex barberae Santa Barbera Sedge plugs 30" o. c. 

Juncus patens Califomia Gray Rush plugs 30" o. c. 

o 
o 
(/)1-

:l~ 
J: 
U 

(I).,. 
C< 
Ow 
CD.. 
~< 

«~ 
_0 
(l)z 
«$< 

.s::::--' 

o .-
::?! 

DATE PURPOSE BY 
1. 6.14 ,mi (ORen imil13l MAA 
2.25.14 po4 placement MAA 
3.31.14 bId set MAA 

scale: 

1" 10' -0" 
sheet title: 

East 
Planting 
Plan 

sheet number: 

L - 3.1 
of eleven 

-66-

Item
 #: 10.A

. A
ttach

 1.p
d

f
• w 

z -.....J 
I 
o 
I-

a , 
C") 

I 

....J 
Q) 
Q) 

..t::. 
(/) 

/ 

McGREGOR DRIVE 
'\'" 

"'-, 

• • • • • • • • • • • 
Q) 
Q) 
(/) "~'-","'-"'---------------- ------------------ ==*==--~=-=-====-=--~:==t_====:=====~=:===== =i= =~ .----t------- ------------------

\ 5" OAK 
• 

aee 
• 

/ - / -
( aee) 
" 

5"OAK 
( cgh ) , , - / --- -.. -- ------------~--~/ ------1 • 

-'l~ .I;.!li.l( 'I' ,I, ,il •• I: IIl1l1r----------r---------------------------------tl · 
~ I l(~)~ 
~ymr~1 

-,----. '--planted bioswale - see :!"r~)!.~-.....:..., 
Bioswale Plant Legend~, I 

~) , 

• • • • I., 
• 

I 
I 
I 
I 

I 
I 

~I 
mi)~ (!'Il) 

skate park 

'(!"~) I ' 

'

(mri l ' 
'---J/" 

'(r~d : 
• / _ I" 
-CrIlri)1 " " 
'r;;;) I " " , --~/" 
- "I ( .) " ,<I1fI/ I " 
~-I, 

'

I mri I 
\~( I, " ,er: 

'(3( . 
'(;;;;;) i " 
~/I 

'(;"riY " , "-' / ' . 
(;,,~ I . 

,.:: r =--==--==--=;;;-=;;;-=;o-=;;-c=;;-;=;-;=;-;;=;-;;=-;;;=-;;;=-==--=t--Ij--t-;;;=-== _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ (, mri; I ' 
~ 

SEE PLANTING DETAILS SHEET L-S.O 

, , 
I 
I 
I 

I 
I 
I 

I , 
I 

I 

I 
I 

I 
I , 

I 
I 

I 
I 
I 

I 

I , , 
I 

I 

I 

I 
I 
I 

I 
I 
I 

I , 
I 

I 
Cl> 

.S ,-
'£ I 3. 

I , 
I , 

I 

I 
I 
I 

I 
I 
I 

I 

PLANT LIST 

\ / 

Planting Notes 

© Michael Arnone Landscane Architect - 2014 
THESE DRAWINGS ARE INSTRUMENTS OF SER'lrCE, ISSUED FORA ONE-TIME SINGLE USE BY TI-lE 
OWNER. THE E:NTIRE CONTENTS OF THESE DRAWINGS IS COPYRIGHTC MICHACL ARNONE 
LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT. LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT RETAINS ALL RIGHTS AND TITLE. NO PART MAY 
BE REPRODUCED IN MY FASHION OR MEDIUM WITHOUT TI-I: EXPRESS WRITTEN APPROVAL OF 
THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT. THE PROPER ELECTRONIC TRANSFER OF DATA SHALL BE THE 
USER'S RESPONSIBILITYWITHOUT LIABILITY TO THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT. 

DINNER SHALL ASSUME RESPONSIBILITY FOR COMPUANCE WITH AlL EASEMENTS, SETBACK 
REQUIREMENTS AND PROPERTY LINES. OWIlER SHALL ACQUIRE ALL NECESSARY PERMITS 
REQUIRED TO PERFORM WORK SHOWN ON PLANS BASE INFORMATION HAS BEEN PROVIDED BY 
THE OWNER. MICHAEL ARNONE lANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE ASSUMES NO LIABILITY FOR THE 
ACCURACY OF SAID PROPERTY LINE BOUNDARIES, FENCELINES OR PROPERTY CORNERS. 

1. All existing trees, shrubs and ground covers to remain shall be protected. Any 
damage caused by Contractor's work shall be repaired or replaced at the 
Contractor's expense and be approved by the Landscape Architect. 

2. All planting areas shall receive 50 Ibs ·Sustane 5-2-4 + Fe" (or equal organic 

slow release fertilizer) soil fertilizer per 2500 square feet to be thoroughly 
incorporated into the top 6 inches of soil. 
Call Sustane - Natural Fertilizer of America, Inc. 1-800-325-9245 
for Distribution/Productlnformation. Or visit www.sustane.com 

3. After amending soil, grade all areas smooth with no localized depressions 

exceeding .5 inch. All areas shell surfece drain with 1.5 percent minimum slope 

away from all buildings, paving or other structures. 

4. Quantities are for aiding in bidding only. Contractor shall verify all quantities. 

5. Contractor shall lay out plant material as per plan and receive approval from 
Landscape Architect prior to installation. 
6. No plants shall be planted with root balls or new pits in a dry condition. 
7. Plant all plants as per planting details in square pits with sides and bottoms 
thoroughly scarifies. Do not amend backfill mix beyond initial topSOil amending 
unless noted. 

8. All newly planted material shall be watered by deep soaking within 3 hours of planting. 
9. All planting areas shall receive 3 inches of mini- bark top dressing (mulch). 
10. Contractor shall be responsible for irrigating all new plant material until the entire 
project as been approved and accepted by Owner. 
11. Thirty days after planting Contractor shall restake and straighten all trees as 
necessary to be approved by Landscape Architect. 

BIOSWALE PLANT LEGEND 

Symbol Scientific Name 

Carex barberae 

Juncus patens 

Common Name 

Santa Barbera Sedge 

California Gray Rush 

Size 

plugs 

plugs 

Spacing 

30" o. c. 

30" o. c. 

DATE 
1.6.14 
2.25.14 
3.31.14 

o 
o 
(/)1-

:l~ 
J: 
U 

(I).,. 
C< 
Ow 
CD.. 
1..< 
«~ 
_0 
(l)z 
«$< 

.s::::--' 

o .-
::?! 

PURPOSE BY 

od lacement MAA 
set MAA 

scale: 

1" = 10' -0" 
sheet title: 

East 
Planting 
Plan 

sheet number: 

L - 3.1 
of eleven 



© Michael Arnone Landscaoe Architect - 2014 
THESE DRAWI\I(3S ARE INSTRUMENTS OF SERlflcE. ISSUED FOR A ONE-TIME SINGLE USE BY THE 
OWNER. THE ENTIRE CONTENTS OF THESE DRAWINGS IS COPYRIGHT e MICHAEL ARNONE 
LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT. LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT RETAINS ALL RIGHTS AND TITLE. NO PART MAY 
BE REPRODUCED IN ANY FASHION OR MEDIUM W1THOllT THE EXPRESS WRITTEN APPROVAL OF 
THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT. THE PROPER ELECTRONIC TRANSFER OF DATA SHALL BE THE 
USER'S RESPONSI81L1TY WITHOUT LIABILITY TO THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT. 

OWNER SHALL ASSUME RESPONSIBILITY FOR COMPLIANCE WITH ALL EASEMENTS, SETBACK 
REQUIREMENTS AND PROPERTY LINES. OWNER SHALL ACQUIRE ALL NECESSMY PERMITS 
REQUIRED TO PERFORM WORK SHOWN ON PLANS. BASE INFORMATION HAS BEEN PROVIDED BY 
THE OWNER. MICHAEL ARNONE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECnJRE ASSUMES NO LIABILITY FOR THE 
ACCURACY OF SAID PROPERTY LINE BOUNDARIES, FENCE LINES OR PROPERTY CORNERS. 

PREVAIUNG WIND DIRECTION 

2) 2' DIA. X 10'-0" (MIN.) 
TREATED LODGE POLE PINE 
STAKE ON WINDWARD SIDE, OMIT 
STAKING FOR PALM TREES 

22" LONG CORDED RUBBER TREE 
TIE-3 PER TREE REQUIRED 

LIGHTLY SCARIFY ------~::::::_-I_'~=1~~+ 
SIDES OF ROOT BALL 

Nom 
I. I'MIJE mm Pa'l'flItI/CflMR 7lI tI(Rll!T/()N IJF PREV,fItf1/4 "'(Nil. 
2, RfilfWE ffM'fs.fffl!.' TW rEM.¥. 
J. f'fM77,rf pff.ffWt liE H "IIfA'. tlWf{'flR IWtll i4 T111E.f lJff11I 

IJF kYJ()T!IIIU 
, J'f'l/JIE.f Mli PMIITK1lJC~ .fMU lIEPRE..fPf'RfJVElI!If MNlJ.fMPE 
.fflJIffTl/JT PR(()R 7lI PMKT7Nf 
5. {f{)1ITlJfC7lIR.ffWl N{)T1ff fI~R()(/,rtl.rfl!'l/cE NEl?T@ 
41/0.612._ PRITJR 7lI mMVifT1tVl/ TREE Pim 

3' WIDE WATERING BASIN W/3" HIGH BERM 
WHERE APPLICABLE. THOROUGHLY 
WATER TREE IMMEDIATELY AFTER 
PLANTING AND RAKE GROUND SMOOTH. 

ROOT CROWN 1" ABOVE FINISH GRADE 

, '14f~. ,.~~r~ ? /- PREPARED BACKFILL MIX SEE PLANTING NOTES 

~IIIIIIIII .~ ... IWM1~1 
INSTALL ROOT BARRIER 
WHERE DISTANCE FROM 
TREE TO EXISTING OR NEW 
SNV IS 8' OR LESS. 

/ 111-1111 > 11"]' 
--'/ 11111 ............ IIIII 

1=" '<:<~~~;>,," " 
i-IIII~--.- .__ .1J=-

NOTES: 

~ --SCARIFY SIDES AND BonOM OF PLANTING 
HOLE BY HAND TO ELIMINATE SMOOTH 
SURFACES. FOOT TAMP BACKFILL BEFORE 
PLANTING 

1. Planting hole shall be minimum 24" dia. and 1-1/2 times depth of root ball. 
2 Species and plant stOCk shall be pre-approved by Landscape Architect prior to planting. 
3. Contractor shall notify Underground Service Alert @ (800) 642.2444 prior to excavating planting holes. 

.- GROUND COVER 

PLANT (TYPICAL) 

I 
86% OF SPACING 

I -------t-----+-----+-------+----+-----+-----t-------*----~ 
,- EDGE OF PLANTER HALF OF SPACING -e""""PACING L ______________________ 

a
6_' ____ _ 

NOTE: REFER TO PLANTING LEGEND FOR SPACING 

DISTANCES ROWS ARE AT 86% OF SPECIFIED SPACING 

TREE PLANTING DETAIL SHRUB PLANTING DETAIL GROUNDCOVER PLANTING DETAIL 
SCALE: NOT TO SCALE SCALE: NOT TO SCALE 

BACKFLOW PREVENTER 
,-------REDUCEDPRESSURE 
,------GALV. MALE ADAPTER 

,-------------'-, G<J..8! 8~ION 
t (10F2) 

, il-l1 n ".".., .. 0----- GAL V. 90· ELL 
-ll!::llW~ (1 OF 4) 

_ .. o----GALV. PIPE 

12' 
--4" CONCRETE PAD 

.,-FINISH GRADE 
~r,~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

="'--- FEMALE ADAPTER 

IRRIGATION MAINLINE PIPE 

'----- PVC MALE ADAPTER 

'----- PIPE FROM POINT-OF-CONNECTION 
NOTE: 1. INSTALL AS REQUIRED BY LOCAL CODES AND HEALTH DEPT. 

VERIFY LOCAL REQUIREMENTS PRIOR TO INSTALLATION. 

2. PROVIDE BACKFLOW ENCLOSURE FOR PROTECTION. 

BACKFLOW PREVENTER 
not to scale 

• 
;-- FINISHED GRADE 

PVC MAIN LINE 
LENGTH AS REQUIRED 

,--- PVC MAIN LINE 
/ SEE NOTES FOR DEPTH 

~r/// / 
11// / 

:,-------j[1 Jc-------'----o' 

QUICK COUPLER VALVE 

not to scale 

~--18-24" COILED WIRE 

r---- WATERPROOF CONNECTORS (2) 

.--- NODE-400 

NODE CONTROLLER 
not to scale 

EMITTER- SEE EMITTER SCHEDULE 
FOR NUMBER & SIZE --------, 

POLY DRIP TUBING 

I EMITTER 

SHRUB 

./-". 

( E \) 
\,4.0/ 
.~/ 

PLANTING PIT 

ROOT BALL 

TREE 

DRIP TUBING & EMITTERS 

not to scale 

ROOT BALL 
PLANTING PIT 

SCALE: NOT TO SCALE 

from valve 

valve box 

finished grade 

filter 

pressure regulator 

pvc lateral or drip tubing 

sch. 80 union 

valve box extension 
brick supports 

~~~ J<lI.fJ!im'i!llit2:j..~ ~ 1 cu. ft. pea gravel sump 

\4.0/ 
'. / 
~~~ 

PRESSURE REGULATOR & DRIP 
FILTER ASSEMBLY 
not to scale 

NOTE: 
Use Two Bubblers per Tree on opposite 

sides of tree as shown on irrigation plan 
Flow Rate Varies With Model Specified 

/---------Bubbler Head

/------12" Cobra flex hose 

! 
I 
I I 

I 
I 

SxSxTTee 

PVC Lateral Pipe 

PRESSURE COMPENSATING BUBBLER 
ON COBRA FLEX HOSE ASSEMBLY 

not to scale 

CJ) 
(]) 
+- N E 

«5 co8 
Oai .- w 109. 

Oao: CJ)[;l 

0::> «1" 
CJ)I- O-m 

" CJ)U • 0 
N E 

«~ :I "l 

oi 
J: 

SE U C ~ Q)ao: 1Il1l. 
s;::< Ul!'l 

Ow II)~ 
o ffi 

S;::"- III 0; - " 10..< a. g 
~ 

«~ - '" II)@ 
:lJ,l 

_0 E 'E 
(])z Ill'" 
«5< Ul~ 

.s::::::--' ON 
r-.~ 

0 C')...: 
C')&l .-

::?i 

DATE PURPOSE BY 

1.6.14 IuDn (ommooa~ MAA 
3.31.14 set MAA 

scale: 

as noted 
sheet title: 
Planting + 
Irrigation 
Details 

sheet number: 

L - 5.0 
of eleven 

-67-

Item
 #: 10.A

. A
ttach

 1.p
d

f
© Michael Arnone Landscaoe Architect - 2014 
THESE DRAWI\I(3S ARE INSTRUMENTS OF SERlflcE. ISSUED FOR A ONE-TIME SINGlE USE BY THE 
OWNER. THE ENTIRE CONTENTS OF THESE DRAWINGS IS COPYRIGHT e MICHAEL ARNONE 
LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT. LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT RETAINS ALL RIGHTS AND TITLE. NO PART MAY 
BE REPRODUCED IN ANY FASHION OR MEDIUM W1THOllT THE EXPRESS WRITTEN APPROVAL OF 
THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT. THE PROPER ELECTRONIC TRANSFER OF DATA SHALL BE THE 
USER'S RESPONSI81L1TY WITHOUT LIABILITY TO THE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT. 

OWNER SHALL ASSUME RESPONSIBILITY FOR COMPLIANCE WITH ALL EASEMENTS, SETBACK 
REQUIREMENTS AND PROPERTY LINES. OWNER SHALL ACQUIRE ALL NECESSARY PERMITS 
REQUIRED TO PERFOIW WORK SHOWN ON PLANS. BASE INFORMATION HAS BEEN PROVIDED BY 
THE OWNER. MICHAEL ARNONE LANDSCAPE ARCHITECnJRE ASSUMES NO LIABILITY FOR THE 
ACCURACY OF SAID PROPERTY LINE BOUNDARIES, FENCE LINES OR PROPERTY CORNERS. 

PREVAIUNG WIND DIRECTION 

2) 2' DIA. X 10'-0" (MIN.) 
TREATED LODGE POLE PINE 
STAKE ON WINDWARD SIDE, OMIT 
STAKING FOR PALM TREES 

22" LONG CORDED RUBBER TREE 
TIE-3 PER TREE REQUIRED 

Kom 
I. I'MIJE mm Pa'I'flI{I/CflMI! 7lI {I(f.'ll!T/()/Y IJF I'I.'EMfItf1/4 .v(/YII. 
2, I.'fiI(WE ffM'fs.fffl!.' 7W rw.¥. 
J. f'fM71/Yf pff.ffWt liE H '1141'. {lWlEflR !//Y{ll i4 T1!1E.f lJff11I 

IJF kYJ()T!IIIU 
, J'f'l/JIE.f I/II{I PMIITKTlJe~ .flll/U lIEPl.'E-IIPPIYJIIEli fJfI MiYlJ,fMPE 
I/I.'tJIfITE/JT I'I.'(()I! 7lI PMKT7Kf 
5. (f{)/l77M{J7lIR.ffWl K{)T1ff fI~R()(//y{I.rfl?llI(JE 1/lE1i'T@ 
411O.6IZHHI'I.'fT)1! 7lI tml/Vl/T1tVl/ T7?EE PITY 

3' WIDE WATERING BASIN W/3" HIGH BERM 
WHERE APPLICABLE. THOROUGHLY 
WATER TREE IMMEDIATELY AFTER 
PLANTING AND RAKE GROUND SMOOTH. 

ROOT CROWN 1" ABOVE FINISH GRADE 

LIGHTLY SCARIFY ------~::::::_-I_'~=1~~+ 
SIDES OF ROOT BALL 

INSTALL ROOT BARRIER 
WHERE DISTANCE FROM 
TREE TO EXISTING OR NEW 
SNV IS 8' OR LESS. 

, ~' I rfm~" 'I~-I PREPARED BACKFILL MIX SEE PLANTING NOTES 

II ;;rIll II Ji~I'~ , 
_~./. I-II 'In 

IIII IF 

NOTES: 

iW=~, ,~.,~" . ,1)=' ~ --SCARIFY SIDES AND BOTTOM OF PLANTING 
HOLE BY HAND TO ELIMINATE SMOOTH 
SURFACES. FOOT TAMP BACKFILL BEFORE 
PLANTING 

1. Planting hole shall be minimum 24" dia. and 1-1/2 times depth of root ball. 
2 Species and plant stOCk shall be pre-approved by Landscape Architect prior to planting. 
3. Contractor shall notify Underground Service Alert @ (800) 642.2444 prior to excavating planting holes. 

.- GROUND COVER 

PLANT (TYPICAL) 

I 
86% OF SPACING 

I -------t-----4-----+-------+----+----+----+-------*-----~ 
,- EDGE OF PLANTER HALF OF SPACING -e""""PACING L ______________________ 

a
6_' ____ _ 

NOTE: REFER TO PLANTING LEGEND FOR SPACING 

DISTANCES ROWS ARE AT 86% OF SPECIFIED SPACING 

TREE PLANTING DETAIL SHRUB PLANTING DETAIL GROUNDCOVER PLANTING DETAIL 
SCALE: NOT TO SCALE SCALE: NOT TO SCALE 

BACKFLOW PREVENTER 
,-------REDUCEDPRESSURE 
,------GALV. MALE ADAPTER 

,------------'-, G<J..8! 8~ION 
t (10F2) 

, il-l1 n ,.".., .. 0----- GAL V. 90· ELL 
-ll!::JlW~ (1 OF 4) 

_ .. o----GALV. PIPE 

12' 
--4" CONCRETE PAD 

.,-FINISH GRADE 
~r,~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

="'--- FEMALE ADAPTER 

IRRIGATION MAINLINE PIPE 

'------- PVC MALE ADAPTER 

'------- PIPE FROM POINT-OF-CONNECTION 
NOTE: 1. INSTALL AS REQUIRED BY LOCAL CODES AND HEALTH DEPT. 

, 
" 

VERIFY LOCAL REQUIREMENTS PRIOR TO INSTALLATION. 
2. PROVIDE BACKFLOW ENCLOSURE FOR PROTECTION. 

BACKFLOW PREVENTER 
not to scale 

;-- FINISHED GRADE 
• 

, 
I 

I 
I 

/ 
I 

/ 
I 

/ 
) 

o 

PVC MAIN LINE 
SEE NOTES FOR DEPTH 

QUICK COUPLER VALVE 

not to scale 

SHRUB 

~--18-24" COILED WIRE 

r--- WATERPROOF CONNECTORS (2) 

,---- NODE-400 

NODE CONTROLLER 
not to scale 

EMITTER- SEE EMITTER SCHEDULE 
FOR NUMBER & SIZE --------, 

POLY DRIP TUBING 

I EMITTER 

PLANTING PIT 

ROOT BALL 

TREE 

DRIP TUBING & EMITTERS 

not to scale 

ROOT BALL 
PLANTING PIT 

SCALE: NOT TO SCALE 

// 

" 
// 

/ / 

from valve 

valve box // .// 

//~:/./ /../ finished grade 

~1!l / / . -drft~~~~~ filter 
~~,rWl / \1"ll1jl[;O~ 

II / ~ 
IV .. ~~~~~~\\\\ _ press re reg lator 

c <;71 .// ~ ~\r-- u u 
Co ~-C;7 ====:]~ ¢ ~~ - pvc lateral or drip tubing 

rtL/1 .... ~~ ~~~~~~ sch. 80 union 

II 4 " CLE~R \~ ~ ~ valve box extension 
MINIMUM brick supports 

~l~ J<lI.fJ!im~it2:j..~ ~ 1 cu. ft. pea gravel sump 

\4.0/ 
'. / 
~~~ 

//-------"", , F ' ) \ 
I \ 
( I 

\4.0) 
...... -~ 

PRESSURE REGULATOR & DRIP 
FILTER ASSEMBLY 
not to scale 

NOTE: 
Use Two Bubblers per Tree on opposite 

sides of tree as shown on irrigation plan 
Flow Rate Varies With Model Specified 

/---------Bubbler Head

,------12" Cobra flex hose 

SxSxTTee 

PVC Lateral Pipe 

PRESSURE COMPENSATING BUBBLER 
ON COBRA FLEX HOSE ASSEMBLY 

not to scale 

CJ) 
(]) 
+- N E 

«5 co8 
Oai .- w 109-O..: CJ)[;l 

0::> «1" 
CJ)I- o-m 

" CJ)U • 0 
N E 

«~ :I "l 

oi 
J: 

SE U C ~ (])..: 1Il1l. 
s;::< Ul!'l 

Ow II)~ 
o ffi 

S;::"- III 0; - " 10..< a. g 
~ 

«~ - '" II)@ 
:lJ.l 

_0 E ·E 
(])z 111", 

«5< Ul~ 
.s::::::--' ON 

r-.~ 

0 C')...: 
C')&l .-

::?i 

DATE PURPOSE 
1.6.14 
3.31.14 

scale: 

as note 
sheet title: 
Planting + 
Irrigation 
Details 

sheet number: 

L -
of elevc 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-68-



-69-

Item #: 10.A. Attach 2.pdf

Date 

Requesting Department 

Administrative 
Council 

Total 

1200-00-00-000-4390.400 
CS0018 

1200-00-00-43900400 

Total 

INetlmpact 

City of Capitola Budget Adjustment Form 

Public Works 

Item # 
Council Date 
Council Approval 

4/2/2014 

Assign 2013-14 ClP Budget of 
$130,000 "undetermined park" to 

..L\.r.H.I.\'" ";,..O,'-A,.. Park. 

lO.:A 

tJll 0 ('f4 

$ 

$ 

$ 

1$ 

Purpose: 
Allocate $130,000 "undetermined park" funding from 2013-14 Budget to 
Pro·ect CS0018-McGre or Park. 

Department Head Approval 

Finance Department Approv~-\L.~--c...~_....:.... ______________ _ 

City Manager Approval 

4/2/20143:46 PM 
P:\!!! LETS SKA TE\8udget Amendment - McGregor \ General Fund 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-70-



CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

MEETING OF APRIL 10, 2014 

FROM: DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 

SUBJECT: CONSIDER THE LOWER PACIFIC COVE PARKING LOT OPERATING 
GUIDELINES AND THE RENAMING OF THE PACIFIC COVE PARKING LOTS 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

1. Approve operating guidelines for the Lower Pacific Cove Parking Lot for the remainder of 
2014, with a scheduled review in January 2015; and 

2. Approve a name change for both the Upper and Lower Pacific Cove Parking Lots to "Beach 
and Village Parking 1 & 2," as recommended by the Traffic and Parking Commission. 

BACKGROUND: On March 28, 2013, the City Council approved the project scope, construction 
plans, and financing for the Lower Pacific Cove Parking Lot Project. With the project nearing 
completion, Council Member Norton has requested the City consider developing operating 
guidelines for the parking lot. 
Also, at the January 18, 2014, Traffic and Parking Commission meeting, the Commission 
unanimously recommended renaming both the Pacific Cove Parking Lots to "Beach and Village 
Parking Lots 1 & 2," with the upper lot being Lot 1 and the lower lot being Lot 2. This 
recommendation was based on the need to better identify the parking lot with its intended purpose 
of providing parking for beach and village visitors. 

DISCUSSION: As part of the Lower Pacific Cove project development process a project 
description was developed and approved. This description is included as Attachment 2. Also, 
along these lines, on January 14, 2014, the City Council approved an Ordinance amendment to 
facilitate charging for parking in the new lot at the same rate that is charged in the upper parking 
lot. Staff has prepared a set of operating guidelines for the lower lot based on the regulations 
currently used for the upper lot which are included as Attachment 1. Staff recommends utilizing 
these regulations for the lower lot for the remainder of 2014, so that the staff can monitor the usage 
patterns and impacts of this lot on parking in the Village, traffic congestion, parking revenue, and 
safety. Staff will return in January 2015, with a review and recommendations, if any, for changes 
to these regulations. 
The idea of changing the name of the Pacific Cove Parking Lots was raised by Commissioners of 
the Traffic and Parking Commission when the project was first approved by the City Council. The 
Commission's recommendation of "Beach and Village Parking Lots 1 & 2" was selected to clearly 
identify the parking lots for visitors. Further it was the recommendation of the Commission to add 
the 1 & 2 designation to the names, so that it would be possible to issue permits for one lot or the 
other. For example, a pilot project is being tried this summer where Junior Guard parents are being 
issued weekday permits for the lower lot (Beach and Village Parking Lot 2) to encourage them to 
not park in the Village or on Depot Hill. Staff concurs with the recommendations of the Traffic and 
Parking Commission. 

FISCAL IMPACT: None 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Draft Regulations & Guidelines 
2. Approved Project Description 

Report Prepared By: Steven Jesberg Reviewed and F 
Public Works Director By City Manage : ---II~,\-

R:\CITY COUNCIL\Agenda Staff Reports\2014 Agenda Reports\04 10 14\1O.B. Lower Pac Cove Rules_SRJev.docx -71-

Item #: 10.B. Staff Report.pdf

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

MEETING OF APRIL 10, 2014 

FROM: DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 

SUBJECT: CONSIDER THE LOWER PACIFIC COVE PARKING LOT OPERATING 
GUIDELINES AND THE RENAMING OF THE PACIFIC COVE PARKING LOTS 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: 

1. Approve operating guidelines for the Lower Pacific Cove Parking Lot for the remainder of 
2014, with a scheduled review in January 2015; and 

2. Approve a name change for both the Upper and Lower Pacific Cove Parking Lots to "Beach 
and Village Parking 1 & 2," as recommended by the Traffic and Parking Commission. 

BACKGROUND: On March 28, 2013, the City Council approved the project scope, construction 
plans, and financing for the Lower Pacific Cove Parking Lot Project. With the project nearing 
completion, Council Member Norton has requested the City consider developing operating 
guidelines for the parking lot. 
Also, at the January 18, 2014, Traffic and Parking Commission meeting, the Commission 
unanimously recommended renaming both the Pacific Cove Parking Lots to "Beach and Village 
Parking Lots 1 & 2," with the upper lot being Lot 1 and the lower lot being Lot 2. This 
recommendation was based on the need to better identify the parking lot with its intended purpose 
of providing parking for beach and village visitors. 

DISCUSSION: As part of the Lower Pacific Cove project development process a project 
description was developed and approved. This description is included as Attachment 2. Also, 
along these lines, on January 14, 2014, the City Council approved an Ordinance amendment to 
facilitate charging for parking in the new lot at the same rate that is charged in the upper parking 
lot. Staff has prepared a set of operating guidelines for the lower lot based on the regulations 
currently used for the upper lot which are included as Attachment 1. Staff recommends utilizing 
these regulations for the lower lot for the remainder of 2014, so that the staff can monitor the usage 
patterns and impacts of this lot on parking in the Village, traffic congestion, parking revenue, and 
safety. Staff will return in January 2015, with a review and recommendations, if any, for changes 
to these regulations. 
The idea of changing the name of the Pacific Cove Parking Lots was raised by Commissioners of 
the Traffic and Parking Commission when the project was first approved by the City Council. The 
Commission's recommendation of "Beach and Village Parking Lots 1 & 2" was selected to clearly 
identify the parking lots for visitors. Further it was the recommendation of the Commission to add 
the 1 & 2 designation to the names, so that it would be possible to issue permits for one lot or the 
other. For example, a pilot project is being tried this summer where Junior Guard parents are being 
issued weekday permits for the lower lot (Beach and Village Parking Lot 2) to encourage them to 
not park in the Village or on Depot Hill. Staff concurs with the recommendations of the Traffic and 
Parking Commission. 

FISCAL IMPACT: None 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Draft Regulations & Guidelines 
2. Approved Project Description 

Report Prepared By: Steven Jesberg Reviewed and F 
Public Works Director By City Manage : ---II~,\-

R:\CITY COUNCIL\Agenda Staff Reports\2014 Agenda Reports\04 10 14\1O.B. Lower Pac Cove Rules_SRJev.docx 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-72-



Lower Pacific Cove Parking Lot 
(Beach and Village Parking Lot 2) 

Regulations and Guidelines 

• Paid Parking from 8 a.m. to 8 p.m. 
• $0.50 per hour 
• No overnight camping 
• Vehicles must park between white lines 
• No vehicles over 20 feet in length 
• No loitering or skating 
• 72 hour parking limit 
• Use of lot at own risk. City of Capitola will not be responsible for any damages occurring 

form the use of this lot 

-73-

Item #: 10.B. Attach 1.pdf

Lower Pacific Cove Parking Lot 
(Beach and Village Parking Lot 2) 

Regulations and Guidelines 

• Paid Parking from 8 a.m. to 8 p.m. 
• $0.50 per hour 
• No overnight camping 
• Vehicles must park between white lines 
• No vehicles over 20 feet in length 
• No loitering or skating 
• 72 hour parking limit 
• Use of lot at own risk. City of Capitola will not be responsible for any damages occurring 

form the use of this lot 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-74-



Lower Pacific Cove Parking Lot 
Project Description 

The project will develop an approximate 220 space surface public parking lot on approximately 4 
acres ofland formerly used for the Pacific Cove Mobile Home Park located at 426 Capitola 
Avenue. The new parking lot shall be designed with the following features: 

• Maximum number of parking stalls, estimated at between 220 - 250 spaces 
• Efficient pedestrian and vehicle circulation 
• Two entrances/exits (Capitola Avenue and Bay Avenue) 
• Low impact development standards to address 

o Water quality 
o Stormwater flow control 

• Landscaping 
• Downcast lighting of parking and pedestrian facilities 
• Pay by Space parking fee collection 
• Shuttle stops for Village Beach Shuttle operations during the summer 
• Other optional project components include: 

o Renovation of the existing restroom facilities 
o Placement of a new, or relocation of an existing, coach in the vicinity of Capitola 

Ave. for City storage/office space. 
o New landscaping/fencing on Monterey/Bay Ave. 
o New pedestrian access to Bay Ave. from upper Pacific Cove parking lot 
o Parking pay stations on upper Pacific Cove parking lot 

It is the goal ofthe project to construct a parking lot that will be in use for a period of up to five 
years at which time it is anticipated that other uses, which are not currently defmed, will be 
developed for the site and all or portions of the parking lot removed. 

-75-

Item #: 10.B. Attach 2.pdf

Lower Pacific Cove Parking Lot 
Project Description 

The project will develop an approximate 220 space surface public parking lot on approximately 4 
acres ofland formerly used for the Pacific Cove Mobile Home Park located at 426 Capitola 
Avenue. The new parking lot shall be designed with the following features: 

• Maximum number of parking stalls, estimated at between 220 - 250 spaces 
• Efficient pedestrian and vehicle circulation 
• Two entrances/exits (Capitola Avenue and Bay Avenue) 
• Low impact development standards to address 

o Water quality 
o Stormwater flow control 

• Landscaping 
• Downcast lighting of parking and pedestrian facilities 
• Pay by Space parking fee collection 
• Shuttle stops for Village Beach Shuttle operations during the summer 
• Other optional project components include: 

o Renovation of the existing restroom facilities 
o Placement of a new, or relocation of an existing, coach in the vicinity of Capitola 

Ave. for City storage/office space. 
o New landscaping/fencing on Monterey/Bay Ave. 
o New pedestrian access to Bay Ave. from upper Pacific Cove parking lot 
o Parking pay stations on upper Pacific Cove parking lot 

It is the goal ofthe project to construct a parking lot that will be in use for a period of up to five 
years at which time it is anticipated that other uses, which are not currently defmed, will be 
developed for the site and all or portions of the parking lot removed. 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-76-



CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

MEETING OF APRIL 10, 2014 

FROM: DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 

SUBJECT: ESPLANADE AND STOCKTON AVENUE INTERSECTION IMPROVEMENTS 
CONSIDERATION OF DESIGN CHANGES AND DICSUSSION OF CREATING A 
VILLAGE SIDEWALK REPLACEMENT COOPERATIVE PROJECT 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve design modifications to the Esplanade and Stockton Avenue 
Intersection Improvements and provide direction to staff on the creation of a Village Sidewalk 
Replacement Cooperative Project. 

BACKGROUND: On February 27, 2014 the City Council approved plans for improvements to the 
Esplanade and Stockton Avenue intersection. These improvements combine two crosswalks 
across Stockton Avenue into a single crosswalk, construct a median island, construct a raised 
bulb-out, and add street lighting to the intersection. Since this action some changes have been 
made to the plan to separate the ADA ramps at the curbs as recommended by current guidelines, 
add an in-ground planter along the bulb-out on the southwest corner. 

In addition to these modifications, staff is recommending reducing the scope of the project to defer 
the sidewalk replacement portion of the project in order to determine if cooperative public/private 
partnerships can be formed to split the cost of this element of the project. Since the start of the 
current cooperative sidewalk replacement project fronting the Esplanade restaurants, the city has 
received inquiries from other property owners in the Village expressing interest in sidewalk 
replacement. 

DISCUSSION: The proposed design changes are all consistent with scope of the project, which is 
to improve the safety of the intersection for pedestrians. Although some community concerns have 
been raised recently about eliminating one of the crosswalks, staff believes this element of the 
design is important to creating a safe crossing. Details of the design can be seen on Attachment 1. 

Regarding the sidewalk replacement aspect of this project, staff is recommending that it be 
removed from the project at this time. Removing the sidewalk work at this time would better 
facilitate construction of the project this spring and summer by limiting the work to the pedestrian 
crossing improvements. The resulting cost reduction in the project will result in a fund balance 
which then could be used as initial funding for cooperative sidewalk replacement project. Projects 
eligible for this funding would have to be located in the Central Village (CV) zoning district and 
provide a 50% private sector match. Staff would recommend that future sidewalk replacement work 
be deferred until the fall to avoid major sidewalk work during the busy season. 

-77-

Item #: 10.C. Staff Report.pdf

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

MEETING OF APRIL 10, 2014 

FROM: DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 

SUBJECT: ESPLANADE AND STOCKTON AVENUE INTERSECTION IMPROVEMENTS 
CONSIDERATION OF DESIGN CHANGES AND DICSUSSION OF CREATING A 
VILLAGE SIDEWALK REPLACEMENT COOPERATIVE PROJECT 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Approve design modifications to the Esplanade and Stockton Avenue 
Intersection Improvements and provide direction to staff on the creation of a Village Sidewalk 
Replacement Cooperative Project. 

BACKGROUND: On February 27, 2014 the City Council approved plans for improvements to the 
Esplanade and Stockton Avenue intersection. These improvements combine two crosswalks 
across Stockton Avenue into a single crosswalk, construct a median island, construct a raised 
bulb-out, and add street lighting to the intersection. Since this action some changes have been 
made to the plan to separate the ADA ramps at the curbs as recommended by current guidelines, 
add an in-ground planter along the bulb-out on the southwest corner. 

In addition to these modifications, staff is recommending reducing the scope of the project to defer 
the sidewalk replacement portion of the project in order to determine if cooperative public/private 
partnerships can be formed to split the cost of this element of the project. Since the start of the 
current cooperative sidewalk replacement project fronting the Esplanade restaurants, the city has 
received inquiries from other property owners in the Village expressing interest in sidewalk 
replacement. 

DISCUSSION: The proposed design changes are all consistent with scope of the project, which is 
to improve the safety of the intersection for pedestrians. Although some community concerns have 
been raised recently about eliminating one of the crosswalks, staff believes this element of the 
design is important to creating a safe crossing. Details of the design can be seen on Attachment 1. 

Regarding the sidewalk replacement aspect of this project, staff is recommending that it be 
removed from the project at this time. Removing the sidewalk work at this time would better 
facilitate construction of the project this spring and summer by limiting the work to the pedestrian 
crossing improvements. The resulting cost reduction in the project will result in a fund balance 
which then could be used as initial funding for cooperative sidewalk replacement project. Projects 
eligible for this funding would have to be located in the Central Village (CV) zoning district and 
provide a 50% private sector match. Staff would recommend that future sidewalk replacement work 
be deferred until the fall to avoid major sidewalk work during the busy season. 



APRIL 10,2014 AGENDA STAFF REPORT 
ESPLANADE AND STOCKTON AVENUE INTERSECTION IMPROVEMENTS 

FISCAL IMPACT: The construction estimate for the full project, including sidewalk replacement is 
unchanged at $141,000. The revised estimate, without the sidewalks, is $100,000. Once the final 
construction price is known, staff will return with a budget amendment moving the remaining funds 
to the new sidewalk replacement project. 

ATTACHMENTS: Revised plan sheet 

Report Prepared By: Steven Jesberg 
Public Works Director 

Reviewed and Fo 
By City Manager:,-+-+--">"'-+ 

R:\CITY COUNCIL\Agenda Staff Repmts\20 14 Agenda Reports\04 10 14\1 O.C. Eaplanade and Stockton Project Revisions_ SR _rev.docx -78-

Item #: 10.C. Staff Report.pdf
APRIL 10, 2014 AGENDA STAFF REPORT 
ESPLANADE AND STOCKTON AVENUE INTERSECTION IMPROVEMENTS 

FISCAL IMPACT: The construction estimate for the full project, including sidewalk replacement is 
unchanged at $141,000. The revised estimate, without the sidewalks, is $100,000. Once the final 
construction price is known, staff will return with a budget amendment moving the remaining funds 
to the new sidewalk replacement project. 

ATTACHMENTS: Revised plan sheet 

Report Prepared By: Steven Jesberg 
Public Works Director 

Reviewed and Fo 
By City Manager:,--+-+--">",-+ 

R:\CITY COUNCIL\Agenda Staff RepOlts\20 14 Agenda Reports\04 10 14\10.C. Eaplanade and Stockton Project Revisions _ SR Jev.docx 



' ,, ,, .,, ,, "" "" "" 

v 

~
 

\k-
-

It> 

~ 
~
 

..:)-'3 
~ 

4 
,""] 

·-0\, 
a.:-

C
) 

'r
 

Q
..-

~
 

7>. 
0 

~
 

<
 

<
 

~
 

Q
_

 

:;!Y 
~I 
~ 

~~ 

~. 
~~ 

'--' 

'"'"' ~~A 

isb 
i ·il~ 
tis 
.. 

~ 

~~~· 
~~~5 
g~~~ 
·id 
~.~· 
6•~1 
·i~ I 
iiEQ

 
5~~i. 

ffi ~:i~; 
;;;~ 

·~ 
g~~~~~ 
i5 ·~~ii~ 

~~ 
" 

~
~
 

i 
• 

)-iS= 
~3 

~~~ 
·!~ 
;b§ 

~ i ! 
~!'~ 
2
~
 

~· 
Rij~ 

Q
 

~ 
~. 

~ 
!I 

. i 
d

. ll ~ 
Ill 

~ 

:l!~ 
~g~~~ 

i 
• ~ 

d
i 

J 
~' 

""~·~· 
z
~
H
"
 

• 
ii~~.'l 

h 
" 

-.. 
gs 

~
p
 

~ ~ I 

r I 
---~----f\ 
v 

-79-

Item
 #: 10.C

. A
ttach

 1.p
d

f

, 
~~rus 

, 
''\, 

''\'' 

...... 

"'''' 
GRAPfDC SCALE 

is. Uo-j 

DISCLAIMER 
'lHC''''TARTl'tIImI OM1lI5SHaT15t1l1!:I'II0I"m1Y0I'1IIJ'MIAN"'1III.J..lAN3C011SU\.lINU 
CML ENCtIEER$. I'L' IS AN ":rnIUII~T DF SGMC£ AIID ......... NOT DC REPROCl.U:m. ALTOIEI), 
DRu,tD'fIIlMDUr""ECCtI~rDFTHEENOtIEER.lHEPROPERELEC'lIIONIC11WISJUtDF 
D.o."ASlWJ.IlI!:'IHI!:Usen-l!DPCNIISLI'IYlIlHCUTIJAIIUTl'1U1m!OIGINezft. 
UNAUlIiOAImI ustl!OPRC»IIU1£D. 

BOWMAN 8< WILLIAMS 
CONSUl.llNG CIVIL ENGINEERS 

lOIlcr:DMIIntaT 
$AHTAaIUZ,CAII6OIIO 

(1I31)'UG_lIIID 

PREUlilNARY 
STREET NPRO\6IENT PlAN 

A\€NU£ AND THE f'SPI..ANADE 

• lSIlUAlElN 
1H[QTYUt:Al'l1'Ol.A 

~ACRUZCCUMIY.c.wFOla'llA 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-80-



CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

MEETING OF APRIL 10, 2014 

FROM: CITY MANAGER'S DEPARTMENT 

SUBJECT: CONSIDER VILLAGE PERSONALIZED BRICK PROGRAM 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Authorize the Capitola Soquel Chamber of Commerce to 
commence the Village Personalized Brick Program and share 50% of the proceeds with the City 
to be placed in the Village Sidewalk Fund. 

BACKGROUND: During the construction of Phase 1 of the Capitola Village Streetscape 
Enhancement Project (Project) in September of 2001, the Capitola Soquel Chamber of 
Commerce (Chamber), on the City's behalf, began the "Personalized Brick" fund raising 
campaign. The money raised was used to help fund the Project. A total of 1, 700 bricks of the 
5,000 which were available were sold, raising over $60,000 for the Project. The fundraising 
campaign concluded in 2002. 

DISCUSSION: Recently, new sidewalks have been installed along the Esplanade with the 
same brick motif as in Phase 1 of the Village Streetscape Enhancement Project. There has 
been interest expressed by the community to begin the "Personalized Brick" program again. 
The Chamber has offered to administer the program in exchange for a 50% share of the 
proceeds. With the new sidewalk construction on the esplanade, there are between 4,000 and 
5,000 potential bricks which will be available to purchase throughout the Village. 

Staff is working with the Chamber of Commerce to identify a company who will engrave the 
bricks on-site. The charge for a personalized brick has yet to be determined. It is anticipated 
that the program will begin within two to three weeks of the City Council's approval. 

FISCAL IMPACT: There is a potential to raise significant funds if the Chamber sold the same 
amount as they did previously with 50% of the profits going to the Chamber. The City's share 
will be placed in a Village Sidewalk Fund. 

ATTACHMENTS: None 

Report Prepared By: Lisa G. Murphy 
Administrative Services Director 

Reviewed and ~ar~ed 
by City Manag\p 

R:\CITY COUNCIL \Agenda StaffReports\2014 Agenda Reports\04 10 14\10.D. Village Memorial 
Bricks SR rev.docx -81-

Item #: 10.D. Staff Report.pdf

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT 

MEETING OF APRIL 10, 2014 

FROM: CITY MANAGER'S DEPARTMENT 

SUBJECT: CONSIDER VILLAGE PERSONALIZED BRICK PROGRAM 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Authorize the Capitola Soquel Chamber of Commerce to 
commence the Village Personalized Brick Program and share 50% of the proceeds with the City 
to be placed in the Village Sidewalk Fund. 

BACKGROUND: During the construction of Phase 1 of the Capitola Village Streetscape 
Enhancement Project (Project) in September of 2001, the Capitola Soquel Chamber of 
Commerce (Chamber), on the City's behalf, began the "Personalized Brick" fund raising 
campaign. The money raised was used to help fund the Project. A total of 1,700 bricks of the 
5,000 which were available were sold, raising over $60,000 for the Project. The fundraising 
campaign concluded in 2002. 

DISCUSSION: Recently, new sidewalks have been installed along the Esplanade with the 
same brick motif as in Phase 1 of the Village Streets cape Enhancement Project. There has 
been interest expressed by the community to begin the "Personalized Brick" program again. 
The Chamber has offered to administer the program in exchange for a 50% share of the 
proceeds. With the new sidewalk construction on the esplanade, there are between 4,000 and 
5,000 potential bricks which will be available to purchase throughout the Village. 

Staff is working with the Chamber of Commerce to identify a company who will engrave the 
bricks on-site. The charge for a personalized brick has yet to be determined. It is anticipated 
that the program will begin within two to three weeks of the City Council's approval. 

FISCAL IMPACT: There is a potential to raise significant funds if the Chamber sold the same 
amount as they did previously with 50% of the profits going to the Chamber. The City's share 
will be placed in a Village Sidewalk Fund. 

ATTACHMENTS: None 

Report Prepared By: Lisa G. Murphy 
Administrative Services Director 

Reviewed and ~ed 
by City Manag r: 

R:\CITY COUNCIL\Agenda Staff Reports\20 14 Agenda Reports\04 10 14\10.D. Village Memorial 
Bricks SR rev.docx 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-82-



CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT. 

MEETING OF APRIL 10, 2014 

FROM: CITY MANAGER'S DEPARTMENT 

SUBJECT: CONSIDER A CONTRACT WITH COMMUNITY TELEVISION OF SANTA CRUZ 
COUNTY, INC. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Authorize the City Manager to execute a contract with Community 
Television of Santa Cruz County, Inc. (CTV) to broadcast City Council and Planning 
Commission meetings, provide technical support and programming for the City's Public, 
Education and Government Channels. 

BACKGROUND: The City of Capitola has had a contract with CTV since 2005 to broadcast its 
City Council and Planning Commission meetings live, provide technical support and 
programming for the City's Public, Education and Government (PEG) channels. The contract 
terms were based on the funding the City received quarterly from PEG fees collected by Charter 
TV and AT&T. Every cable subscriber in Capitola pays $0.64 a month to support PEG 
programming in accordance with the Capitola Municipal Code, which amounts to $17,000 to 
$19,000 per year. This entire amount would then be passed onto CTV. 

In 2006, The Digital Infrastructure & Video Competition Act (DIVCA) was passed by the State 
which changed the franchising ability of cities and counties, and new Federal law prohibited 
PEG funding from being utilized to pay for personnel costs or other operational purposes. PEG 
funding may only be used for capital purchases. The City received formal notice from Charter 
TV in January of this year regarding this restriction of funds. 

DISCUSSION: The proposed contract with CTV will continue the existing services the City 
receives today; broadcast of meetings, technical support and programming for the City's PEG 
channels. The fee for service will be based on actual time spent by the technician broadcasting 
the meetings at $50/per hour. There are 1 0 hours of technical support included for no charge, 
and thereafter at $30/per hour. In addition, CTV will provide training workshops to residents, 
create two public service announcements, and provide coverage of two community events at no 
additional charge. 

The funds received through PEG fees will be retained by the City and utilized for capital 
equipment purchases in support of PEG access only. PEG channels are set aside for the 
following purposes; Public: Available for use by the public; Education: for use by educational 
institutions for educational programming; Governmental: used for programming by local 
governments. 

FISCAL IMPACT: The estimated fi;scal impact will be between $8,000 to $10,000 a year, 
depending on the length and number of the meetings. Funding will be from the General Fund as 
opposed to PEG funding. Funding for the remainder of this fiscal year will be paid from PEG. 

ATTACHMENT: 1. Contract, 2) Letter from Charter 

Report Prepared By: Lisa G. Murphy, Administrative Services Director q:o 
Reviewed and Fo ded 
by City Manager: 

R:\CITY COUNCIL \Agenda StaffReports\2014 Agenda Repmts\04 10 14\9.E. Community TV Contract_SR_rev.docx -83-

Item #: 10.E. Staff Report.pdf

CITY COUNCIL 
AGENDA REPORT. 

MEETING OF APRIL 10, 2014 

FROM: CITY MANAGER'S DEPARTMENT 

SUBJECT: CONSIDER A CONTRACT WITH COMMUNITY TELEVISION OF SANTA CRUZ 
COUNTY, INC. 

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Authorize the City Manager to execute a contract with Community 
Television of Santa Cruz County, Inc. (CTV) to broadcast City Council and Planning 
Commission meetings, provide technical support and programming for the City's Public, 
Education and Government Channels. 

BACKGROUND: The City of Capitola has had a contract with CTV since 2005 to broadcast its 
City Council and Planning Commission meetings live, provide technical support and 
programming for the City's Public, Education and Government (PEG) channels. The contract 
terms were based on the funding the City received quarterly from PEG fees collected by Charter 
TV and AT&T. Every cable subscriber in Capitola pays $0.64 a month to support PEG 
programming in accordance with the Capitola Municipal Code, which amounts to $17,000 to 
$19,000 per year. This entire amount would then be passed onto CTV. 

In 2006, The Digital Infrastructure & Video Competition Act (DIVCA) was passed by the State 
which changed the franchising ability of cities and counties, and new Federal law prohibited 
PEG funding from being utilized to pay for personnel costs or other operational purposes. PEG 
funding may only be used for capital purchases. The City received formal notice from Charter 
TV in January of this year regarding this restriction of funds. 

DISCUSSION: The proposed contract with CTV will continue the existing services the City 
receives today; broadcast of meetings, technical support and programming for the City's PEG 
channels. The fee for service will be based on actual time spent by the technician broadcasting 
the meetings at $50/per hour. There are 10 hours of technical support included for no charge, 
and thereafter at $30/per hour. In addition, CTV will provide training workshops to residents, 
create two public service announcements, and provide coverage of two community events at no 
additional charge. 

The funds received through PEG fees will be retained by the City and utilized for capital 
equipment purchases in support of PEG access only. PEG channels are set aside for the 
following purposes; Public: Available for use by the public; Education: for use by educational 
institutions for educational programming; Governmental: used for programming by local 
governments. 

FISCAL IMPACT: The estimated fi;:;cal impact will be between $8,000 to $10,000 a year, 
depending on the length and number of the meetings. Funding will be from the General Fund as 
opposed to PEG funding. Funding for the remainder of this fiscal year will be paid from PEG. 

ATTACHMENT: 1. Contract, 2) Letter from Charter 

Report Prepared By: Lisa G. Murphy, Administrative Services Director rJ:o 
Reviewed and Fo ded 
by City Manager: 

R:\CITY COUNCIL\Agenda Staff Reports\2014 Agenda RepOlis\04 10 14\9.E. Community TV Contract_SRJev.docx 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-84-



AGREEMENT FOR CTV SERVICES BETWEEN 

THE CITY OF CAPITOLA AND 

COMMUNITY TELEVISION OF SANTA CRUZ COUNTY, INC. 

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into this, by and between the City of 
Capitola, a municipal corporation, hereinafter called "City," and Community Television of 
Santa Cruz County, Inc. (CTV), hereinafter called "CTV." 

WITNESSETH 

WHEREAS, the City needs to obtain certain professional, technical and/or 
specialized services of an independent contractor to assist the City in the most economical 
manner; and 

WHEREAS, CTV has the requisite skill, training, qualifications and experience to 
render such services called for under this Agreement to the City. 

THE PARTIES HEREBY AGREE AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1. SCOPE OF SERVICES. CTV shall perform those services as 
specified in detail in Exhibit "A," entitled "SCOPE OF SERVICES" which is attached hereto 
and incorporated herein. 

SECTION 2. TERM OF AGREEMENT. The term of this Agreement shall be from 
April 1, 2014 to December 31, 2014, inclusive, with options to renew for an additional one
year period until December 31, 2015. 

SECTION 3. SCHEDULE OF PERFORMANCE. The services of CTV are to be 
completed according to the schedule set out in Exhibit "B," entitled 11SCHEDULE OF 
PERFORMANCE," which is attached hereto and incorporated herein. CTV will diligently 
proceed with the agreed Scope of Services and will provide such services in a timely manner 
in accordance with the "SCHEDULE OF PERFORMANCE." 

SECTION 4. COMPENSATION. The compensation to be paid to CTV including 
both payment for professional services and reimbursable expenses as well as the rate and 
schedule of payment are set out in Exhibit "C" entitled "COMPENSATION," which is 
attached hereto and incorporated herein. 

SECTION 5. METHOD OF PAYMENT. Except as otherwise provided in Exhibit 
"C," each month, CTV shall furnish to the City a statement of the work performed for 
compensation during the preceding month. Such statement shall also include a detailed 
record of the month's actual reimbursable expenditures. 

11Page of 9 

-85-

Item #: 10.E. Attach 1.pdf

AGREEMENT FOR CTV SERVICES BETWEEN 

THE CITY OF CAPITOLA AND 

COMMUNITY TELEVISION OF SANTA CRUZ COUNTY, INC. 

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into this, by and between the City of 
Capitola, a municipal corporation, hereinafter called "City," and Community Television of 
Santa Cruz County, Inc. (CTV), hereinafter called "CTV." 

WITNESSETH 

WHEREAS, the City needs to obtain certain professional, technical andlor 
specialized services of an independent contractor to assist the City in the most economical 
manner; and 

WHEREAS, CTV has the requisite skill, training, qualifications and experience to 
render such services called for under this Agreement to the City. 

THE PARTIES HEREBY AGREE AS FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1. SCOPE OF SERVICES. CTV shall perform those services as 
specified in detail in Exhibit "A," entitled "SCOPE OF SERVICES" which is attached hereto 
and incorporated herein. 

SECTION 2. TERM OF AGREEMENT. The term of this Agreement shall be from 
April 1, 2014 to December 31, 2014, inclusive, with options to renew for an additional one
year period until December 31, 2015. 

SECTION 3. SCHEDULE OF PERFORMANCE. The services of CTV are to be 
completed according to the schedule set out in Exhibit "B," entitled If SCHEDULE OF 
PERFORMANCE," which is attached hereto and incorporated herein. CTV will diligently 
proceed with the agreed Scope of Services and will provide such services in a timely manner 
in accordance with the "SCHEDULE OF PERFORMANCE." 

SECTION 4. COMPENSATION. The compensation to be paid to CTV including 
both payment for professional services and reimbursable expenses as well as the rate and 
schedule of payment are set out in Exhibit "C" entitled "COMPENSATION," which is 
attached hereto and incorporated herein. 

SECTION 5. METHOD OF PAYMENT. Except as otherwise provided in Exhibit 
"C," each month, CTV shall furnish to the City a statement of the work performed for 
compensation during the preceding month. Such statement shall also include a detailed 
record of the month's actual reimbursable expenditures. 

IIPage of 9 



SECTION 6. INDEPENDENT CTV. It is understood and agreed that CTV, in the 
performance of the work and services agreed to be performed by CTV, shall act as and be an 
independent contractor and not an agent or employee of the City, and as an independent CTV, 
shall obtain no rights to retirement benefits or other benefits which accrue to the City's 
employees, and CTV hereby expressly waives any claini it may have to any such rights. 

SECTION 7. ASSIGNABILITY. CTV shall not assign or transfer any interest in 
this Agreement nor the performance of any of CTV's obligations hereunder, without the prior 
written consent of City, and any attempt by CTV to so assign this Agreement or any rights, 
duties or obligations arising hereunder shall be void and of no effect. 

SECTION 8. INDEMNIFICATION. CTV has the expertise and experience 
necessary to perform the services and duties agreed to be performed by CTV under this 
Agreement, and City is relying upon the skill and knowledge of CTV to perform said services 
and duties. CTV shall defend, indemnifY and hold harmless City, its officers and employees, 
against any loss or liability arising out of or resulting in any way from work performed under 
this Agreement due to the willful or negligent acts (active or passive) or errors or omissions 
by CTV or CTV's officers, employees or agents. 

SECTION 9. INSURANCE. 

A. Errors and Omissions Insurance. CTV shall obtain and maintain in full force 
throughout the term of this Agreement a professional liability insurance policy 
(Errors and Omissions), in a company authorized to issue such insurance in the 
State of California, with limits of liability of not less than One Million Dollars 
($1,000,000.00) to cover all professional services rendered pursuant to this 
Agreement. 

B. Auto and Commercial General Liability Insurance. CTV shall also maintain in full 
force and effect for the term of this Agreement, automobile insurance and 
commercial general liability insurance with an insurance carrier satisfactory to 
City, which insurance shall include protection against claims arising from bodily 
and personal injury, including death resulting therefrom, and damage to property 
resulting from any actual occurrence arising out of the performance of this 
Agreement. The amounts of insurance shall not be less than the following: 

(1) Commercial general liability insurance, or equivalent form, with a 
combined single limit of not less than $500,000.00 per occurrence. If such 
insurance contains a general aggregate limit, such limit shall apply 
separately to each project CTV performs for the City. Such insurance shall 
(a) name the City, its appointed and elected officials, and its employees as 
insured's; and (b) be primary with respect to insurance or self-insurance 
programs maintained by the City and (c) contain standard separation of 
insured's provisions. 

21Page of 9 

-86-

Item #: 10.E. Attach 1.pdf

SECTION 6. INDEPENDENT CTV. It is understood and agreed that CTV, in the 
performance of the work and services agreed to be performed by CTV, shall act as and be an 
independent contractor and not an agent or employee of the City, and as an independent CTV, 
shall obtain no rights to retirement benefits or other benefits which accrue to the City's 
employees, and CTV hereby expressly waives any claini it may have to any such rights. 

SECTION 7. ASSIGNABILITY. CTV shall not assign or transfer any interest in 
this Agreement nor the performance of any of CTV's obligations hereunder, without the prior 
written consent of City, and any attempt by CTV to so assign this Agreement or any rights, 
duties or obligations arising hereunder shall be void and of no effect. 

SECTION 8. INDEMNIFICATION. CTV has the expertise and experience 
necessary to perform the services and duties agreed to be performed by CTV under this 
Agreement, and City is relying upon the skill and knowledge of CTV to perform said services 
and duties. CTV shall defend, indemnifY and hold harmless City, its officers and employees, 
against any loss or liability arising out of or resulting in any way from work performed under 
this Agreement due to the willful or negligent acts (active or passive) or errors or omissions 
by CTV or CTV's officers, employees or agents. 

SECTION 9. INSURANCE. 

A. Errors and Omissions Insurance. CTV shall obtain and maintain in full force 
throughout the term of this Agreement a professional liability insurance policy 
(Errors and Omissions), in a company authorized to issue such insurance in the 
State of California, with limits of liability of not less than One Million Dollars 
($1,000,000.00) to cover all professional services rendered pursuant to this 
Agreement. 

B. Auto and Commercial General Liability Insurance. CTV shall also maintain in full 
force and effect for the term of this Agreement, automobile insurance and 
commercial general liability insurance with an insurance carrier satisfactory to 
City, which insurance shall include protection against claims arising from bodily 
and personal injury, including death resulting therefrom, and damage to property 
resulting from any actual occurrence arising out of the performance of this 
Agreement. The amounts of insurance shall not be less than the following: 

(1) Commercial general liability insurance, or equivalent form, with a 
combined single limit of not less than $500,000.00 per occurrence. If such 
insurance contains a general aggregate limit, such limit shall apply 
separately to each project CTV performs for the City. Such insurance shall 
(a) name the City, its appointed and elected officials, and its employees as 
insured's; and (b) be primary with respect to insurance or self-insurance 
programs maintained by the City and (c) contain standard separation of 
insured's provisions. 

21Page of 9 



(2) Business automobile liability insurance, or equivalent form, with a 
combined single limit of not less than $500,000.00 per occmTence. Such 
insurance shall include coverage for owned, hired and non-owned 
automobiles. 

C. Workers' Compensation Insurance. In accordance with the provisions of Section 
3700 of the. Labor Code, CTV shall be insured against liability for Workers' 
Compensation or undertake self-insurance. CTV agrees to comply with such 
provisions before commencing performance of any work under this Agreement. 

D. Proof of Insurance to the City before Notice to Proceed to Work. CTV shall 
satisfactorily provide certificates of insurance to the City Clerk before Notice to 
Proceed to Work of this Agreement will be issued. Certificates and policies shall 
state that the policy shall not be canceled or reduced in coverage without thirty 
(30) days written notice to the City. Approval of insurance by the City shall not 
relieve or decrease the extent to which CTV may be held responsible for payment 
of damages resulting from services or operations performed pursuant to this 
Agreement. CTV shall not perform any work under this Agreement until CTV has 
obtained the required insurance and until the required certificates have been 
submitted to the City and approved by the City Attorney. If CTV fails or refuses to 
produce or maintain the insurance required by these provisions, or fails or refuses 
to furnish the City required proof that insurance has been procured and is in force 
and paid for, the City shall have the right at the City's election to forthwith 
terminate this Agreement immediately without any financial or contractual 
obligation to the City. As a result of such termination, the City reserves the right 
to employ another CTV to complete the project. 

SECTION 10. NON-DISCRIMINATION. CTV shall not discriminate, in any way, 
against any person on the basis of age, sex, race, color, creed, national origin or disability in 
connection with or related to the performance of this Agreement. 

SECTION 11. TERMINATION. 

A. The City and CTV shall have the right to terminate this Agreement, without cause, 
by giving not less than ten (1 0) days written notice of termination. 

B. If CTV fails to perform any of its material obligations under this Agreement, in 
addition to all other remedies provided by law, the City may terminate this 
Agreement immediately upon written notice. 

C. The City Manager is empowered to terminate this Agreement on behalf of the 
City. 

D. In the event of termination, CTV shall deliver to City copies of all work papers, 
schedules, reports and other work performed by CTV and upon receipt thereof, 
CTV shall be paid in full for services performed and reimbursable expenses 
incuned to the date of termination. 

3jPage of 9 

-87-

Item #: 10.E. Attach 1.pdf

(2) Business automobile liability insurance, or equivalent form, with a 
combined single limit of not less than $500,000.00 per OCClliTence. Such 
insurance shall include coverage for owned, hired and non-owned 
automobiles. 

C. Workers' Compensation Insurance. In accordance with the provisions of Section 
3700 of the. Labor Code, CTV shall be insured against liability for Workers' 
Compensation or undertake self-insurance. CTV agrees to comply with such 
provisions before commencing performance of any work under this Agreement. 

D. Proof of Insurance to the City before Notice to Proceed to Work. CTV shall 
satisfactorily provide certificates of insurance to the City Clerk before Notice to 
Proceed to Work of this Agreement will be issued. Certificates and policies shall 
state that the policy shall not be canceled or reduced in coverage without thirty 
(30) days written notice to the City. Approval of insurance by the City shall not 
relieve or decrease the extent to which CTV may be held responsible for payment 
of damages resulting from services or operations performed pursuant to this 
Agreement. CTV shall not perform any work under this Agreement until CTV has 
obtained the required insurance and until the required certificates have been 
submitted to the City and approved by the City Attorney. If CTV fails or refuses to 
produce or maintain the insurance required by these provisions, or fails or refuses 
to furnish the City required proof that insurance has been procured and is in force 
and paid for, the City shall have the right at the City's election to forthwith 
terminate this Agreement immediately without any financial or contractual 
obligation to the City. As a result of such termination, the City reserves the right 
to employ another CTV to complete the project. 

SECTION 10. NON-DISCRIMINATION. CTV shall not discriminate, in any way, 
against any person on the basis of age, sex, race, color, creed, national origin or disability in 
connection with or related to the performance of this Agreement. 

SECTION 11. TERMINATION. 

A. The City and CTV shall have the right to terminate this Agreement, without cause, 
by giving not less than ten (10) days written notice of termination. 

B. If CTV fails to perform any of its material obligations under this Agreement, in 
addition to all other remedies provided by law, the City may terminate this 
Agreement immediately upon written notice. 

C. The City Manager is empowered to terminate this Agreement on behalf of the 
City. 

D. In the event of termination, CTV shall deliver to City copies of all work papers, 
schedules, reports and other work performed by CTV and upon receipt thereof, 
CTV shall be paid in full for services performed and reimbursable expenses 
incuned to the date of termination. 

31Page of 9 



SECTION 12. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS. CTV shall comply with all 
applicable laws, ordinances, codes and regulations of the federal, state and local 
governments. CTV shall obtain and maintain a City of Capitola busines.s license during the 
term of this Agreement. 

SECTION 13. GOVERNING LAW. City and the CTV agree that the law governing 
this Agreement shall be that of the State of California. Any suit brought by either party 
against the other arising out of the performance of this Agreement shall be filed and 
maintained in the Municipal or Superior Court of the County of Santa Cruz. 

SECTION 14. PRIOR AGREEMENTS AND AMENDMENTS. This Agreement 
represents the entire understanding of the parties as to those matters contained herein. No 
prior oral or written understanding shall be of any force or effect with respect to those matters 
covered hereunder. This Agreement may only be modified by a written amendment. 

SECTION 15. CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION. All data, documents, 
discussions or other information developed or received by or for CTV in performance of this 
Agreement are confidential and not to be disclosed to any person except as authorized by the 
City Manager or his designee, or as required by law. · 

SECTION 16. OWNERSIDP OF MATERIALS. All reports, documents or other 
materials developed or received by CTV or any other person engaged directly by CTV to 
perform the services required hereunder shall be and remain the property of the City without 
restriction or limitation upon their use. 

SECTION 17. COVENANT AGAINST CONTINGENT FEES. The CTV 
covenants that CTV has not employed or retained any company or person, other than a bona 
fide employee working solely for CTV, to solicit or secure the Agreement, an'd that CTV has 
not paid or agreed to pay any company or person, other than a bona fide employee working 
solely for CTV, any fees, commissions, percentage, brokerage fee, gift, or any other 
consideration contingent on or resulting from the award or making of this Agreement, for 
breach or violation of this covenant, the City shall have the right to annul this Agreement 
without liability, or in its discretion, to deduct from the contract price or consideration or 
otherwise recover, the full amount of such fee, commission, percentage fee, gift, or 
contingency. 

SECTION 18. WAIVER. CTV agrees that waiver by the City or any one or more of 
the conditions of performance under this Agreement shall not be construed as waiver of any 
other condition of performance under this Agreement. 

4JPage of 9 

-88-

Item #: 10.E. Attach 1.pdf

SECTION 12. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS. CTV shall comply with all 
applicable laws, ordinances, codes and regulations of the federal, state and local 
governments. CTV shall obtain and maintain a City of Capitola busines,s license during the 
term of this Agreement. 

SECTION 13. GOVERNING LAW. City and the CTV agree that the law governing 
this Agreement shall be that of the State of California. Any suit brought by either party 
against the other arising out of the performance of this Agreement shall be filed and 
maintained in the Municipal or Superior Court of the County of Santa Cruz. 

SECTION 14. PRIOR AGREEMENTS AND AMENDMENTS. This Agreement 
represents the entire understanding of the parties as to those matters contained herein. No 
prior oral or written understanding shall be of any force or effect with respect to those matters 
covered hereunder. This Agreement may only be modified by a written amendment. 

SECTION 15. CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION. All data, documents, 
discussions or other information developed or received by or for CTV in performance of this 
Agreement are confidential and not to be disclosed to any person except as authorized by the 
City Manager or his designee, or as required by law. . 

SECTION 16. OWNERSIDP OF MATERIALS. All reports, documents or other 
materials developed or received by CTV or any other person engaged directly by CTV to 
perform the services required hereunder shall be and remain the property of the City without 
restriction or limitation upon their use. 

SECTION 17. COVENANT AGAINST CONTINGENT FEES. The CTV 
covenants that CTV has not employed or retained any company or person, other than a bona 
fide employee working solely for CTV, to solicit or secure the Agreement, and that CTV has 
not paid or agreed to pay any company or perSon, other than a bona fide employee working 
solely for CTV, any fees, commissions, percentage, brokerage fee, gift, or any other 
consideration contingent on or resulting from the award or making of this Agreement, for 
breach or violation of this covenant, the City shall have the right to annul this Agreement 
without liability, or in its discretion, to deduct from the contract price or consideration or 
otherwise recover, the full amount of such fee, commission, percentage fee, gift, or 
contingency. 

SECTION 18. WAIVER. CTV agrees that waiver by the City or anyone or more of 
the conditions of performance under this Agreement shall not be construed as waiver of any 
other condition of performance under this Agreement. 

41Page of 9 



SECTION 19. CONFLICT OF INTEREST. 

A. A CTV shall avoid all conflict of interest or appearance of conflict of interest in 
performance of this Agreement. CTV shall file a disclosure statement, if required 
by City Council Resolution, which shall be filed within thirty (30) days from the 
effective date of this Agreement or such Resolution, as applicable. 

B. No member, officer, or employee of the City, during their tenure, or for one (1) 
year thereafter, shall have any interest, direct or indirect, in this Agreement or the 
proceeds thereof and CTV agrees not to allow, permit, grant, transfer, or 
otherwise do anything which will result in such member, officer, or employee of 
the City from having such interest. 

SECTION 20. AUDIT BOOKS AND RECORDS. CTV shall make available to the 
City, its authorized agents, officers and employees, for examination any and all ledgers and 
books of account, invoices, vouchers, canceled checks and other records or documents 
evidencing or related to the expenditures and disbursements charged to the City, and shall 
furnish to the City, its authorized agents and employees, such other evidence or information 
as the City may require with respect to any such expense or disbursement charged by CTV. 

SECTION 21. NOTICES. All notices shall be personally served or mailed, postage 
prepaid, to the following addresses, or to such other address as may be designated by written 
notice by the parties: 

CITY 

Jamie Goldstein, 
City Manager 

420 Capitola Avenue 
Capitola, CA 95010 

(831) 475-7300 

SECTION 22. EXHIBITS: 

Exhibit A: Scope of Services 
Exhibit B: Schedule of Performance 
Exhibit C: Compensation 

CTV 

Ann K. Bisbee- Executive Director 
Community Television of 
Santa Cruz County, Inc. 

816 Pacific A venue 
Santa Cruz, CA 95060 

(831) 425-8848 x28 

5IPage of 9 

-89-

Item #: 10.E. Attach 1.pdf

SECTION 19. CONFLICT OF INTEREST. 

A. A CTV shall avoid all conflict of interest or appearance of conflict of interest in 
performance of this Agreement. CTV shall file a disclosure statement, if required 
by City Council Resolution, which shall be filed within thirty (30) days from the 
effective date of this Agreement or such Resolution, as applicable. 

B. No member, officer, or employee of the City, during their tenure, or for one (1) 
year thereafter, shall have any interest, direct or indirect, in this Agreement or the 
proceeds thereof and CTV agrees not to allow, permit, grant, transfer, or 
otherwise do anything which will result in such member, officer, or employee of 
the City from having such interest. 

SECTION 20. AUDIT BOOKS AND RECORDS. CTV shall make available to the 
City, its authorized agents, officers and employees, for examination any and all ledgers and 
books of account, invoices, vouchers, canceled checks and other records or documents 
evidencing or related to the expenditures and disbursements charged to the City, and shall 
furnish to the City, its authorized agents and employees, such other evidence or information 
as the City may require with respect to any such expense or disbursement charged by CTV. 

SECTION 21. NOTICES. All notices shall be personally served or mailed, postage 
prepaid, to the following addresses, or to such other address as may be designated by written 
notice by the parties: 

CITY 

Jamie Goldstein, 
City Manager 

420 Capitola Avenue 
Capitola, CA 95010 

(831) 475-7300 

SECTION 22. EXHIBITS: 

Exhibit A: Scope of Services 
Exhibit B: Schedule of Performance 
Exhibit C: Compensation 

CTV 

Ann K. Bisbee - Executive Director 
Community Television of 
Santa Cruz County, Inc. 

816 Pacific Avenue 
Santa Cruz, CA 95060 

(831) 425-8848 x28 

51Page of 9 



WITNESS THE EXECUTION HEREOF, on the day and year first hereinabove written. 

CITY 

CITY OF CAPITOLA 

BY ______________________ ___ 
City Manager 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

BY ______________________ _ 
City Attomey 

CTV 

COMMUNITY TELEVISION OF 
SANTA CRUZ COUNTY, INC. 

BY ________________________ __ 
Ann K. Bisbee, Executive Director 

61Page of 9 

-90-

Item #: 10.E. Attach 1.pdf

WITNESS THE EXECUTION HEREOF, on the day and year fIrst hereinabove written. 

CITY 

CITY OF CAPITOLA 

By ______________________ ___ 
City Manager 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

By ______________________ _ 
City Attomey 

CTV 

COMMUNITY TELEVISION OF 
SANTA CRUZ COUNTY, INC. 

By ________________________ __ 
Ann K. Bisbee, Executive Director 

61Page of 9 



EXHIBIT "A" 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 

1. Capitola City Council Meetings Broadcast in North County - CTV will rebroadcast 
the Capitola City Council meetings on the government access channel in the North 
County cable franchise area. Such programming shall be scheduled to commence on a 
weeknight beginning at 7:00 pm. Should a weeknight primetime slot not be 
immediately available, City Council meetings shall be broadcast on a weekend 
evening commencing at 7:00 pm. In the event the City Council meetings can be 
broadcast on a "live" simultaneous basis in North County, the City reserves the right 
to substitute other programming in a 3-hour block. 

2. Broadcast Technicians 

a. Provide technicians to record and/or broadcast all regular and special City 
Council and Planning Commission meetings. 

b. Provide technicians to record and/or broadcast other City meetings and 
programs. 

c. Technician rates are $50.00 per hour per technician for all professional 
services on-site including all time in chambers and closed sessions. 

3. Training Workshops - CTV shall continue to offer Capitola residents workshops that 
instruct them on video camera operation, electronic video editing and other 
techniques that will allow production of programming that may in tum be submitted 
to CTV for broadcast on the public access channel. 

4. Community Event and Public Service Announcement Coverage- At the request of 
the City, CTV will produce and playback up to 2 community events and 2 public 
service announcements. 

5. Technical Assistance- CTV will provide up to 10 hours of on-site technical facility 
assistance per year. The CTV Information Technology Director or a staff member of 
equal technical knowledge shall provide such services. Should additional technical 
assistance be necessary, it shall be purchased at the rate of$30.00 per hour. 

6. Employment - CTV agrees to use its best efforts to employ Capitola area residents to 
assists in all control room technician work for this item and all other services 
provided to the City. Such best efforts shall include at a minimum advertising 
technician position job openings with the Soquel High School Video Academy and a 
local newspaper and/or other local publications. 

7. PEG Access Cable Channels Programming - CTV shall air their programming on 
three (3) PEG Channels provided by the City. 

71Page of 9 

-91-

Item #: 10.E. Attach 1.pdf

EXHIBIT "A" 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 

1. Capitola City Council Meetings Broadcast in North County - CTV will rebroadcast 
the Capitola City Council meetings on the government access channel in the North 
County cable franchise area. Such programming shall be scheduled to commence on a 
weeknight beginning at 7:00 pm. Should a weeknight primetime slot not be 
immediately available, City Council meetings shall be broadcast on a weekend 
evening commencing at 7 :00 pm. In the event the City Council meetings can be 
broadcast on a "live" simultaneous basis in North County, the City reserves the right 
to substitute other programming in a 3-hour block. 

2. Broadcast Technicians 

a. Provide technicians to record and/or broadcast all regular and special City 
Council and Planning Commission meetings. 

b. Provide technicians to record and/or broadcast other City meetings and 
programs. 

c. Technician rates are $50.00 per hour per technician for all professional 
services on-site including all time in chambers and closed sessions. 

3. Training Workshops - CTV shall continue to offer Capitola residents workshops that 
instruct them on video camera operation, electronic video editing and other 
techniques that will allow production of programming that may in tum be submitted 
to CTV for broadcast on the public access channel. 

4. Community Event and Public Service Announcement Coverage - At the request of 
the City, CTV will produce and playback up to 2 community events and 2 public 
service announcements. 

5. Technical Assistance - CTV will provide up to 10 hours of on-site technical facility 
assistance per year. The CTV Information Technology Director or a staff member of 
equal technical knowledge shall provide such services. Should additional technical 
assistance be necessary, it shall be purchased at the rate of$30.00 per hour. 

6. Employment - CTV agrees to use its best efforts to employ Capitola area residents to 
assists in all control room technician work for this item and all other services 
provided to the City. Such best efforts shall include at a minimum advertising 
technician position job openings with the Soquel High School Video Academy and a 
local newspaper and/or other local publications. 

7. PEG Access Cable Channels Programming - CTV shall air their programming on 
three (3) PEG Channels provided by the City. 

71Page of 9 



EXHIBIT "B" 

SCHEDULE OF PERFORMANCE 

1. Service Review - Services shall commence immediately upon execution of this 
Agreement. Unless otherwise requested or indicated, the City and CTV may review 
service levels, output, and performance of duties every six months. 

2. Annual Reports- Within ninety (90) days after the end ofthefiscal year (June 30th), 
CTV shall submit a written annual report to the City with respect to the preceding 
year and including the following: 

a. A summary of the previous year's activities in development and/or support of 
Public, Educational, and Governmental Access programming in Capitola. The 
report should summarize the number of public service announcements, efforts 
to hire locally, number of Capitola members, classes offered to Capitola 
residents, and a description of field productions from or about Capitola. 

b. A copy of CTV's annual Activities Plan and Budget report and other periodic 
reports shall be submitted to the City within forty-five (45) days of issuance. 

c. A list identifying CTV's officers, members of its board of directors, and other 
principals of CTV. 

8JPage of 9 

-92-

Item #: 10.E. Attach 1.pdf

EXHIBIT "B" 

SCHEDULE OF PERFORMANCE 

1. Service Review - Services shall commence immediately upon execution of this 
Agreement. Unless otherwise requested or indicated, the City and CTV may review 
service levels, output, and performance of duties every six months. 

2. Annual Reports - Within ninety (90) days after the end of the fiscal year (June 30th), 
CTV shall submit a written annual report to the City with respect to the preceding 
year and including the following: 

a. A summary of the previous year's activities in development and/or support of 
Public, Educational, and Governmental Access programming in Capitola. The 
report should summarize the number of public service announcements, efforts 
to hire locally, number of Capitola members, classes offered to Capitola 
residents, and a description of field productions from or about Capitola. 

b. A copy of CTV's annual Activities Plan and Budget report and other periodic 
reports shall be submitted to the City within forty-five (45) days of issuance. 

c. A list identifying CTV's officers, members of its board of directors, and other 
principals of CTV. 

81Page of 9 



EXHilliT "C" 

COMPENSATION 

A. Total Compensation. 

In consideration of the compensation within this contract, the parties agree to continue 
control room services associated with Capitola City Council and Planning Commission 
meetings at the following rates. Technician rates are $50.00 per hour per technician for 
all professional services on-site including all time in chambers and closed sessions. 

B. Payment Request. 

CTV shall submit a request for payment for technician services on a monthly basis by 
letter to Director, or said Director's designated representative. Such request for payment 
shall cover the preceding monthly period during the term hereof, shall note the City's 
purchase order number for this contract, shall contain a detailed listing of the total 
number of items or tasks or hours for which payment is requested, the individual dates on 
which such services were rendered, and invoices for reimbursable expenses, if any. Upon 
receipt in the Office of Director of said payment request, Director shall cause payment to 
be initiated to CTV for appropriate compensation. 

The CTV shall submit payment request for television programming services on a 
qumierly basis by letter to Director, or said Director's designated representative. Said 
request for payment shall be submitted in accordance with the schedule outlined in 
Section B. 

9JPage of 9 

-93-

Item #: 10.E. Attach 1.pdf

EXHmIT "c" 

COMPENSATION 

A. Total Compensation. 

In consideration of the compensation within this contract, the parties agree to continue 
control room services associated with Capitola City Council and Planning Commission 
meetings at the following rates. Technician rates are $50.00 per hour per technician for 
all professional services on-site including all time in chambers and closed sessions. 

B. Payment Request. 

CTV shall submit a request for payment for technician services on a monthly basis by 
letter to Director, or said Director's designated representative. Such request for payment 
shall cover the preceding monthly period during the term hereof, shall note the City's 
purchase order number for this contract, shall contain a detailed listing of the total 
number of items or tasks or hours for which payment is requested, the individual dates on 
which such services were rendered, and invoices for reimbursable expenses, if any. Upon 
receipt in the Office of Director of said payment request, Director shall cause payment to 
be initiated to CTV for appropriate compensation. 

The CTV shall submit payment request for television programming services on a 
qUalierly basis by letter to Director, or said Director's designated representative. Said 
request for payment shall be submitted in accordance with the schedule outlined in 
Section B. 

91Page of 9 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-94-



Ch 
January 8, 2014 

Mr. Jamie Goldstein 
City Manager 
City of Capitola 
420 Capitola Avenue 
Capitola, CA 95010 

r 

Via Electronic and U.S. Mail 

RE: Notification ofTermination of City of Capitola's ("City") Complimentary Video Services Provided by 
Charter Communications {"Charter"); Information Regarding Future Use of Public, Educational and 
Government Programming ("PEG") Fees 

Dear Mr. Goldstein: 

I am writing to notify you of changes that will occur on March 9, 2014, which is the date when the City's 
prior local franchise would have expired; namely changes to complimentary cable services and PEG 
programming fees. · 

Complimentary Accounts. 

Effective April18, 2012, Charter began operating in the City under a new state-issued franchise 
authorized by the California Digital Infrastructure and Video Competition Act of 2006 ("DIVCA"). The 
state franchise replaced Charter's locally-issued franchise agreement with the City. Pursuant to 
California ·public Utilities Code Section 5870{k), a state franchise holder's obligation to provide 
complimentary cable service to public buildings free of charge contained in a locally-issued franchise 
that has expired by its own terms, shall continue until the natural expiration of the franchise which in 
this case is March 9, 2014. As a result, Charter's obligation to provide the City with complimentary video 
services will cease effective on that date. 

Attached is a list of sites where the City is currently receiving complimentary services, according to our 
records. Should the City choose to maintain any Charter services that are currently complimentary, a 
service contract must be negotiated by March 10, 2014. Please let me know as soon as possible how the 
City would like to proceed in this matter. If Charter does not hear from the City by January 17,2014, 
Charter will schedule the disconnection of any complimentary services on March 10, 2014. 

If the City would like to move forward with a service contract, a Charter Business representative will 
contact you to begin discussions. We will make every effort to provide the City a reasonable and 
attractive offer for continued use of the network. 

-95-

Item #: 10.E. Attach 2.pdf

Ch 
January 8, 2014 

Mr. Jamie Goldstein 
City Manager 
City of Capitola 
420 Capitola Avenue 
Capitola, CA 95010 

r 

Via Electronic and U. S. Mail 

RE: Notification ofTermination of City of Capitola's ("City") Complimentary Video Services Provided by 
Charter Communications ("Charter"); Information Regarding Future Use of Public, Educational and 
Government Programming ("PEG") Fees 

Dear Mr. Goldstein: 

I am writing to notify you of changes that will occur on March 9, 2014, which is the date when the City's 
prior local franchise would have expired; namely changes to complimentary cable services and PEG 
programming fees. . 

Complimentary Accounts. 

Effective April 18, 2012, Charter began operating in the City under a new state-issued franchise 
authorized by the California Digital Infrastructure and Video Competition Act of 2006 ("DIVCA"). The 
state franchise replaced Charter's locally-issued franchise agreement with the City. Pursuant to 
California "Public Utilities Code Section 5870(k), a state franchise holders obligation to provide 
complimentary cable service to public buildings free of charge contained in a locally-issued franchise 
that has expired by its own terms, shall continue until the natural expiration of the franchise which in 
this case is March 9, 2014. As a result, Charter's obligation to provide the City with complimentary video 
services will cease effective on that date. 

Attached is a list of sites where the City is currently receiving complimentary services, according to our 
records. Should the City choose to maintain any Charter services that are currently complimentary, a 
service contract must be negotiated by March 10,2014. Please let me know as soon as possible how the 
City would like to proceed in this matter. If Charter does not hear from the City by January 17, 2014, 
Charter will schedule the disconnection of any complimentary services on March 10, 2014. 

If the City would like to move forward with a service contract, a Charter Business representative will 
contact you to begin discussions. We will make every effort to provide the City a reasonable and 
attractive offer for continued use of the network. 



Mr. Jamie Goldstein 
January 8, 2014 

PEG Fees. 

Page 2 of2 

Federal law only permits PEG fees to be used for capital "costs incurred in or associated with the 
construction of PEG access facilities" and contains an explicit prohibition on using PEG fees for 
operational support. This prohibition would constrain the City's use of PEG fees for anything other than 
legitimate capital costs incurred in or associated with the construction of PEG access facilities. DIVCA 
expressly requires that the use of the PEG fee must be consistent with federal law. To the extent that 
the City has used any PEG fees for operational expense, please be advised that federal and state law 
prohibit such use and strictly constrain how these funds are to be used. 

Please feel free to contact me if you have any questions or concerns. 

Best regards, 

Lisa Ludovici 
Senior Manager, Government Affairs 
(o) 805-783-4945 
(m) 805-550-1627 
l.ludovici@charter.com 

cc: Lisa Murphy, Administrative Services Director, City of Capitola 

-96-

Item #: 10.E. Attach 2.pdf

Mr. Jamie Goldstein 
January 8, 2014 

PEG Fees. 

Page 2 of2 

Federal law only permits PEG fees to be used for capital "costs incurred in or associated with the 
construction of PEG access facilities" and contains an explicit prohibition on using PEG fees for 
operational support. This prohibition would constrain the City's use of PEG fees for anything other than 
legitimate capital costs incurred in or associated with the construction of PEG access facilities. DIVCA 
expressly requires that the use of the PEG fee must be consistent with federal law. To the extent that 
the City has used any PEG fees for operational expense, please be advised that federal and state law 
prohibit such use and strictly constrain how these funds are to be used. 

Please feel free to contact me if you have any questions or concerns. 

Best regards, 

Lisa Ludovici 
Senior Manager, Government Affairs 
(0) 805-783-4945 
(m) 805-550-1627 
l.Iudovici@charter.com 

cc: Lisa Murphy, Administrative Services Director, City of Capitola 



City of Capitola 
Complimentary Services 

NAME 

CAPITOLA POLICE DEPT,* 

CITY HALL,* 

ADDRESS CITY 

422 CAPITOLA AVE. CAPITOLA 

420 CAPITOLA AVE. CAPITOLA 

STATE ZIP ACCOUNT NUMBER SERVICES 

CA 95010-3318 8203110080038594 BASIC TV 

CA 95010-3318 8203110080038586 BASIC TV 

-97-

Item
 #: 10.E

. A
ttach

 2.p
d

f

City of Capitola 
Complimentary Services 

NAME 

CAPITOLA POLICE DEPT, * 

CITY HALL,* 

ADDRESS CITY 

422 CAPITOLA AVE. CAPITOLA 

420 CAPITOLA AVE. CAPITOLA 

STATE ZIP ACCOUNT NUMBER SERVICES 

CA 95010-3318 8203110080038594 BASIC TV 

CA 95010-3318 8203110080038586 BASIC TV 



THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 

-98-


	AGENDA
	CLOSED SESSION – 6:45 PM

	REGULAR MEETING OF THE CAPITOLA CITY COUNCIL – 7:00 PM
	1. ROLL CALL AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCECouncil Members Stephanie Harlan, Dennis Norton, Ed Bottorff, Michael Termini, and Mayor Sam Storey
	2. PRESENTATIONS
	A. Certificate of Commendation to Detective Sarah Ryan, Detective Leo Moreno, and Sergeant Mark Gonzalez.
	B. Presentation to Police Officer Pedro Zamora and retired Police Service Canine Katie.
	C. Presentation by Michelle Williams, Arts Council Santa Cruz County Executive Director.

	3. REPORT ON CLOSED SESSION
	4. ADDITIONAL MATERIALS
	A. 2.C.
	[2.C.pdf]

	B. 9.C.
	[9.C.pdf]

	C. 10.A.
	[10.A.pdf]

	D. 10.B.
	[10.B.pdf]

	E. 10.C.
	[10.C.pdf]


	5. ADDITIONS AND DELETIONS TO AGENDA
	6. PUBLIC COMMENTS
	7. CITY COUNCIL / CITY TREASURER / STAFF COMMENTS
	8. BOARDS, COMMISSIONS AND COMMITTEES APPOINTMENTS
	9. CONSENT CALENDAR
	A. Receive Planning Commission Action Minutes for the Regular Meeting of April 3, 2014.
	[Minutes.pdf]

	B. Consider denying liability claim of Patricia Greenwood in the amount of $9,500 and forward to the City’s liability insurance carrier.
	[Staff Report.pdf]

	C. Consider a contract with the City of Santa Cruz in an amount not to exceed $4,500 to provide Junior Lifeguard instructor training, and authorize a $15,000 increase in expenditures for wages paid to the Capitola Junior Lifeguard instructors during training.
	[Staff Report.pdf]
	[Attach 1.pdf]
	[Attach 2.pdf]

	D. Consider acceptance of Association of Monterey Bay Area Governments (AMBAG) Regional Public Safety Electric Motorcycle Upgrade Program Grant of $14,250 for the purchase of a Police Department electric motorcycle; and authorize budget adjustment increasing budget revenue and expenditures by $14,250 for Fiscal Year 2013-2014.
	[Staff Report.pdf]


	10. GENERAL GOVERNMENT / PUBLIC HEARINGS
	A. Consider the approval of plans, specifications, and the engineer’s estimate for the construction of the McGregor Park; authorization to advertise for bids and a budget amendment allocating $130,000 within the Capital Improvement Program from Undetermined Park Improvements to the McGregor Park Project, and modifications to the McGregor Park Donation and Sponsorship Program.
	[Staff Report.pdf]
	[Attach 1.pdf]
	[Attach 2.pdf]

	B. Consider the Lower Pacific Cove Parking Lot Operating Guidelines and the renaming of both the Upper and the Lower Pacific Cove Parking Lots.
	[Staff Report.pdf]
	[Attach 1.pdf]
	[Attach 2.pdf]

	C. Consider finalizing the design and funding for the Esplanade and Stockton Avenue Intersection Improvements; and authorize advertising the project for construction bids.
	[Staff Report.pdf]
	[Attach 1.pdf]

	D. Consider implementing a Village “Personalized Brick” Program.
	[Staff Report.pdf]

	E. Consider a contract with Community Television of Santa Cruz County, Inc., to provide programming for the City’s Public, Education and Government Channels; and authorize the City Manager to execute the contract.
	[Staff Report.pdf]
	[Attach 1.pdf]
	[Attach 2.pdf]


	11. ADJOURNMENT


